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CRAFTING A NEW

AIFUL Group is already envisioning a new season of growth based on strong compliance management and
achieved through the provision of comprehensive financial services in the retail sector.
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Forward-Looking Statements [ T . v - .
The figures contained in this Annual Report with respect to AIFULs p}ans and $(ralegies, em}i t;}her sth[emenfs that tire" not h}sturlcal facts"are forward -looking statements about the
future performance of AIFUL, which are based on management's assumptions and beliefs in light of the information currently available tw it and involve risks and uncertainties and
actual results that may differ from those in the forward-looking staterments as a result of various factors. Potential risks and uncertainties include, without limitation, general economic
conditions in AIFULs market and changes in the overall market for cansumer loans, the rate of default by customers, and the level of interest rates charged by AIFUL.
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Japan’s consumer credit industry has changed, customer expectations
have changed, and AIFUL Group is changing with them.

A year ago, we initiated new values and compliance reforms to guide
us through the new financial landscape, and in 2007, those initiatives
began 10 work for us.

Employees raised their awareness and became highly motivated as
we accelerated business-model transformations into a strategically
diversified finance group.

Now, one year later, we see the results of innovative change.
Renewed competitiveness and energy are carrying us through
heavy cbmpetition and helping us paint a bright, new picture of

prosperity and growth.




Financial Highlights

Percentage Thousands of
Millions of Yen of change U.S. Dollars

AIFUL CORPORATION and Consolidated Subsidiaries

Years Ended March 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006 2007 2006 08/07
For the Year:
Total income ¥ 501,009 ¥ 548,818 (19.7)
Total expenses 873,272 436,045 (57.5)
Credit costs : 447 375 166,047 {65.1)
Income (Loss) before income taxes and minority interests f{ : Y298y (372,263) 112,773 —
Net income (loss) ; e (411,251) 65,827 —
At Year-End: 5 ;
Loans R 1,912,689 2,124,017 {16.4)
Installiment accounts receivable ;-f 3 ; 174,923 209,581 {151
Bad debts Ql' Hi 328,046 203,800 4.8
Total assets ARt ekl 2,214,559 2,790,969 (7.8)
Allowance for bad debts : 0‘_" q 407,573 171,715 (18.9)
Long-term debt, including current pertion thereof ; qage 1,438,892 1,654,546 (17.3)
Total equity 7 ; ’s? i 257,145 681,694 26.2
Number of shares issued 16 Qe 142.035.000 142,035,000 17.9
,ﬂ %
%‘;ﬁ“ o Percentage
[ 4 X Yen of change
Per Share Data: |2 w3
Basic net income (loss) & 0 | ¥(2,003.85) ¥ 464.84 —
Diluted net income e tJ - 464.69 —
Total equity B anoiiA 1,777.44 4,813.45 7.4
Cash dividends B i) 60.00 60.00 53.5)

Notes' 1. The U.S. dollar amounts have been transiated, for convenience only, ar ¥100 = §1, the approximate rate of exchange ar March 31, 2008.
2. Net income per share has been computed based on the welghted average number of shares outstanding during each period, after retroactive adjustment for stock splits.
3. Figures in the financial section are based on audited F.nglish-langua%:: statements. Figures In the feature section and review of operatlens are based on Japanese financlal statements.
Due tz certain reclassifications. some figures and items do not matcn.
4. On May 23, 2005, each common, par value share heid as of March 31, 2005, was split into 1.5 shares, according 1o the pravisions of Article 218 of the japanese Commercial Code.
5. On February 28, 2008, 25,440.000 new shares were issied through allocation of new shares 1o a third party.
4. Long-term debt includes ¥70,000 miltion of subardinated Euroyen zero-coupon convertible bonds, which are subject to mandatory acquisition.

Total Income Net Income {Loss) Total Assets Total Equity
{Millions of Yeny (Millions of Yen) (Millions of Yen) (Millions of Yen)
P e 65,827 o 79 617 35368 il
520,737 501,009 . 2,574,286 o
2,214,559
402,389 M 2.041.128
27,434
324,521
257,145
LU
J (411,251)
0513 0613 0713 0813 0513 06/3 0713 083 05i3 0613 07/13 08/3 053 06/3 0713 0813
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To Our Shareholders

With a Fresh Canvas,
Painting a New Picture
of Growth

Return to Positive Consolidated Results
in the Year Ended March 2008

[n the first half of the year ended March 2008, the Japanese
economy maintained a pace of gradual recovery, but in the latter
half, the subprime mortgage crisis in the United States contributed
to economic uncertainty. Other factors included a rapidly rising yen
and higher crude oil and raw material prices. Consumer spending
slumped as a result of stagnating wages and rising prices for
groceries and other items.

It was also a year of change for the consumer finance industry.
Article 2 of the Law to Partially Amend the Money Lending Business
Conrrol and Regulation Law (the amended Money Lending Business
Law) took effect in December 2007. Measures included tighter
cantrols on debt collection activities and a new system allowing the
Financial Services Agency to issue business improvement orders, In
addition, the Japan Financial Services Association was established as
a sell-regulatory body for the indusiry and began to formulate and
implement voluntary rules covering such aspects as excessive lending.

By June 2010, regulations lowering the maximum interest rates
and restricting total lending will become fully effective. Lenders,
especially major companies, are preparing for these changes
through the early introduction of low-interest rate products, and
through radical cost restructuring measures, including the closure of
unprofitable branches and the reduction of workforces, However, bad
debt charge-offs and demands for interest refunds are increasing
and loan balances have declined following the introduction of tighter
lending criteria. These challenging business conditions are putting
pressure on earnings, and small and medium-sized lenders with
limited financial resources are being forced out of the industry.

t‘

Yoshitaka Fukuda
Presicdent and CEO

In the year ended March 2008, the AIFUL Group recorded
higher income, even as revenue fell. Consolidated operating
revenue declined by 18.7% year on year to ¥405,784 million.
However, consolidated ordinary income and net income both
recovered from the tosses recorded in the previous year (o ¥32,066
miltion and ¥27.435 million, respeciively.

A major reason for the fall in revenue was a decline in our (op
line because of the tightened lending criteria, brought on, in part,
by the amended Money Lending Business Law. Other reasons
were lower yields, due to aggressive marketing of low-interest
rate products to new customers and high-quality borrowers,
Income rose because we were able (o achieve a major reduction
of the reserve for losses on interest refunds compared with the
previous year. Credit costs also fell, with the easing of the bad
debt problem. Continued cost restructuring, as well, reduced labor
costs and other cost items.

Statistics for individual group companies show a recovery in the
performance of the consumer finance company AIFUL CORPORATION,
AIFUL anticipated the temporary market upheaval that followed the
full implementation of the amended Money Lending Business Law. It
took early steps to curb bad debt problems by tightening its lending
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criteria, and the balance of loans declined by 18.5% to ¥1,058,880
million. Operating revenue was about 20% lower than the previous
year's result, in part because AIFUL actively implemented a new
interest rate structure based on the Interest Rate Restriction Law.
However, cost restructuring was reflected in lower selling, general
and administrative expenses, while losses on interest refunds were
covered by partially drawing down reserves. The end result was a
return to positive figures with net income of ¥27.070 million.

LIFE Co., Ltd., which is involved in the per-item shopping loans
and credit card areas, maintained steady growth in the number of
new cards issued, and the number of cardholders increased by 5.4%
year on year to 14.81 million. The credit card shopping business
continued to perform strongly, but operating revenue was lower
than the previous year's level, in part because of the introduction
of a new interest rate structure with rates not exceeding 18%,
However, successful restructuring and reduced credit costs helped
LIFE to achieve income growth, garnering ¥3,428 million in net
income despite iower revenue.

The business lean subsidiaries BUSINEXT CORPORATION and
City's Corporation amended their marketing approach to reflect
the deteriorating business outlook for small and medium-sized
enterprises. Changes included more stringent vetting of borrowers
and increased marketing of secured loans. which provide better
protection. While both companies raised their loan balances
modestly, their earnings were affected by increased credit costs.
BUSINEXT recorded net income of ¥79 million, while City's
Corporation showed a net loss of ¥1,622 million. The consumer
finance subsidiaries TRYTO CORPORATICN and Wide Corporation
made steady progress in their rationalization and restructuring
as part of the AIFUL Group's efforts to optimize its management
resources. Cost restructuring helped TRYTO and Wide (o return to
positive results, with net income reaching ¥449 million and ¥6,276
million respectively.

Consolidated 073 05 5) 0943 (E)

(Oh’.i}i)l:;::i;g‘(g?\’enue 499,051 |7 {(mm}ﬂ 312,039
SRt o | man | 0
ﬁﬁ&lﬂ??ﬂ&ﬁm“’ (411,250 47 47 31,730
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Interest Refunds and Bad Debt Charge-offs Peaking

Interest refunds and bad debt charge-offs had a major influence
on business performance in the year ended March 2008. The
following is a detailed analysis of these factors.

On a non-consolidated basis, AIFUL CORPORATION paid
interest refunds totaling ¥50,425 million in the year ended March
2008, On a monthly basis, the amount of refunds peaked in
October 2007 and is now declining. The number of cases with
attorney involvement, which is a leading indicator of interest
refund claims, peaked in May 2007 and had fallen by 24% as
of March 2008. There are indications that this preblem is now
starting (o ease. Looking ahead, while the level of refunds is likely to
remain high, the number of new claims is declining. Additionaily,
aggressive marketing of new products with interest rates based on
the Interest Rate Restriction Law has resulted in the restructuring
of our loan portfolios, leading to a reduction in the number of
loans that could be subject to interest refund claims.

In the first half of the year ended March 2008, we modified the
method used to calculate the reserves for interest refunds. We now
provide a reserve equivalent to the total amount of interest refunds
and loans abandoned as a result of interest refunds. As of March
31, 2008, the reserve for AIFUL CORPORATION stood at ¥192,97t
million on a non-consolidated basis, including ¥99,467 million for
interest refunds. We aim o maintain the stability of our earnings
basically by drawing on reserves.

The non-consolidated bad debt charge-off ratio for the year
ended March 2008 was 15%, an increase of 4 percentage points
from the previous year's ratic. The increase reflects the peak charge-
offs in the current year relating to bad debts incurred as a result
of voluntary restraints on debt recovery operations following the
imposition of administrative penalties in 2006. Octher reasons include
the deterioration of the consumer loan market and an increase in
loan charge-offs in connection with interest refund claims.

The effects of voluntary restraints on debt recovery operations
will peak in the year to March 2009. There has also been a
continuing drop in the amount of debts past due by six months
or longer, which Is a leading indicator of the bad debt level. In
addition, we anticipate a reduction in loans abandoned because of
interest refund claims. Although the balance of loans outstanding is
declining, we are forecasting a non-consolidated bad debt charge-off
ratio of 13%, or 2 percentage points below the previous year’s figure.



Interest refund demands and loan charge-offs are included
in broadly defined credit costs. According to statistics published
by the Financia! Services Agency, the number of people with
unsecured loans from five or more companies was 31.2% lower in
March 2008, compared with the figure from March 2007. A similar
trend is apparent in our figures. Over one-half of charge-offs and
interest refund demands relate to this user group.

Credit costs are currently rising. However, this is simply the
result of a credit crunch at the high-risk end of the market following
changes in the law. The situation can be expected to ease in the
medium to long term as a result of tightening of lending criteria and
the improvement of loan quality under the full implementation of
the amended Money Lending Business Law. While we cannot afford
to be complacent, we believe thar credit costs have already peaked
and are about to shift downward.

Industry Consolidation Expected to Benefit Survivors

Amid accelerating change in the consumer finance industry, there
is conspicucus evidence of industry restructuring, including the
collapse of middle-ranking consumer finance companies, mergers
among credit card companies and the withdrawal of foreign-owned
consumer finance companies from the market. The lowering of
interest rate limits and the introduction of restrictions on total
lending are expected to intensify competition and dramatically
reduce the number of consumer finance companies, as major
companies rapidly rise to dominance in the market. Before the
amendment of the law, there were around 14,000 registered
moneylenders (as of March 31, 2006). In the two years to the end of
March 2008, the number plummeted by 36% to 9.115. Furthermore,
finance companies tightened their lending policies ahead of the law
change. This will inevitably result in a temporary increase in the
amouru of non-performing loans and a decline in loan balances.
However, 1 see this as a temporary situation, and after two or
three years 1 expect competition to ease because of the declining
number of suppliers. [ also anticipate a dramaric reduction in
the amount of non-performing loans because of the lowering of
the maximum interest rate and the introduction of restrictions
on total lending. The number of loans that could be affected by
interest refund demands is also expected to decline because
of abolishment of gray-area interest rates, and eventually this
problem should wane. Obviously, we face challenging conditions

in the short term. However, we are confident that there will be

major benefits for the survivors that can overcome competition
and enter a new growth phase as dominant players in the market.

Optimizing Management Resources through
Cost Restructuring

We are rapidly restructuring the AIFUL Group’s business models
in readiness for this new growth stage. A basic strategy is to
maintain the diversity of our comprehensive financial services in
the retail sector by optimizing group management resources, and
we aim o take this strategy even further. Specific policies include
the restructuring of our loan portfolio, cost restructuring, group
restructuring, the application of more stringent lending criteria to
curb credit costs, the development of a new scoring system and
the introduction of new products,

Qur cost restructuring plans were announced in January 2007.
Compared with the position at the end of December 2006, we
had reduced the number of branches by 1,424 1o 1,205, and the
number of group employees by 2,331 to 7,646 by the end of
March 2008. We also made good progress toward reducing costs,
including advertising and systems development expenses. On a
non-consolidated basis, we have achieved savings of approximately
¥30,000 million. We will continue these cost-cutting efforts. Our goal
is to reduce non-consolidated selling, general and administrative
expenses by at least ¥40,000 million,

The restructuring of group companies began with the four
consumer finance companies. Changes have included the partial
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transfer of quality loans held by these companies to LIFE Co.,
Lid. We will implement further restructuring and consolidation
after studying future changes in the business environment.

The business loan subsidiary City's Corporation has also
implemented management rationalization measures and is
modifying its business model and sales methods 10 include sales
of secured low-interest rate products and expanded alliances
with other companies. The credit card company LIFE Co,, Lid,,
which will be a key contributor to the future growth of the AIFUL
Group, will retrench its per-item shopping loan business and shift
management assets into credit card business, with the aim of
reducing risk and increasing earnings.

We are working as rapidly as possible to optimize our group
management resources and diversify our business models
through the resiructuring of the Group's loan portfolios. We aim
to reduce our reliance on unsecured loans from the current level
of 64% to 50% and to expand our invelvement in business
lending, credit card services and guarantees, which offer greater
growth potential in the medium- to long-term perspective. This
policy reftects the maturation of the unsecured loan market and
the high risks associated with it.

Growth Potential in Corporate Financing Business

We have identified the corporate financing business as a growth
area under our product and business strategies. This segment
will be given priority for the investment of the AIFUL Group's
management resources.
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Our strategy for the lending business calls for the expansion
of loans to small and medium-sized enterprises and sole
proprietors. In the short term, worsening business conditions
are likely to create a challenging environment in this market.
However, there is enormous potential demand, and we anticipate
growth in the future.

[n the consumer Anance business, we are pursuing a strategy
of selection and concentration, while also working to improve
efficiency. In August 2007, AIFUL began to market [oans (o new
customers at interest rates within the limits set down in the
Interest Rate Restriction Law, We are also actively promoting our
marketing to existing customers at preferential interest rates. As a
result, there has been a steady rise in the percentage of customers
with unsecured loans provided by AIFUL CORPORATION at interest
rates within the limits stiputated in the law.

We also see corporate services as a graowth area for our credit
card and per-item shopping loan operations. We will implement a
range of measures based on the dynamic application of the AIFUL
Group’s knowledge of corporate credit, including the reinforcement
of corporate card services for small and medium-size businesses.

In the area of guarantee services, AIFUL and LIFE offer
business loan guarantees in partnership with financial institutions.
We anticipate further growth in the number of partners with
which we work in this segment.

The timely implementation of these strategies will result in
a powerful restructuring program that will create a structure
capable of maintaining ROA above 1.5%, even in a low-interest
rate environment. We will further accelerate our reform process,
including new investment, with the aim of moving the AIFUL
Group into a new growth phase in which we will be able to enjoy
the fruiis of our efforts.

Building a Compliance Structure

In addition to the restructuring of our business models, we
are also channeling the total energies of the AIFUL Group into
the establishment of a compliance structure. In April 2007, we
revised and restructured our values and adopted a new corporate
philosophy: “"Earn the support of the public with sincerity and
hard work.” We are now putting this philosophy into practice
through internal reforms that wiil result in nothing less than a
total renewal of our corporate culture.




We are implementing a series of measures to strengthen
internal control systems and compliance. [n the year ended March
31, 2007, we expanded our Compliance Menitoring Department
and established the Risk Management Committee. We introduced a
corporate officer system and created the Corporate Auditors’ Cffice.

Another priority from the perspective of corporate value is
to make policies to guide our CSR activities. Through our CSR
activities, we aim to engage with all stakeholders through wide-
ranging initiatives based on five themes: management systems,
workplaces and working environments, working for our customers,
working for the environment and social contribution/harmony
with communities.

During the reform of our internal structure, our directors
and corporate officers, including myself, have engaged in dialog
with many employees in their workplaces. The reforms are still
continuing, but 1 sense that we are making real progress.

Capital Increase
—Building a Foundation for the Future

In February 2008, AIFUL CORPORATION increased its capital
through a ¥50,000 million third-party allocation of new shares
and a ¥70,000 million issue of convertible bonds with stock
acquisition rights (CBs).

One of the risk factors that could affect the AIFUL Group is a
downgrading of our credit rating caused by a temporary downturn
in our surrcunding business environment. This could trigger a
negative chain reaction, leading to deterioration in the conditions
under which we procure funds, a reduction in our lean balance
and a loss of new investment opportunities—resulting in lower
profitability. The policies that we are implementing now will
interrupt this negative chain reaction and lay the foundations for a
new growth phase by providing resources to drive future growth.

We believe that the capital increase will allow us to maintain and
improve our rating and strengthen our financial structure, We also
expect it to provide a significant enhancement to our credit position,
including the reduction of our financial risk premium. With the
inclusion of the ¥70,000 million CB issue, our consoclidated equity
ratio at the end of March 2008 was 19.1%, a 5.7% improvement
compared with the position at the end of the third quarter.

We are diversifying our procurement methods from a risk
hedging perspective. Our recent capital increase was based on

this policy. We saw the combination of a third-party share issue
and CB issue as the optimal response te the increasingly serious
subprime mortgage situation. We will continue to diversify the
methods we use to provide liquidity and procure funds, in step
with the ongoing evolution of the financial environment.

Group Income Expected to Rise
in the Year Ending March 2009

Challenging conditions are expected to continue into the year
ending March 2009. We will benefit from our cost restructuring
measures, and we also anticipate reduciions in interest refund
claims and bad debt costs. However, the loan balance wilt continue
to decline, in part because of the enforcement of the amended
Money Lending Business Law. Earnings will also decrease as a
result of interest rate reductions, and competition for quality
customers will escalate.

Our consolidated forecasts based on this environment for the
year ending March 2009 see income growth despite a decline in
revenue. Consolidated operating revenue is expected to decline
by 23.1% year on year to ¥312,039 million, but we are projecting
consolidated ordinary income and consolidated net income
respectively of ¥33,000 million, an increase of 2.9% year on year,
and ¥31,730 million, a year-on-year increase of 15.7%.

The consumer finance industry has entered a period of
unprecedented upheaval. However, [ believe that these major
changes will also provide opportunities for new growth. Our
entire organization is united behind our efforts to take the AIFUL
Group into this new growth phase. We are committed to making
the necessary changes to assure the dynamic development of our
business activities, and to the establishment of solid foundations
through cost restructuring and the establishment of reliable
compliance systems.

We look forward ro the continuing support and guidance of
our investors for the future activities of the AIFUL Group.

June 2008
Yoshitaka Fukuda

President and CEO 4
.
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Special Feature 1:

Comprehensive Financial Services Strategy

The AIFUL Group's strength is its strategy of providing comprehensive

financial services in the retail sector.

Qverview of Consumer Credit Market

The diagram below provides an overall perspective of the consumer
credit market in Japan. According to statistics published by the
Japan Consumer Credit Industry Association, the amount of loans
and credit primarily provided to individuals by the consumer credit
industry as of December 31, 2006 was approximately ¥75.5 trillion
(excluding housing loans). The importance of this huge market is
apparent from the fact that it is equivalent to about one-quarter of
final consumption expenditure, which accounted for ¥309.1 trillion
of Japan’s total GDP of around ¥500 trillion in 2006.

Japan's economic development has been paralleled by dramatic
growth in the consumer credit market. In the 1980s, the market
tripled to ¥68 trillion, With the subsequent collapse of Japan's
economic “bubble,” the Japanese economy entered a period of
prolonged stagnation, During this period, the consumer credit
marker remained in a state of balance in terms of absolute market
size and perceniage of final consumption expenditure.

The government introduced a number of changes to the Money
Lending Business Law in December 2006 that profoundly affected the
landscape of the consurmer finance industry by introducing, among
other things, a lower interest rate ceiling, and limits on total lending.
The shopping credit business faces similar changes. as amendments
made to the Installment Sales Law lead to tighter regulation. The
impact of these changes in the statutory environment on the overall
credit and loan market will need to be monitored closely.

Comprehensive Financial Services Strategy
in a Changing Market Environment

The consumer credit market is currently going through major
changes that are transforming the indusiry competitive climate.
Banks are expanding their retail operations, and companies are
maving into the consumer credit field from other industries,
including transportation, manufacturing and (T. Small consumer
finance companies are meanwhile being forced out of the industry,
while credit sales companies and credit card companies are
merging and consolidating their operations. The boundaries that
once separated different market segments, such as consumer
loans, credit card services and credit sales, are shrinking. As in the
United States, there is now escalating competition spanning the
entire consumer credit market in Japan.
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Service providers face a variety of issues, including interest
refund demands, tighter regulation resulting from changes to the
laws that govern the industry, and an upward trend in market
interest rates. The quality of management strategy is likely to be a
key facior determining success or failure in this envirenment.

The AIFUL Group led the industry in anticipating these market
changes, and we have been adapting our operations under our
comprehensive financial services strategy for the retail sector. This
strategy calls for the retention of consumer finance as our core
segment, and for the diversification of our activities and business
portfolic to encompass the entire consumer credit market. The
growth of the AIFUL Group has been driven by unique strategies,
and the benefits of those strategies are becoming increasingly
apparent in this period of market turbulence. @aY et

AIFULs Advantage under

The comprehensive financial services strategy provides many\ R
benefits. For example, we have been able to spread our business risk !
through the diversification of our business portfolio, and we have
maintained steady growth through the expansion of income sources
other than our consumer finance business. Another benefit is the
improvernent of our capital efficiency through high financial leverage.

In 2001, we established the medium-risk-business lender BUSINEXT
CORPORATION as a joint venture with Sumitorno Trust & Banking,
We also acquired the credit sales and credit card company LIFE
Co., Lid. In 2002, the high-risk business lender City’s Corporation

Consumer Credit Categories and
Amounts of Credit Provided (2006)

Credit card

shopping

Shopping credit (¥34.7 ttillion)

(Y44.9 uritlion) Per-iterm
shopping loans
(¥10.2 trillion)

tredit sales

< ompanies

(¥2.9 rrillion)

Consumer creclic
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Consumer Consumer finance
[pans vosmpanies
(¥21.8 trillion) (¥2.2 trilliom)

Consumer finance

e e
(¥30.5 triflion) Other financial

Hame equity i
loany nstitutiung

(YR.0 rillion) O 206 trillion)
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became part of the AIFUL Group. Through these moves, AIFUL has
expanded from a specialist lender in the consumer finance market
to a corporate group spanning the entire consurmer credit market.
Compared with our competitors, we are involved in a much wider
range of activities, including not only non-secured lending, but also
home equity lending, business lending, credit card services, credit
sales and credit guarantee services. By expanding the scope of our
activities in this way, we have sought to establish reliable growth
potential and income performance, and to diversify our business risks.

In 1997, non-secured lending accounted for approximately 90%
of the A[FUL Group’s receivables. As a result of the comprehensive
. financial services strategy, this ratio had been reduced to around

The Future of the AIFUL Group under the Comprehensive Finance Group Strategy

{

total. We will continue to diversﬂ’y our business portfolic and we
intend to reduce our exposure to non-secured lending to 50% in

the medium- to long-term future.

wWe will continue to optimize our comprehensive financial
services strategy as we adapt to a changing market environment.
n the year ended March 2007, we shifted from a strategy of
duplication and dispersal to one based on setection and focus. Under
this strategy, we are restructuring AIFUL Group companies and
reforming our cost structure. This ability to act with flexibility and
speed is & major advantage for the AIFUL Group. [n the near-term
future we aim to build a corporate structure capable of maintaining
ROA above 1.5%, and to establish a position /For' ourselves as a

comprehensive financial group in the retail sect

Loan business

Card and per-item shopping loans

Consumer loans

w

-

\

Growth Area
* Lending to SMEs

Corporate and smalt T

business services
Gusinext C"—’:t—yh:g

Growth Areas

¢ Corporate cards
* Corporate loans, etc.

Growth Area
* Small-business loan guaraniees

¢ [ntroduction of new-type products

T Growth Area

T

. s * Using our business lending knowledge
* Group marketing * Systemizing customer appeal synergies

o e

09




Consumer Finance Business

Through a strategy of selection and concentration in our core consumer finance bu’s‘mess,
we promptly built a new income structure that conforms with the amended

Money Lending Business Law.

-

! ‘ ~
Overiew of the Cansumer Finance Market \'\x

—

There has been littie changé in the overalll size lbf the Japanese
consurner finance market since the collapsé ok-Japan’s economic
"bubble.” The market segment that has shown the greatest
growth s services provided by specialist consumer finance
companies. According to data compiled by the Federation of Credit
Bureaus of Japan, which registers information about users of
consumer finance, the number of registrations has increased by
approximately more than 80% over the past 10 years and reached
23.3 million at the end of March 2007.

Several factors have contributed 10 the growth of the specialist
consumer finance market. First, many banks and non-banks have
reduced their new lending because of the accumulation of non-
performing loans in an environment of asset deflation following
the collapse of the economic “bubble.” Second. because they
specialize in unsecured loans, consumer finance companies
have been able to expand their business activities by enhancing
their services to meet customer needs. Major consumer finance
companies have developed expertise at all stages from lending
and credit management to the managemern of receivables. They
have also expanded their branch networks by installing autormatic
contract machines and opening unmanned outlets, and they have
formed alliances with financial institutions and other organizations
1o strengthen their CD/ATM networks. Innovations such as these
have helped to drive market expansion.
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The Advantages.of Major Specialist Consumer Financé

Companies in a ChangingCompetitive Environment

The amended Mfoney Lending Business Law was passed and
promulgated in December 2006. Article 2 of the amended law
took effect in December 2007,

With these changes to the law, specialist gonsumer finance
companies, banks, credit sales and credit card companies and
other market players are now competing fiercely for shares of the
same market. However, while banks choose to limit their lending ©
customers in the middle-risk category or better, specialist consumer

finance companies have also built expertise in the field of finance for-- *

high-risk borrowers. With their nationwide networks and emphasis
on face-to-face marketing. specialist consumer finance companies
also have a significant advantage over credit sales companies, which
tend to have few branches and rely on non-contact marketing.
Another consequence of the changes to the law has been the
elimination of smaller meney lenders, which tend to have limited
financial resources, through competition in the market. The market
is evolving rapidly toward domination by a small number of major
companies, This process is expected 10 cause temporary market
disruptions, including a credit crunch resulting from the adoption
of tighter lending criteria, and increases in the amount of non-
performing loans and other factors. As shown in the diagram at
right, the number of applications received by big four consumer
credit companies has remained basically unchanged since the




passage of the amended Money Lending Business Law, indicating
that there has been no major shift in market demand. However,
there has been a dramatic reduction in the number of contracts
signed for new loans. This reflects the impact of changes in the
credit stances of consumer finance companies.

This challenging transition will be a temporary phenomenon,
however, and competition is expected 1o ease as the number of
suppliers in the market declines. A reduction in credit risk is also
amicipated. since there will be a reduction in the incidence of
multiple indebtedness after the amended lending law takes full effect.

Applications at Big Four Consumer

Loan Companies and Contracts Signed W Applicarions (thousands)

0 Coentracts signed (thousands)

Q Percentage of contracts (%

432 420 8 *
420 413

58,9 402 396

377

127

!
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Timetable for Introduction of Amended
Money Lending Business Law

A key feature of the amﬁ‘:nded law, which was passed and
promulgated in December 2006, is the fact that it will be enforced
progressivety in four stages, The basic timetable is as follows.

Stage l—January 20, 2007 °
Penatiies for unregtstercd lending were increased.

Stage 2—December 19, 2007

The amended law was renamed the "Money Lending Business Law.” Other
changes inclwie 1he tightening of regiswration criteda for money lenders, the
establishment of the Japan [’inut‘h:lal Services Assoclation as an suthorzed
corparation, and the relnforcement of supervision through the introcducsion of
the operational imprevement ordgr system.

Stage 3~Within 18 monlhs‘of Stage 2 enforcement

Basic assot requirements will b Increased, and a system of qualification
examinations for money lending pperatives will be esmblished, Orher changes
will inelude the establishment of i ﬁesignutcd Crédit burequ systent.

Stage 4--Within 30 momhsiof Stage 2 enforcement
The imerast rare calling will be fgwered, and restricuions on excessive landing

will be tightened, including 1h¥ abolition of the “gray-area™ agreed-rate
system, the iniroducdon of Imits-pn toial lending, and the establishment of an
abligation 1 investigale mpagme-t copagity.

Strengthening Earning Performance
in Our Core Business

Business conditions are likely to be difficult in the short-term
perspective, but we believe that there will be important benefits
for AIFUL as one of the survivors, and that we can look forward
to a new growth phase in the medium- 1o long-term perspective.
The consumer finance business will therefore remain the core
business segment for the AIFUL Group.

AIFUL is moving quickly to adapt to the amended Money
Lending Business Law by building business models and a
business structure based on a management policy of selection
and concentration. We are radically aitering our existing cost
structure by restructuring our branch network, rationalizing our
workforce and reducing selling and administrative expenses.
We are also taking prompt action to reduce the incidence of bad
loans by applying more stringent lending criteria. Additionally,
we have restructured our scoring system to reflect the changes
caused by the introduction of the 20% interest rate ceiling. Other
priorities include the development of new products, including
semi-customized products to meet the specific needs of individual
customers. We are using these measures to strengthen our
competitiveness and improve our management efficiency.



Credit Card Business

We plan to concentrate LIFE’'s management resources into this segment,
and to build corporate card services for small and medium-sized enterprises into a new income

source alongside card services for individuals.

Japan'’s Credit Card Market

According to statistics compiled by the Japan Financial Services
Association, there were 292.66 million credit cards in use in
Japan at the end of March 2006. This is equivalent to 2-3 cards
for every Japanese citizen.

The growing use of credit cards has been reflected in the level
of transactions in the market, which has more than doubled from
¥15.9 trillion in 1990 to ¥42.3 rrillion in 2006. This is equivalent
to an average annual growth rate of 6%.

From a different perspective, credit cards still account for a
relatively small percentage of total consumer spending in Japan
at less than 15%, compared with over 20% in the United States.
This reflects a strong preference for cash in Japan. Furthermore,
around 90% of credit card debt is settled in full the following
month through bank account payments, The revolving payment
method, which is commen in the United States, makes up only
10% of transactions in Japan. This is because, in Japan, credit
users are required to declare at the time of purchase whether
they will be paying in a lump sum or in instaliments, which is
really a private matter. This uniquely Japanese system is thought
1o influence shoppers to opt for lump-sum payments.

In recent years, credit cards have become widely used to pay
for on-line shopping. and credit cards themselves have become
more versatile thanks to integration with other systems, such as
tC cards and e-money. in addition, credit card payment is now
accepted in areas in which cash was the traditional payment
method, such as public utility charges, insurance premiums and
payments to medical institutions. These changes are expected to
increase the preference for credit cards as the primary means of
payment and result in further market expansion.

Challenges for Credit Card Companies

Despite this market expansion, Japanese credit card companies
will still face major challenges as amendments 1o Money Lending
Business Law take effect. As noted above, revolving payment is
still not common among Japanese credit card users, who siill
show an overwhelming preference for lump-sum payments. As
a result, credit card companies earn most of their income from
interest on cash advances, with card usage fees making only
a small contribution, However, the structure of the consumer
credit market has started to change following the introduction of
maximum interest rates and limits on total lending. and credit




card companies will inevitably face competition from consumer
credit companies in the area of cash advances. Credit card
companies have few branches and rely mainly on non-contact
marketing, They also have no specific advantage in terms of their
lending expertise. To maintain their earning performance, credit
card companies will need to maximize benefits of scale and
create new income streams.

Turning Group Synergies into New Income Streams

The AIFUL Group’s credit card business was launched by LIFE
Co., Lid, in 2001. LIFE has achieved sustained business expansion
by using the AIFUL Group's credit expertise, and by radically
restructuring its existing business operations. In the future, it
will strengthen business fundamenials by modifying its cost
structure to reflect changes in the competitive environment and
by concentrating management resources on its core credit card
business. In the area of consumer card services, LIFE intends to
switch to a business model that avoids excessive reliance on the

loan business. lts basic policies are to realize advantages of scale
by expanding its cardholder base by developing a diverse range
of affliation cards, to improve card utilization rates by enhancing

its services, and to encourage cardholders to use LIFE cards as
their main credit cards.

AIFULs group-level strategy calls for the expansion of corporate
financial services. In line with this policy, LIFE is taking full advantage
of its credit card sertlement and credit capabilities to develop
business card services for small and medium-sized enterprises.

Small-business credit cards are currently the most dynamic
segmeni of the credit card industry in the United States. These
flexible and convenient products, which can be used not only to
make payments but also to meet urgent funding needs, are not yet
widely used in Japan. LIFE has corporate card settlement systems
and a business-customer base consisting mainly of affiliated
merchanits. In addition to these advantages, LIFE is also able to
draw on the corporate scoring expertise developed by AIFUL
Group business loan subsidiaries BUSINEXT and City's and should
be able 1o achieve significant growth in its activities in this area.

We are determined to develop new markets and create new income
sources by maximizing the synergy potential of the AIFUL Group.




Business Lending

AIFUL has identified medium-risk business lending as a growth field.
We are dynamically leveraging our resources and experience to expand our share of this market.

Massive Potential Demand in the Medium-risk Market

The AIFUL Group’s main targets in the business lending market
are small and medium-sized enterprises (SMEs} and sole
proprietorships. According to the White Paper on Small and
Medium Enterprises in Japan, which is published by the Small and
Medium Enterprise Agency, there are approximately 5,200,000
SMEs employing 20 or fewer people (as of 2006). These businesses
constitute a massive potential market for operating funds and
other financial needs.

Traditionally, owners of SMEs have obtained low-interest
finance from megabanks, local banks, shinkin {(credit cooperative}
banks and other sources, using assets, such as real estate, as
collateral. Other possible sources for the financing needs of smaller
businesses include high-interest loans, secured by guarantors, from

specialist commercial money-lenders. However, banks have limited
risk tolerance when lending to SMEs or sole proprietorships,
and they have sought to reduce their non-performing loans by
imposing increasingly demanding conditions, such as the provision
of collateral or the maintenance of positive business performance.
Banks are alsc unable to provide flexible, convenient solutions to
urgent financing needs.

Commercial money-lenders, which specialize in high-risk
lending, have been forced to rethink their business models and
reduce credit costs by tightening their lending criteria, following
the reduction of upper limits on interest rates. These factors are
also limiting further market expansion,

There is enormous demand for finance, including operating
funds, capital investment funds and business expansion funds,
especially in the middle-risk segment of the business loan market.
As this analysis indicates, however, these needs are not being
adequately met,

New Approach Based on Unique Expertise

AIFUL CORPORATION began to market business loans in 1995 to
diversify its products under its comprehensive financial services
group strategdy. Since then we have steadily expanded our
activities in this area. We established BUSINEXT CORPORATION
as a joint venture between AIFUL and Sumitomo Trust & Banking
1o develop the medium-risk market, and we acquired City's,
a loan company specializing in the high-risk segment. Today,
only the AIFUL Group offers multiple brands in the Japanese
business loan market, has established lending expertise based on
sophisticated corporate scoring systems, and maintains a branch
network covering the whole of Japan.

In the future, we will focus in particular on the medium-
risk market. Our goal is to maximize our potential as a group.
including the resources and channels of AIFUL Group companies,
by integrating group-wide marketing and customer attraction
synergies. These policies will allow us to take full advantage of
our accumulated expertise in the area of small and medium-
sized enterprises and sole proprietorships, and to develop business
lending into a second major source of income for the AIFUL Group.




Loan Guarantee Business

We will leverage synergies within the AIFUL Group to develop opportunities

in the business loan guarantee segment.

Working in Partnership with Financial Institutions

Faced with a maturing consumer finance market and escalating
competition over the past few years, major companies have
begun to develop the loan guarantee business in partnership with
financial institutions, as way of securing new cusiomers.

Under this system, the partner financial institutions market
loans as contact points for customer applications and lending,
while consumer finance companies carry out credit checks and
provides loan guarantees. By using consumer finance companies
as guarantee contractors, financial institutions can avoid the
risk of non-performing loans. They can also secure a reliable
income stream simply by marketing loans over the counter to
their customers. The advantages for specialist consumer financial
compantes include the opportunity to make effective use of
their scoring expertise without using their own funds, as well as
potential access to new customers—all the while helping their
financial-institution pariners earn money.

Our Advantage in the Business Loan Guarantee Market

The AIFUL Group provides unsecured consumer loan guarantees
and business loan guarantees through AIFUL and its LIFE subsidiary.
Rival companies also provide these services, but we are dynamically
using the unique expertise of the AIFUL Group to build a position
of advantage in the business loan guarantee market. As described
on the previous page, there is enormous potential demand for
lending to small and medium-sized enterprises, and there is little
competition. AIFUL also has a major competitive advantage in this
market because only the AIFUL Group has developed a scoring
system for small and medium-sized enterprises.

AIFUL CORPORATION currently has business loan guarantee
partnerships with 68 banks, and LIFE with 15. In the current
year alone, these two AIFUL Group companies formed new
partnerships with 21 banks. We are centinuing to focus on the
development of new products for this segment, and on the
establishment of more partnerships.




Special Feature 2:

AIFUL Group’s Proactive Involvement

AIFUL is determined to justify the confidence of its stakeholders
by implementing CSR activities under a new structure.

We are putting our corporate philosophy into practice under a
new CSR implementation structure.

The corporate philesophy of the AIFUL Group is (o earn the support of the public with
sincerity and hard work, We want to put this philosephy into eflect by applying CSR
principles 1o all of our activities. In March 2008, we adopled CSR activity guidelines
requiring all employees to base their actions on a proper understanding of CSR, Our
corporaie philosophy is the cornerstone for CSR activities in five basic areas: management
sysiems, workplaces and working environments, customer-focused initiatives, actions
in response to environmental problems, and sociat contribution and harmony with
communities. Our CSR promotion efforts are administered by the General Administration
Department and the Public Relations Deparument, which provide coordination and support
for activities throughout the AIFUL Group.

Strengthening corporate governance

The corporate governance structure is the foundation for CSR activities, We are working
re build sclid relationships of trust with all stakeholders, including our customers and
shareholders by enhancing our systems and policies, by providing appropriate disclosure,
and by developing high-quality management systems with a high standard of transparency.

In the year ended March 2008. we established the Risk Management Commiiuiee and
expanded the Compliance Monitoring Department. Other improvermnents 1o cur governance
structure included the introduction of an executive officer sysiem. and the establishment of
a Corporate Auditors” Office.

we also adepted a Compliance Code of Conduct as a practical compliance guideline. These
provide specific information about the attitudes and behavior required as business people with
high ethical standards and a social conscience to meet the expeciations of all slakeholders. We

are now implementing various measures 1o inform all employees about these requirements.

Encouraging employees to achieve personal growth as citizens
of the business community.

The reform process has only just begun. but there are already clear signs of changes in
employee perceptions of CSR. Our continuing corporate growth depends on the abiliiy of
our employees o earn the trust of society by [ulfilling their social responsibilities as citizens
of the business community.

we will continue to expand and develop our CSR activities, and to enhance our
corporate value by developing an environment in which all employees will experience
enjoyment and pride through their work with the AIFUL Group.
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Major changes are occurring in
employee attitudes toward compliance.
Employees now take the initiative

in offering opinions and ideas,

and signs of the newly forming

corporate culture emerge daily. ?9

Director, Managing Executive Officer,
Compliance Monitoring Department

Shintaro Hashima

Management

policies are the

foundation of CSR

commitmeni.
CSR is driven by a
management structure
based on a corporate
philosophy that encompasses
corporate governance,
compliance systems and risk
managerment systems.

AIFULs 10-Point Code of Conduct

= Legal compliance
We pledge to act in accordance with laws,
company rules and regulations,

and the standards of public decency.

* Group complignce
We will do our utmost to
build an AIFUL Group
that is respected by
customers and
society as a

whole.



Management Systems

AIFULs evolving corporate culture is firmly grounded on respect for compliance.

1. What is your basic stance on corporate governance?

Simply put, our priority is to maintain steady progress toward
the implementation of our new corporate philosophy, which
is to earn the support of the public with sincerity and hard
work. In the past, our three core values were good faith, hard
work and trust. To these we have added a fourth core value:
gratitude. Gratitude is essential to our efforts to build a solid
foundation of trust with all of our stakeholders, including our
customers. These are the four cornerstones of cur approach
to corporate governance.

Q2.

What are your thoughts on corporate governance?

The Compliance Monitoring Department is primarily responsible
for compliance promotion. The specific activities of this unit
include the proposal of compliance-related policies and the
monitoring of progress. The Compliance Monitoring Department
also convenes the monthly meetings of the Compliance
Committee. The membership of the Compliance Committee
includes outside experts and the corporate auditors. It deliberates
on everything from issues with internal control systems to the
prevention of problem recurrence.

In the year ended March 2008, we further strengthened
our governance structure by introducing an executive officer
system and establishing a risk management committee and
the Corporate Auditors’ Office. At present, we are considering
individuals for appointment as outside directors.

Q3. How is compliance maintained
in individual organizational units?

We have appointed compliance officers in every section. As
-of March 31, 2008, there were approximately 280 compliance
officers. Their task is to strengthen compliance by promoting and
menitoring compliance in the workplace and by submitting regular
progress reports ta the Compliance Monitoring Department.
Another workplace-level initiative is the “Executive Caravan”

program. Under this program, executives visit workplaces
to speak directly with employees. As of June 30, 2008,
approximately 18 months after inception of the program,
executives had made 861 workplace visits and met with a total
of 9,046 employees.

Q4. How would you assess the effectiveness

of these activities?

I sense a real change in the attitudes of both management
and employees. To implement reforms, we must be sensitive
to attitudes in the workplace. At the same time, management
must convince employees personally that their commitment
to change is genuine. We have these qualities. That is why our
employees are actively putting forward opinions and ideas.
Only by reconciling respect for compliance with the ability
to earn profits, can we hope to improve our corporate value.
I sense that we are now evolving a new corporate culture in
which this will be possible, and | believe that we are making
real progress toward a new growth phase.

Foundations of Corporate Culture

ALFUL Group Core

Emplayee Values

e

Defining values

Mental auitude Conduct guidelines

Corporate Philosophy
AIFLLs 10-Poimt Code
ol Conduct

Comphance Code of Conduct

Husiness Code

& ment Principles
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Workplaces and Working Environments

The recognition of people as our ultimate resource is reflected in our new human resource
management policy and in the creation of new workplace environments.

Q1. What is your basic thinking on the role of people

in the AIFUL Group?

In April 2007, we adopted our employment principles as
guidelines for the human resource policies that we need in
order to put our new management philosophy into practice and
fulfill our action program commitment (o the development of
stimulating workplaces. We have identified three fundamental
requirements in our employment principles. First, human resource
policies, including deployment, evaluation, terms of employrment
and skill development, must be based on a systematic, long-
term approach. Second, we must foster a workplace culture
that allows employees to achieve personal growth through their
_\'mrk and experience a sense of motivation and achievement.
. Third, we must recognize people as our ultimate resource. These
- requirements also form the basis of the new human resource

~ managernent system introduced in April 2008.

Q2. What are the centrai features of the

L

new human resource management system?

I think the key concept is achieving a balance between
gentleness and rigor. Under our new system, we are doing
everything possible, including the enhancement of our employee
welfare provisions, 1o ensure that our employees can work with
peace of mind. At the same time, we have introduced qualifying
exams for in-house advancement and objective and muliifaceted
appraisal processes. Our thinking on human resource
management also emphasizes a long-term, planned approach.
Our approach to employee transfers and skill development now
reflects this long-term perspective, with systems in these areas
taking account of the wishes and goals of employees.

Q3. What systems have to be established with the aim of

‘creating workplaces in which employees can work
* with peace of mind?

1 believe that enhancements to our employee welfare systems
are significant in this regard. We support our employees
totally through a range of measures, including child education
allowances, assistance with house purchases and long-term

Q4.

Q5.

employment bonuses. In the past, women tended to stay in
employment for a relatively short period of time. Under our
new systems, they will feel more confident to build careers,
and that will add greater depth to our human resource pool.
Our basic philosophy emphasizes long-term employment,
and we want o develop working environmenis in which
employees will feel confident to stay with us for many years.

What specific methods
do you use to evaluate personnel?

The system we used in the past was weighted toward results-
based evaluation. Basically, employees were evaluated
on an absolute scale. We now recognize that there were
problems with this approach, and we have introduced a goal
management system that focuses on the work attitudes of
employees. Goals are not imposed unilaterally from above.
Instead, employees achieve growth by establishing and
sharing goals in consultation with their supervisors. We not
only evaluate numerical resulis, but also place emphasis
on operational processes, such as, in the case of marketing
personnel, for example, branch management and marketing
skills and training of subordinates.

What effects have you seen from the
new human resource management system?

Employees say that they are now communicating more with
their supervisors, and that the mood in the workplace has
changed. | feel that the environment has started to change.
Basically, work should not be imposed by another, but rather
created by oneself according to one's own thinking. We aim to
foster this sense of independence, this ability © think, within
our corporate environment. The new system was only recently
introduced, but 1 expect to see real benefits in the near future.
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¢ AIFUL is developing an environment in which . \
people feel confident to advance their careers after ~ (44 Goals should not be imposed from above.
marvriage or childbirth. This promotion of diversity They should be adopted in parsership
in the workplace offers real advantages ro women, 99 . and achieved through shared effort.
We want to create an environment in
Personnel Department, which individuals feel free to think for

Recruitment Section
Kaori Matsuda

themselves and create their own work.
From a long-term planning perspective,

1 believe that everyone wanis to develop
working environments in which they can
enjoy a sense of motivation and achievement, 99

Manager, Personnel Department,
Recruitment Section

Norio Nakanishi

Employee
satisfaction
is a viral
CSR indicator.
The employment
principles adopted in

our new human resgurce
management system seck (o
devetop workplaces in which
individuals can gain satisfaction 3
and fulfillment.
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* Building a fuifilling workplace . N
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Vital to
CSR is the
conduct of
business based
©N Our CUSLoOMmer-
first phitosophy,
always—through
products to meet

¢¢

Putting the customer first is

4 fundamental principle for us.
Our new business values reflect
the views of countless front-line
employees, and all employees
are working together to put
them into practice. 99

Kinki Loan Business Department,
Shijo-Omiya Branch

Keiko Tanaka

customers’ needs,

Customer# |

r
fi
\

~

A ."5‘

‘\\_/‘/1 " For Oury. Y

customer-influenced
management pelicies and public
infermation through
the Liaison Group of Consumer Finance
Companies.

AIFULs 10-Point Cede of Conduct
* Customer first policy
The customer is our number-one prioriry
—we will strive to provide appropriate
services that offer customers
peace of mind.




For Our Customers

Our new business values return us to the fundamental principle of putting the customer first, always.

Q1. Your philosophy is to “put the customer first, always.”

What does this mean?

The AIFUL Group’s business could not exist without customers.
That is why we have made the principle of putting the customer
first the foundation stone of our philosophy. Unfortunately,
in our hasie t0 maximize our earnings, we have sometimes
lost sight of this vital principle. We regret this, and we have
decided to return to the basics by considering once again what
putting the customer first really means. We intend to apply the
customer-first principle to all facets of our business activities.
By putting this philosophy into practice, we will earn the trust
of our customers, and that will be reflected in higher corporate
earnings. 1 believe that the customer-first principle is ultimately
linked to the realization of our corporate philosophy of earning
the support of the public with sincerity and hard work.

Q2. What is your basic stance on marketing activities?

As part of our current reform process, we have established
new business values through intensive discussion of various
issues, from the perspective of our customer-first philosophy,
including our stance on business activities and the methods
used. These business values are the starting point for
customer-focused compliance and will be the model for all
business activities. In keeping with this primary commitment
to a customer-centered approach, our mission is to meet the
needs of as many custormers as possible.

In compiling our business values, we sought out the views of
courtless front-line employees through employee questionnaires
and discussion sessions with branch managers. These initiatives
were essential to the implementation of reforms affecting the
entire corporate organization. The wishes of our employees are
directly reflected in these policies, and 1 am determined to put
them into effect in partnership with those employees.

Q5.

Q4.

What steps are you taking to reform
your business activities?

We are applying our business values both from the bottom
up and from the top down. On monthty compliance days, we
hold seminars in all organizational units. There are also regular
seminars for branch managers, who are responsible for front-
line activities, In the year ended March 2008, we held a total
of around 1,200 of these seminars. We have also introduced
counselor training for employees in the specialist departments
that handle repayment demands. There are in-house exams (¢
monitor learning progress.

We are also working to implement our customner-first
philosophy through bottom-up initiatives. For example, we
have appointed customer sartisfaction (CS) advisors at all
business sites to identify areas requiring improvement from
the perspective of front-line staff. We have produced customer-
first checklists and held seminars on customer satisfaction and
employee manners. Through activities such as these we are
encouraging employees to apply our new business values o
their thinking and actions.

How would you assess the results of these measures?

According to a survey of all employees held in November 2007,
the percentage of employees who support what the AIFUL
Group is trying to do has risen by over 10% in the past year
to stand at over 80%. We received many positive comments
from employees. Some emphasized that AIFULs future success
depends on the efforts of individual employees, while others
said that we needed to surpass customer expectaiions with
the quality of our services. There were also opinions and
suggestions about future improvements. The survey results
were indicative of a major shift in employee attitudes. We need
to take these initiatives further. We also need to encourage self-
motivated efforts based on a consiant awareness of issues,
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Contributing to the Environment and Society

Q2.
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Q1.

We have a new awareness of corporate social responsibility, especially environmental and
social contribution initiatives involving employee participation.

What is the positioning of environmental and
social contribution activities in your CSR policy?

In March 2008, we adopted the CSR Promotion Policies as a
framework for company-wide CSR activities. These policies
cover five areas: management systems, workplaces and
working environments, customer-focused initiatives, actions in
response to environmental problems and social contribution
and harmony with communities.

The first three of these five policies form the core of our
CSR activities. We have implemented a variety of initiatives
in these three areas as part of our recent management
philosophy reform process, and we will continue to work in
these areas. However, we have been less active in the other
two areas—actions in response to environmental problems
and social contribution and harmony with communities. We
now see these areas as vital to the stimulation of interest
in CSR activities, since employees can gain a real sense of
personal involvement through participation. The General
Administration Department also performs the role of a CSR
Secretariat. In the future, the department intends to work in
this capacity to promote a wide range of initiatives in which
employees may become involved.

What actions have you taken
in response to environmental problems?

One initiative that is becoming increasingly popular throughout
the AIFUL Group is the Ecocap Movement™. This activity began
as an independen initiative by some individual departments.
However, employees in other departments soon heard about it
and began inquiring with the aim of starting up programs in
their own departments. Today, the entire AIFUL organization is
involved, Similarly, after Green Fund™ vending machines were
installed in our head office, employees in other depaniments also
began 10 ask for these machines in their workplaces. | see these
activities as indicative of growing environmental awareness
among individual ernployees.

We are also working to reduce CO, emissions. At our main
business sites, we have implemented the “Cool Biz” program,
an initiative by the Japanese Ministry of the Environment to
reduce air conditioner use by allowing staff to remove ties and
jackets in the summer months. Last year we cut emissions

Q3.

Q4.

of CO, by arcund 170 tons compared to the level before the
introduction of the program. We are continually expanding
our environmental activities, which also include participation
in the Team Minus 6% program as a way of contributing to
the achievernent of Japan’s Kyoio Protocol obligation to cut its
CO, emissions by 6% compared with the 1990 level.

What activities are you implementing under your
policy on social contribution and harmony
with communities?

For many years we have supported various public service
organizations. In the future, we will take steps to clarify
our stance and objectives. We also give priority to activities
based on employee participation. Since summer 2007, we
have carried out community clean-up projects in the area
around our head office building. Loca! residents tell us they
appreciate these efforts.

In October 2007, we introduced a voluntary activity
leave system Lo support and encourage voluntary work by
employees. One employee who took part in a voluntary
program reported that he had gained a new awareness of
the joy of being thanked for efforts. Many of our employees
also participate in voluntary programs on weekends. We
are actively supporting these activities and helping to create
environment conducive to CSR participation by providing
secretariat services.

What steps will you take in response to
future challenges?

One challenge is to ensure that employees have a proper
general understanding of CSR. Many people equate CSR
with social contribution, but it is important to recognize that
all corporate activities are CSR. We aim 1o focus on activities
that will allow us to make a contribution to society within
thar framework.
*1, The aim of the Ecocap Movement is (o collect and recycle the caps of
PET bottles and to use the maney raised to pay for polio vaccines for

use in developing countries. At the end of April 2008, the AIFUL Group
donated sufficient caps to pay for 361 doses of vaccine,

*2. Under this system, ¥10 is donated to the Green Fund for every eligible
product purchased. The funds raised in this way are used for forest
development activities, including tree planting and pruning.




¢ We have adoptedffive clear policies on
corporate social fesponsibility (GSR) activities.
The large number of ideas put forward by
“2 . employees in rplation ro envir?nmmml and
p " social contribition activities is indicative of
gra?u“ihg,aiu reness. We value this input from
i our employges, and we will continue to expa
and enharfce our GSR activities.
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AIFULs 10-Point Code of Conduct

= Contribution to society
We will delight in contributing to
the berterment of society

through our work.

-

~~

To protect the
global environ-
ment as a good
corporate citizen,
AIFUL Group participates
in the Cool Biz and
Warm Biz programs and sorts
and recycles waste,

We will continue to meet the needs
of our customers and society.
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W AIFUL CORPORATION

AIFUL CORPORATION

Establishing group-wide compliance systems and updated cost structures under
new business models to take the AIFUL Group into a new growth phase.

Selection and Concentration
with Increased Emphasis on Efficiency

As the core company, AIFUL CORPORATION accounts for over 60%
of the Group's loan balance. In addition to unsecured loans, which
are AIFULs major business activity, AIFUL CORPCRATION handles
home equity loans and small business loans to sole proprietorships.
We also provide loan guarantees for individuals and small
businesses in partnership with other financial institutions.

We face escalating competition for unsecured loans from an influx
of new players into the market from other industries, We are also
affected by temporary market shrinkage caused by the enforcerent
of the amended Money Lending Business Law;, the tightening of credit
criteria by lenders, and the postponement of borrowing decisions
by customers. However, customer needs still exist, and we believe
that the market will stabilize again once the transition to the 20%
interesi rate ceiling is complete. The withdrawal of smaller lenders
from the market is reducing the number of suppliers and benefiting
the surviving lenders in a number of ways, including expanding loan
balances and improved asset quality.

AIFUL CORPORATION is preparing to enter a new growth phase
under a management strategy of selection and concentration.
The aim of this strategy is to optimize the atlocation of our
management resources.

Overview of Business Performance
in the Year Ended March 2008

In the year under review, we placed priority on the improvement
of internal control systems for the entire AIFUL organization.
Measures included reinforcement of our compliance management,
and the development of new rules and regulations. We improved
our cast structure, including consolidation of our branch network,
At the same time, we added further strength to our new income
structure by tightening lending criteria, bringing forward the
schedule for reducing our maximum interest rate, and introducing
new products, such as leans for specific purposes.

These measures were reflected in reduced revenue and higher
income in the year ended March 2008, The balance of loans
outstanding declined by 18.5% year on year to ¥1,058,879
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million, and operating revenue was 22.5% lower at ¥233,039
million. However, ordinary income amounted to ¥22, 191 million,
and net income was ¥27,069 million.

The main reasons for lower revenue were a smaller top line
resulting from the application of tighter lending criteria and the
impact of lower interest rates. However, our cost restructuring
efforts brought good progress toward the reduction of labor and
other costs. In addition, our results were no longer affected by the
extraordinary items recorded in the previous year, including the
provision for substantial interest refund reserves. The dramatic
reduction in operating expenses was reflected in higher income.

Segment Review

Loans

Looking beyond the temporary market disruption caused by the
full implementation of the amended Money Lending Business
taw, we moved early to reduce our future exposure to bad loans
by implementing tighter lending criteria in Cctober 2006. We
maintained this stance in the year ended March 2008. As a result,
the number of new loan contracts signed in the core category
of unsecured loans declined by 25.7% year on year to 115,000,
despite a 4.8% recovery in the number of new applications
received, which totaled 324,000. The balance of loans ourstanding
also declined, with a 17.8% fall from the previous year's level (o
¥817.824 million.

We radically revised our product designs and marketing methods
for home equity loans and small business loans and adopted a more
cautious lending stance. The balance of home equity loans declined
by 19.4% year on year to ¥221,577 million, while the balance of
small business loans was 32.2% lower at ¥19,477 million.

Credit Guarantees

We are working to strengthen our business infrastructure in this
area, which we see as a future growth market. In the year ended
March 2008, we expanded our involvement in loan guaraniees
for individuals and small businesses in partnership with financial
institutions. We also launched a new scheme in partnership with
chambers of commerce and industry and began to provide credit
guarantees for members of those organizations.




In the year ended March 2008, we formed new partnerships
with 11 financial institutions and provided guaramniees for 44
companies in the area of unsecured loans to individuals, and for
68 companies in the unsecured small business loan category.
While the balance of guarantees on loans to individuals declined
by 8.8% to ¥34,826 million because of increased competition,
AIFULs unique knowledge of business lending helped it 1o
increase the balance of small business loan guarantees by 3.2%
to ¥21,397 million.

Progress on Cost Restructuring

In January 2007 we announced plans for the reorganization and
cost restructuring of the AIFUL Group. In the year ended March
2008, we continued to review our branch strategy and personnel
deployment under this plan, and the entire AIFUL organization
worked to minimize operating expenses, including advertising
costs and system development Costs.

We closed 795 unmanned branches in the year under review,
in addition to 410 manned outlets closed in the previous year.
This total includes 266 branches with Suguwaza simplified auto-
application machines. As a resuit, we have now largely reached
our goal of 1,000 manned and unmanned outlets at the non-

Cost Restructuring
—~Changes in Operating Expenses

(Milliens of Yen)
B Advertising expenses

103,055 104,183 B Commissions

[ salaries
83'268 Wl Office and land rents
| - Others
-
u B T Note: Figures exclude financial
| expenses, credit costs
L and interest refund-

053 06/3 073  08/3 related costs.

]

consolidated level. Any reduction in the number of branches
inevitably affects customer convenience. To minimize the impact,
we built up our network of ATMs and cash dispensers to 107,000
units as of March 2008 by aggressively partnering with financial
institutions and convenience stores. We also maintained service
quality by centralizing some branch operations in contact centers
and increasing center staffing levels, and by improving efficiency
and computerizing operations, These measures allowed us to
reduce our workforce by 936 year on year to 3,472.

We worked aggressively to cut operating costs, including a
reduction in advertising media achieved by reviewing our use
of advertising media. We also cut system-related expenses by
sharing systems with other AIFUL Group companies, and by
curbing the development of new systems.

These cost restructuring measures allowed us to commence
marketing of loans at rates of up to 18% interest to new customers
from August 2007. We also stepped up marketing of low-interest
products to existing quality custormers, and the percentage of
cusiomers with unsecured loans provided by AIFUL CORPORATION
(non-consolidated) at interest rates within the limits stipulated in
the Interest Rate Restriction Law improved from 1% in March
2007 to 32% at the end of March 2008.

Outlock for the Year Ending March 2009

We expect challenging business conditions to persist in the year
ending March 2009. Income will be affected by tighter lending
criteria and lower interest rates, even as we face escalating
competitien for guality customers.

This situation is reflected in our forecast decline in the balance
of outstanding loans by 14.8% to ¥902,51 million, and operating
revenue by 24.2% 10 ¥176,676 million. However, income will start
to benefit from our cost restructuring efforts, and we also expect
to see indications that bad debt costs have peaked. We have
ample resources to cover interest refunds, since we have already
provided sufficient reserves to cover the full amount that could
be incurred in the future. On this basis, we are predicting that
ordinary income will increase by 17.2% year on year to ¥26,000
million, and net income by 14.3% t0 ¥30,931 million.




LIFE Co., Ltd.

Strengthening the credit card business and maximizing synergies by fully exploiting the potential of
LIFE Card credit services and settlement functions within the Group.

Dynamic Expansion of Core Credit Card Business

LIFE Co., Ltd. is involved in the credit sales and credit card areas.
Since becoming a subsidiary of AIFUL CORPORATION in March
2001, it has targeted three areas—credit card shopping, card cash
advances and the new-style bank loan guarantee segment—
achieving dynamic expansicn and susiained growth.

In the year ended March 2008, LIFE continued to give priarity
1o the restructuring of its business portfolio to maximize its earning
performance and growth potential. Receivables outstanding in
the business areas targeted for expansion, including credit card
shopping,. increased by 5.2% year on year to almost 60% of totat
receivables outstanding.

Recent changes to the law affected the per-item shopping loan
business and the unsecured loan business. LIFE reviewed its cost
structures in these areas and reduced receivables by about 5%
year on year to a little more than 30% of its total receivables.

LIFE has decided to withdraw from business activities that
contribute little to earnings, including traditional bank guarantees
and auto loans. In the year under review, it reduced receivables in
these areas to less than 10% of total receivables.

LIFE is a key element in the AIFUL Group's comprehensive
financial services strategy. As of March 31, 2008, it accounted
for 32.7% of the Group's total receivables and 29.3% of its
operating revenue.

Changes in Business Portfolio

Downsizing
businesses

40.2%

B Credit card shapping

W Credit card cash advances

W Bark loan guarantees (new products)

Cash Plaza
0 a3
(W Per-item shopping toans Total Receivables
Oustanding

[l Fartners (aute loans. etc.)
¥606.513 million

Il Housing loans
Il Bank Joan guarantees (previous products}
I Others

Stable businesses
28.0%
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_ Growth businesses

31 .8%

Overview of Performance
in the Year Ended March 2008

LIFE’s results for the year under review show lower revenue but
higher income. The balance of receivables outstanding deciined
by 9.0% from the previous year's level to ¥653,045 million,
while operating revenue was 6.8% lower at ¥120,667 million.
Ordinary income amounted to ¥5,183 million, and net income
was ¥3,427 million.

Despite strong growth in the credit card segment, revenue
declined, partially as a result of the introduction of the new 18%
interest rate ceiling for new or additional cash advances made
from December 2007 onwards. Another factor was the continuing
application of stringent credit criteria to loans provided through
LIFE Cashing Plazas. Revenue was also affected by reductions
in per-item shopping foans. Factors contributing to the increase
in income included lower credit-related costs, especially interest
refunds and bad loan charge-offs, as well as the reduction of
operating expenses through cost restructuring.

Credit Cards

LIFE enhanced customer services by issuing affinity cards with a
wide range of partners, including major medical institutions and
companies in industries ranging from distribution to temporary
staffing. Other improvements included extending the validity of

Downsizing
businesses

2.1%

08/3 Growth
_— Total Receivables businesses
Quistanding 57 3
illi A )
Siable ¥653,045 million
businesses
33.6%



awarded points, the reduction of cash advance interest rates, and
strengthened security systems. LIFE also added a new service
1o its proprietary LIFE Card, which can now be used with NTT
DOCCOMO's iD™ buy-now-pay-later e-money service.

In the year ended March 2008, LIFE issued 1.84 million new
LIFE Cards. There was a net increase of 750,000 cardholders,
bringing the total to 14.81 million. LIFE also worked to increase
card usage and encourage cardholders to make LIFE Cards their
main cards. Initiatives included a campaign to encourage paying
utility bills using LIFE Cards and the establishment of the LIFE
Be Store, an Internet shopping site established in collaboration
with an IT company. Purchases from the LIFE Be Store can only
be paid for using a LIFE Card. Credit card shopping transaction
volume in the year under review increased by 18.4% year on
year {0 ¥664,791 miliion. This is the sixth consecutive year of
double-digit growth.

Per-item Shopping Loans

The entire market is shrinking because of tighter regulatory
requirements for lenders by changes to the Installment Sales Law
intended to raise consumer protection. LIFE anticipated these shifts
in the external environment and implemented major changes in
its rules for business with affiliated merchants, including tougher
screening criteria, in the previous year. In the year ended March
2008, it strengthened screening criteria as part of its efforts to
provide quality services in the area of per-item shopping loans. As
a result of these measures, per-item shopping lean transactions
declined by 65.1% year on year to ¥11,341 million.

Loan Guarantees

LIFE established new partnerships with ten financial institutions
amid continuing efforts to expand sales of its products, including
its new LIFE Business Loan guarantees. In the year ended March
2008, LIFE provided guarantees for 131 companies in the area of
unsecured loans to individuals, and for 15 companies in the business
loan category. However, the total balance of loan guarantees
declined by 11.5% year on year to ¥73,486 million. The decline
resulted in part from the reduction of the balance of traditional bank
guarantees, which made a limited contribution to earnings, and a
flat trend in the acquisition of business based on new-type products.

Loans

LIFE reviewed its lending criteria in the year ended March 2008. It
also continued its efforts to attract new customers for the enhanced
product line-up introduced in the previous year, including business
loans secured by real estate, and loans for specific purposes.
Under the AIFUL Group’s business rationalization strategy, LIFE
took over approximately ¥21,339 miltion in receivables from four
consumer finance subsidiaries of AIFUL Group in December 2007,
The balance of loans outstanding declined by 4.1% year on year to
¥380,191 million,

Outlook for the Year Ending March 2009

In the year ending March 2009, LIFE will continue to focus on the
improvement of customer services with the aim of encouraging
cardholders o use the LIFE Card as their main card. LIFE also
plans to enhance its online registration system and actively market
high-use proprietary cards. One of LIFE’s advantages over rival
companies is its branch network, and it will actively leverage this
resource to attract new affiliated merchants and card tie-up partners.
LIFE will also continue to develop future income sources by using
the corporate lending know-how of the AIFUL Group to add credit
and payment functions to the LIFE Card, and by actively promoting
corporate card services for small and medium-sized enterprises.

However, external conditions are likely to remain difficult
because of taw changes and other factors. Tighter lending criteria
will cause the loan balance to decline, and earnings will also be
affected by interest rate cuts. In the year ending March 2009, both
revenue and income are expected to decline, with the balance
of loans outstanding falling by 5.2% year on year Lo ¥618,992
million, and operating revenue by 17.1% to ¥100,091 million.
Ordinary income is projected to decline by 42.1% to ¥3,000
million, and net income by 57.6% to ¥1,453 million.
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BUSINEXT CORPORATION

BUSINEXT has used its unique credit know-how to build a business based on

medium-risk business lending.

Financial Services for Medium-risk Business Owners

BUSINEXT, which specializes in financial services for medium-
risk business owners, was established in January 2001 as a joint
venture between AIFUL and Sumitomo Trust & Banking, with
AIFUL owning 60% of shares and Sumitomo Trust & Banking
40% . Since its establishment, BUSINEXT has maintained steady
growth driven by expanding demand, Currently its customer
base includes approximately 44,000 small and medium-sized
businesses and sole proprietarships.

A deteriorating business environment for small and medium-
sized companies and a sharp rise in the number of bankruptcies
have created challenging conditions in the small business
tending market. However, there is still substantial latent demand
for operating funds, and this segment is seen as an extremely
promising business area in the medium- to long-term perspective.
The AIFUL Group has identified this segment as a growth business.
BUSINEXT will maintain a cautious stance while continuing 1o
build its business base to support future expansion.

Unique Business Model Geared toward Timely Lending

BUSINEXT’s most important advantage is a unigue business
model designed to support the timely provision of unsecured, non-
guaranteed loans. Knowledge and experience accumulated since
its establishment have allowed BUSINEXT to develop an advanced
scoring system for sole proprietorships and small and medium-sized
enterprises (SMEs). Lending decisions are based on comprehensive
assessments that include not simply business size and past
performance, but also the financial position and management
character of each business. BUSINEXT provides timely solutions to
a wider range of customer needs, with decisions taking as little as
three days for its flagship Card Loan and Business Loan products.

In addition to non-contact marketing, such as conventional
direct mail methods, BUSINEXT also emphasizes face-to-face
marketing with customers who visit its 10 branches in major
cities. By combining these two marketing methods, BUSINEXT
is able to differentiate its services from those provided by banks
and specialist commercial lenders, reduce operating costs and

maintain and improve customer satisfaction.

Overview of Business Performance
in the Year Ended March 2008

In the year under review, BUSINEXT responded to a deteriorating
business outlook for SMEs by cutting advertising costs and
maintaining a cautious lending stance. This timely adaptation to a
changing envirenmeru also included an increased emphasis on the
marketing of home equity loans, which provide greater security.

Revenue was higher, but income was lower in the year ended
March 2008. The balance of loans outstanding increased by 1.0%
year on year to ¥83,192 million, and operating revenue by 1.7%
higher to ¥11,348 million. Ordinary income was adversely affected
by customer loan defaults and other factors, and there was a
76.5% vyear-on-year decline to ¥263 million, while net income was
87.9% lower at ¥79 million.

Conditions are expected to remain difficult, with market
upheaval causing slower growth in the loan balance and
persistently high bad loan charge-offs, among other effects. These
factors are reflected in a forecast of reduced revenue and income
in the year ending March 2009. The loan balance is expected
to increase by i.9% year on year to ¥84,803 million. Operating
revenue is expected to decline by 3.5% to ¥10,946 million, ordinary
income by 66.6% to ¥88 million, and net income by 72.3% to
¥22 million. However, BUSINEXT has already taken steps to meet
current challenges, including the reinforcement of initial recovery
operations through the allocation of additional personnel to
receivables management. [t has alsc improved its scoring system.
The effects of these measures, combined with the easing of market
upheavals, are expected to bring a return to growth,




City's

City’s Corporation

City's is developing new approaches to business by combining group synergies
with its accumulated knowledge and experience in the field of lending to sole proprietorships

and small and medium-sized enterprises.

Specialist in High-risk Business Lending

A consolidated subsidiary since October 2002, City's specializes in
high-risk lending, including business loans and hormne equity loans,
o sole proprietorships and small and medium-sized businesses.
Under AIFUL's comprehensive financial services strategy, it
complements BUSINEXT's medium-risk business lending,

City's line-up provides two key advaniages. One is convenient,
customer-focused financial products for scle proprietorships
and small and medium-sized businesses that would otherwise
be unable to obtain adequate financing because of credit risk
or other factors, The other is high-quality service from loan
assistants assigned directly to individual customers, Its flagship
product is the Business Loan, which is backed by years of
experience and advanced screening expertise. City's has also used
the AIFUL Group's corporate scoring know-how to develop the
Super Business Loan, a low-interest product with no guarantor
reguirement. Another popular City's service based on AIFULs
expertise is home equity lending 10 businesses.

Overview of Business Performance
in the Year Ended March 2008

City's is preparing for the effects of the amended Money Lending
Business Law by reviewing its branch strategy and personnel
deployment as part of the AIFUL Group’s cost restructuring plans.
It is also shifting from door-to-door marketing to mass marketing
and building new income structures in partnership with other
organizations, including commercial and industrial associations.
Despite the tighter lending criteria in the year ended March
2008, the balance of loans outstanding increased by 3.1% year
on year 10 ¥60,147 million. This reflects an increased emphasis
on home equity loans, which provide enhanced security, and the
aggressive expansion of business based on partnerships with
various organizations. However, the rising percentage of low-
interest products in the loan portfolio caused operating revenue
10 decline by 27.9% (o ¥9,766 million. Operating expenses
were reduced through cost restructuring, but City's adopted a
conservative stance on pravision for loan-loss reserves because
of the persistently high level of non-performing loans. These and

other factors were reflected in an ordinary loss of ¥t,344 million
and a net loss of ¥1,621 million.

While business conditions are likely to remain difficult in the
year ending March 2009, the incidence of non-performing loans is
expected to decline, leading to & reduction in credit costs. In addition,
the benefits of cost restructuring and business model changes
are expected o emerge. On this basis, City's is predicting that its
balance of loans outstanding will increase by 10.0% to ¥66,164
million, and its operating revenue by 10.9% to ¥8,702 million. Both
ordinary income and net income are expecied (0 return o positive
figures at ¥1,405 million and ¥1,467 million respectively.

Business-lending Loans Qutstanding

Millions of Yen) I BUSINEXT
B Ciry's
82328 8319z 84803
73,110
67,857 66,164
58,316 [ 60.147
"”’i 45,673 | |
0513 063 o7I3 08/3 093 (B)
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SIX-YEAR SUMMARY

AIFUL Corporation and Consolidated Subsidiaries
Years endgd March 31 2003 2004 2005
FOR THE YEAR:
Total income 451,168 479,473 520,737
Total expenses 343,715 375,659 391,295
Credit costs 138,479 157,349 155,466
Income (Loss) before income taxes and
minority interests 107,453 103,814 129,442
Income taxes 47,426 41,016 53,015
Deferred income taxes (10,129 (5.158) 11,990
Net income (l0ss) 59911 62,548 75,723
AT YEAR-END:
Loans 1,670,782 1,786,940 1,995,622
Bad debts 120,399 149,826 175,136
Loans in legal bankruptcy 20,830 28.637 31,020
Nonaccruai loans 39,897 52.452 60,283
Accruing loans contraciually past due
three months or more as to principal
OrT interest payments 16,503 17.820 21,049
Restructured loans 43,169 50,917 62,784
Total assets 2,282,113 2,332,761 2,574,286
Allowance for bad debts 132,130 145,757 159,483
Total liabilities 1,792,003 1,780,575 1,951,548
Interest-bearing debt 1,504,969 1,513,812 1,673,458
Minority interests 4,029 4,682 5385
Total equity 485,991 547,504 617,353
PER SHARE DATA (YEN):
Basic net income (loss) 42506 440.65 533.57
Diluted net income — - 533.53
Total equity 3,428.97 3,863.06 4,358.69
Cash dividends 60 60 60
RATIO (%):
Equity ratio 21.3 23.5 24.0
ROGE 13.2 12.1 13.0
ROA 2.8 2.7 3.1
OTHER DATA:
Number of shares outstanding at year-end 94,690,000 94 690,000 142,035,000
Number of employees at year-end 6,123 5,969 6,510
(Reference) 2003 2004 2005
Operating revenue 449.458 473,458 518416
Ordinary income (loss) 111,797 112,446 135,294
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(Millions of yen}

2006 2007 2008
548,818 501,009 402,389
436,045 873.272 371,491
166,047 447,375 155,930
112,773 (372,263) 30,898
45375 40,529 3,275
(145) 24,734 (3,251)
65,827 (411,251) 27,434
2,124,017 1,912,689 1,598,706
203,800 328,046 343,768
33,446 43,008 46,895
80,721 180.819 189,721
27.564 36,665 29,351
62.069 67.554 77,801
2,790,969 2.214,559 2,041,128
171,715 407,573 330,415
2,102.310 1,957,415 1,716,608
1,792,746 1,530,262 1,354,089
6,965 5,420 5,604
681,694 257,145 324,521
464.84 (2.903.85) 190.77
464.69 — 186.86
4,813.45 1,777.44 1,909.46
60 60 40
24.4 114 15.6
10.1 (88.1) 9.6
2.5 (16.4) 1.3
142,035,000 142,035,000 167,475,000
6.675 6,477 5,138
2006 2007 2008
549 548 499,031 405,784
126,964 (163,092) 32,066

MNotes

3%

w

. Starting in 2003, equity per share, net income

per share, and diluted net income per share were
calculated based on the Accounting Standard for
Earnings Per Share (Accounting Standard No. 2)
and the Implementation Guidance for Accounting
Standard for Earnings Per Share (Implementation
Guidance for Accounting Standard No. 4).

. On May 23. 2005. each common, par vatue share

held as of March 3!, 2005, was split into 1.5
shares according 10 the provisions of Article 218
of the Japanese Commercial Code. As a result,
the ousstanding stock volume increased by
47,345,000 shares.

Net income and total equity per share for all
the fiscal years shown in the table through
March 2005 were calculated as if the May 23,
2005 stock split had been implemented at the
beginning of the term:.

. On February 28, 2008, 25,440,000 new shares

were issued through altocation of new sharesto a
third party.
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FINANCIAL DATA

AIFUL GROUP

(Millions of yen)

TOTAL RECEIVABLES OUTSTANDING {Managed Asset Basis)

(Millions of yen)

2004 | 2005 2006 . 2007
3,009,000 - - Total Receivables Outstanding | 2.299.023 | 2523947 | 2681746 | 2.369,586
2,500,000 — —I - e Loans 1907655 | 2095202 | 2232418 | 1985263
2000000 —] | r] Unsecured 1477430 | 1622052 | 1708119 | 1537905
o 11 Home Equiy 346,183 | 352214 | 357,025 | 291,716
1,500,000 - Small Business 84,042 120,956 167,274 155,642
1,000,000 Credit Card Shopping Loans 71528 79,623 101,135 127,222
Per-item Shopping Loans 176,024 197,226 183,907 112,518
500,000 Loan Guarantees 133,614 141,407 153,767 141,930
Other 10,206 10,489 10,520 12,652 13,534
04 05 06 07 08
B Unsteured Home Eqprty W Other
Small Business 0 Credit Card Shopping Loans
0 Perdtem Shopping loans [ Loan Guarantees
TOTAL INCOME/NET INCOME -
(Millions of yen}
(Millions of yen) -
2004 2005 2006 | 2007
600,000 80800 | Total Incame 479473 | 520737 | 548818 | 501,009 |
£50000 60000 Interest on Loans 429,513 466,430 491,358 448,662
Unsecured 358,142 387839 405,308 374,839
300,000 40,000 Home Equity 55022 56,531 56,144 43575 EEIREY
Small Business 16,348 22,059 29,904 30247 EESER
150000 20000 Credit Card Shopping Loas 8,140 9,091 11275 | 12754 |
0 o Per-itern Shopping Loans 15,508 17,201 17,676 12,998 . 2
Loan Guaraniees 5,562 7.088 8,668 9187 N:FL1N
- - 500,000 Other 20,750 20,927 19,841 K 15546
b4 05 06 07 08 Net Income (loss) 62548 | 75723 | 65827 | (411,251) [REEAES
W Interest on loans O Credit Card Shopping Loans
Per-item Shopping loans £] Loan Guarantess
| Other © Net Income
TOTAL ASSETS {Millions of yen)
(Millions of yen)
2004 L 2005 2006 PO 2008
3000000 =T Toral Assets 2,332,761 | 2,574,286 | 2.790.969 | 2.214.559 [RXCIWVER
ROA (%) 2.7 3.1 2.5 (16.4) 1.3

ROA = Net [ncome/Total Assets {average) x 100 (%)
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TOTAL EQUITY

(Millions of yen)

(Millions of yen)

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
800000 Total Equity 547,504 617,353 681,694 257,145 324,521
ROE (%) 12.1 13.0 10.1 (88.1) 9.6
ROE = Net Income/Total Equity (average) x 100 (%)
AVERAGE RATE OF BORROWINGS (%)
(%)
2004 2005 2006 2007
3 - Average Rate of Borrowings i.72 1.60 1.55 .80
Indirect 1.86 1.68 1.71 2.03
Disect 1.55 1.48 1,33 1.51
Long+term Prime Rane (Reference) i.65 1.65 2.10 2.20
z Share of Indirect 56.2 60.2 56.8 55.7
Share of Direct 438 398 432 443
1
04 05 06 07
© Average Rate of Borrowings ©  Indirect
© Drea
NUMBER OF CUSTOMER ACCOUNTS (Thousands)
(Thousands) .
2004 2005 2006 2007
4000 Nuzmber of Cusstoraer Accounts 3,520 3.796 3,899 3.548
Unsecured 3,367 3619 3,696 3,367
30 Home Equity 94 100 105 87
Small Business 59 78 99 93
2000 Credit Card Holders 11,051 11,967 13,096 14,066
Per-item Shopping Loans Aceounts 740 810 634 459

04 05 06 07

B Unsecured
L: Small Business

O Home Equity
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AIFUL CORPORATION

LOANS OUTSTANDING TOTAL INCOME/NET INCOME
(Millions of yen) (Millions of yen)
o i, o - e,
7. Small Business g Smazll Business
320000 - 80000  w Other
1.200,000 - - - —- © Net Income
240,000 £0,000
164,000 40,000
80,000 20,000
0 0
-~ -400,000
Millions of yen) (Millions of yen)
2004, 2005 | 2006 | 2007 [N 2004 | 2005 | 2006 2007 §
Loans Qutstanding | 1.451.638| 1,471,767| 1512717 1.298,612 [REA] Total Inome 340224 | 347,057 350933 | 309.698 | ]
Unsecured 1,081,08] 1,093,663 1,133,083 995,077 [RARAN Inierest on Loans | 326979 | 330529 | 333541 | 292669 I 0L
Home Equily | 342,637 345,180 341153 274787 JRARH] Unsecured | 265959 | 266930 | 269986 | 243614 JEEIERY
Small Business 27943 32924) 38481 28747 ERETL Home Equity 54663 | 55875| 54560 41424 )
Small Business 6,355 7722 8,994 7631
Other 13,245 16628( 17392] 17,029
Nes [ncome (Loss) 53,086 67301 50382 (359.399)
TOTAL ASSETS TOTAL EQUITY
(Milliens of yen) (Millions of yen)
2,500,000 _ _ 800000 ————— - - —
04 05 06 07 08 04 05 06 07 08
{Millions of yen) {Millions of yen)
200¢ T 2005 T 2000 [ 2007 RN 2004 1 2005 [ 2000 2007 [ERREY
Total Assets 1,870,076 (2,033,547 |2,204.483 (1,660,827 | IS ERE:H Total Equity 522905 584.308| 632917| 255005 ESrrAily
ROA (%) 28 34 24 (18.6) 1.7 ROE (%} 10.7 122 8.3
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AVERAGE INTEREST RATIO

(%}

30 —

© Average Inlerest Ratio
© Unsecured

© Home Equily

< 5mall Business

NUMBER OF CUSTOMER ACCOUNTS

(Thousands)
B Unsecured
2500 --- Home Equity
- .1 Small Business
2,000

1500 - -

04 05 06 07 08 04 05 06 07 08
(Thousands}
12004 | 2005 © 2006 2007 T 2004 2005 | 2006 | 2007
Average Interest Ratio 228 226 224 20.8 Number of Customer Aroourits 22460 2215 2,187 1894
Unsecured 248 24.6 24.2 229 Unsecured 2,131 2091 2058 1,789
Home Equity 16.4 16.3 159 135 Home Equity 94 99 102 84
Small Business 25.3 254 252 22.7 Small Business 21 25 28 22
NEW ACCOUNTS BAD DEBT CHARGE-QFFS/RATIQ OF BAD DEBT CHARGE-OFFS
(Millions of yen/%}
Bad Debs Charge-off
500000 - - " 33?2"&3% 200000 - - 2 ° Ralinnfﬁldﬂhaé?tgré&nﬁs
12 Small Business
150,000 -— - - - 15
100000 - 10
50,000 — 5
0 0
04 05 06 ©7 08 04 05 06 07 08
(Accounts) (Millions of yen/%}
2004 2005 ! 2006 " 2004 " 2005 | 2006 2007
New Accounts 388,036] 376,024| 370,593 Bad Debt Charge-offs | 97 458| 96.224| 98,256| 138,602
Unsecured 355619 343536 338052 Unsecured 86,507) 83.436] B83,143! 121,558
Home Equl[y 24222 23405 23258 Home Equl[y 9,612 10.800 12,645 12,931
Sall Business 8.195| 9.083| 9283 Srpali Business 1,339 1,987 2467 4,113
Ao | sml  esd el 1067
ar . . ) I 1,
Unsecured 8.00 7,63 7.34 12.22 1 6.97‘
Home Equity 2.81 3.13 3.71 4.71 3
Small Business 4.79 6.04 6.41 14.3]
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LIFE Co., Ltd. (MANAGED ASSET BASIS)

TOTAL RECEIVABLES OUTSTANDING

(Millions of yen}

Instaliment Receivables

OPERATING REVENUE/NET INCOME
(Millions of yen)

200000 - — - o Instaliment Receivables

a
_ - Loans (Cash Advance} " Loans (Cash Advance)
[ 1 [T m [—] o g)ﬁnﬁuarantm o g:hanma:antees
& Other 150000 - - - 15000 B Ocher
600000 | L. m ' \ £ ' . © NetIncome
W —
100000 N PR - 10
400,000
50,000
200,000 0
0
04 05 06 O7 08
(Millions of yen) (Milligns of yen)
[ 2004 2005 | 2006 | 2004 | 2005 . 2006 | 2007 JEPTICIN
Total Receivables . Operating Reverwe | 113,738 | 123,881 | 133,936 | 129,479 QYIS
0“1 ““:ﬂ“‘“gwm ggifgi 2?;?3: ;;Zg?g Insalivent eceves | 24,415] 26,870| 29.493| 26,618
:‘:a”‘z“‘m = T Ry Loans (Cash Advance) | 78,815 84,919] 91,305 91,542 [
m"sé ash Adence) o G 51 i B Loan Guaraniees | 3,842 | 4.044| 4241 4,134
om" Larantees e T e v Other 6664| 8045 8894 7.383
l ' ’ ' : Nethcomedloss | 16,131] 10,679| 14.028] (43,313)
TOTAL ASSETS TOTAL EQUITY
{Millions of yen) (Millions of yen)
1,000,000 - S w0000 - -
800,000 120000 —- - -
000,000
80,000
400,000
200000 40000
¢
04 05 06 07 08
(Millions of yen) {Millions of yen)
2004 2005 | 2006 | 2004 2005 2006 | 2007 [END
Total Assels 772,658 | 810,567 | 830,548 Total Equity 106,486 117.163| 131.407] 87,992 EIRLL)
ROA (%) 2.1 1.3 1.7 ROE (%) 16.4 95 113
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AVERAGE YI|ELD

(%)
0 O Average Yield
- - - ¢ Insallment Receivables
© Leans (Cash Advance)
W © Loan Guarantees
0. - R
10 - - om0

2004 - 2005 ¢ 2006 |
Average Yield 164  168] 173

PURCHASE RESULTS
(Milltons of yen)

B Peritem Shopping Loans

160000 - - o - O Credit Card

120,000

80,000

40000 -

(Miltions of yen)

2004 | 2005 2006 2007 |QENUN
Peritem Shopping Loans | [18,131] 135,646| 107,974] 32,528 JRLELY)

Instafment Recetvables 95 98 9.8 Credit Card 543 507| 597.314] 706,274| 796,600 JELEAFL"
h Ad Credit Card i
loans Cash Advance) | 24.5]  240] 240 Shopping Loans | 318115 373,130] 470,896| 561,299 LZIRAD
Loan Guarantees 34 40 45 Credit Card y
Chshing Loans | 225.392| 224,184 235,378| 235.301 [RARIEE
NUMBER OF CARDHOLDERS BAD DEBT CHARGE-OFFS/RATIO OF BAD DEBT CHARGE-OFFS
(Thousands) Millions of yen/%)
15000 o B LIFE Proper Card 50000 - -~ —-- 10 W Bad Delx

13 Affinity Cards

)
|

w1 1] L l
Wh N
ﬂ il

0405060708

{Thousands)

2004 ¢ 2005 2006

Mumber of Cardholders | 11,032 11,916, 13.09
LIFE Proper Card 1,625 1,710 1.820
Affinity Cards 9,406 10,205] 11,276

© Ratio of Bad Debt Chargeoffs

(Millions of yen/%}

2004 | 2005 | 2006
Bad Debt Chargeolls | 35.566)_36.658] 37,266
Credit Card Shopping Loans 2412 2,115 1,978
(et Card Cating s | 12.8231 13,141 12,636
Perdom Sopprglers | 6,0671 _ 4.994] 5,363

LIFE Cash Plaza
{(Unsecured Loars) 10570] 11445 12182

Ratio o Bad Dett Chargeffs (% 5.06 4.88 4.78
Credi Card Shopping Loans 337 266 1.96
Cred:t Card Casring Loars 6.32 6.28 5.72
Per-cam Shoppirg Laing 3.45 2.53 292

LIFE Cash Plaza
(Unsecured Loans) 7.80 7.26 7.03
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BUSINEXT CORPORATION

LOANS OUTSTANDING
(Millions of yen)

HRON

B0,000

60,000
40,000
20,000

O—04 05 06 07 08
(Millions of yen}

2004 | 2005 2006 | 2007 JIERE
Loans Outstanding | 27.592| 47,622] 73.111] 82,329 KSKED

L

OPERATING REVENUE/NET INCOME
{Millions of yen)

12,000
9,000
6,000
3000

0

-1.500

W Operating Revenue
Z  Net Income

{Millions of yen)

[ 2004 T 2005 | 2006

2007

Operating Revenue | 3,015| 5456| 8.636

Net Income (Loss) (1,037 601 2426

KUMBER OF CUSTOMER ACCOUNTS/LOANS QUTSTANDING PER ACCOUNT
{ThousandsiThousands of yen)

W Number of Customer Accouns

50 T 2000 O Loans Cumsianding per Atcourt

40 1,600

1,200

04 05 06 07 08

2004 2005 2006 |
Nearhes of Customer Accounts 23 33 42
LoarsQusandizgper Aecours | 1,203 1,455 1,732

NEW ACCOUNTS

000 - -ee-

15,000

10,000

5,000

[+

4 05 06 07 08

2004 ; 2005 : 2006

2007

New Accounts 12,845 13,714 15,105

9,092

AVERAGE INTEREST RATE

(%)
Pl
I e ¢ o L TSN
10
5 -
0
04 05 06 07 08
2004 | 2005 ' 2006 | 2007 §
Average Interest Rate 153 15.1 | 1 5.0| 14.9

RATIO OF BAD DEBT CHARGE-OQOFFS
(%)

04 05 06 07 "08

2004 1 2005 | 2006 2007

Resio f22d Dk e I EE

29
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City’s Corporation

LOANS OUTSTANDING

{Millicns of yen)

80000 — —

6000 — - — — -

(Millions of yen)
2007

I 2004 2006 :

31,215

2005
45,674

Loans Questanding

OPERATING REVENUE/NET INCOME

(Millions of yen)

B0 m- o - — -

W Operating Revenue
0O Net Ingormne

"o o5 O o7 o8
. (Millions of yen)
2004 [ 2005 2006 ! 2007 [
Operating Revenwe | 7,415 | 9.580 | 13,998 | 13,551 ENLLY
Net Income {Loss) 1,535 1495 37 | (3,322) )

NUMBER OF CUSTOMER ACCOUNTS/LOANS OUTSTANDING PER ACCOUNT
(Thousands/Thousands of yen}

W Number of Cusiomer AoRinGs

00— - Tt < Loans Ourstanding per Acoount

- 2500

NEW ACCOUNTS

000 - - -

04 05 06 07 08

. 2004 | 2005 | 2006 2004 | 2005 | 2006 , 2007 JREMMY
o]
amber of Cosicter Acoos 15 21 32 New Accounts 4531] 9409 15673 5.266 KL
Loans Ouzsandngper dcome | 2,004 2,164 2,143
AVERAGE INTEREST RATE RATIO OF BAD DEBT CHARGE-OFFS
(%) (%}
e - oe—eee—
0 0
04 05 06 07 o8 04 05 06 07 08
(%) (%)
. 2004 | 2005 | 2006 ' 2007 [NV 2004 | 2005 2006 2007 |JEDG
mvengeoeresthare | 27.4] 272 254 237 [ RE naaiaps | 16| 16] 19 i [RE
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Consolidated Results of
Operations

As of March 31, 2008, the outstanding receivables of AIFUL
CORPORATION and its 11 consolidated subsidiaries amounted to
¥1,665,682 miliion, a year-on-year decline of ¥319,581 million, or
16.1%. Reasons for the lower figure include the continuing
implementation of tighter lending criteria by all group companies, an
increase in bad debt charge-offs, and the suspension of new lending
as a result of the consolidation of consumer finance subsidiaries. The
total balance includes unsecured loans of ¥1(,278,00t million,
representing a year-on-year reduction of ¥259,904 million, or 16.9%.
Home equity loans declined by ¥45,196 million, or 15.5%, to
¥246,520 million, and loans to business proprietors fell by ¥ 14,481
million, or 9.3%, to ¥141,161 million.

[nstallment accounts receivable in the credit card and per-item
shopping loan categories amounted to ¥190,486 million as of March
31, 2008. This is ¥39,254 million, or 17.1% below the figure at the end
of the previous accounting period. The credit card subsidiary LIFE
maintained strong performance trends in the area of credit card
shopping loans. Increases in both the number of effective cardholders
ang the card utilization rate were reflected in an 8.9% increase in the
balance of receivables, which reached to ¥ 127,678 millien. In
preparation for the passage of amendments to the Installment Sales
Law, the AIFUL Group introduced tighter lending criteria for affiliated
merchants and adopted a more selective stance in relation to per-item
shopping loans. As a result, the balance of per-item shopping loans
declined by 44.2% to ¥62,808 million,

The balance of loan guarantees provided to partner financial

institutions by AIFUL and LIFE declined by ¥12,217 million, or 8.6%, 10
¥129,713 million. The addition of other receivables amounting to
¥13,534 million brings the total receivables of the AIFUL Group at the
end of the current conselidated accounting period to ¥1,999,414 milfion,
a year-on-year decline of ¥370,170 million, or 15.6 %. This amount
includes ¥108.792 million, consisting of off-balance-sheet receivables of
¥66,976 million and installment receivables of ¥41,996 miflion.

Total Income and Total Expenses

Consolidated total income in the year ended March 31, 2008
amounted to ¥402,389 million, a decline of ¥98,620, or 19.7%,
compared with the previous year's result. [nterest on receivables,
which accaunted for 88.6% of total income. declined by ¥92,227
million, or 20.6%, to ¥356,435 millien. Reasons for the lower figure
included reduced top-line figures resulting from a slowdown in new
and supplementary loan business following the introduction of tighter
lending criteria, and the reduction of interest rates ahead of the full
enforcement of the amended Money Lending Business Law. In the
credit card segment, which is seen as a future growth area, a double-
digit increase in purchases was reflected in a ¥2,194 million, or
17 2%, year-on-year increase in income from credit card shopping
loans, which totaled ¥ 14,948 million. Changes in the external
environment drove a downward trend in income from per-item
shopping loans, which declined by 46.8% to ¥6,912 million. Income
from loan guarantees was 7.0% below the previcus year's level at
¥8,548 million because of a decline in the balance of guarantees
outstanding. However, the normalization of loan recovery operations
ledt 1o an increase in recoveries of previously charged off Joans, which
rose 9.2% to ¥4,395 million. Total income also includes ¥872 million
in praceeds from the sale of fixed assets.

TOTAL RECEIVABLES OUTSTANDING
{Managed Asset Basis)
(Millions of yen)

3,000,000

TOTAL INCOME/TOTAL EXPENSES

(Millions of yen)

1000000 —— = —— o= .

800000 - ——— e e { b
|
1
|

W Toetal Income [ Total Expenses

NET INCOME
(Millions of yen)
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Total expenses declined by ¥501,781 million, or 57.5%, to
¥371,491 million. The main reasons for the lower total included a
reduction in the loan-loss allowance required because of the peaking
out of bad debt charge-offs, the fact that provision for loans
abandoned as a resuit of interest refunds claims was made in the
previous accounting period, and the reduction of loan-toss expenses
by ¥291,445 million, or 65.1%, to ¥155,930 million. Consolidated
interest refund expenses were reduced by ¥63,255 million, or 55.9%,
to ¥49,819 million because interest refunds of ¥66,241 million
incurred in the year ended March 31, 2008 were covered by the
partial reversat of the allowance for interest refunds. In addition, the
lower balance of receivables reduced the amount of funds rhat
needed to be procured. As a result, interest on borrowings declined 1o
¥2,252 million, or 6.8%, below the previous year's level at ¥30,646
million. Group companies made steady progress toward the reduction
of other expenses through cost restructuring, and through cost-cutting
measures affecting labor expenses and other items, Advertising
expenses were reduced by ¥7,645 million, or 50.7 %, to ¥7,429
million, and labor expenses were cut by ¥12,157 million, or 21.5%, to
¥44,351 million. Total expenses include ¥2,126 million in expenses
relating to cost restructuring, including branch consclidation expenses.

Consolidaied net income before income taxes amounted to
¥30,898 million, compared with a loss of ¥372,263 miilion in the
previous year. Net income was ¥27,434 million, up from a net loss of
¥411,251 million in the previous year. Consolidated net income per
share for the year ended March 31, 2008 amounted o ¥190.77, or
¥186.86 after adjustment for residual shares.

EPS
(Yen)

-3,000 —

04 05 06 07 08

Segment Information
Receivables basis: For detailed segment information, please refer to
the analyses of operating results for individual group companies.

TOTAL RECEIVABLES OUTSTANDING
{Millons of yen}

2007 % of change
Unsecured loans 1,557,905 [RIEXCXVIM  -16.9%
Home equity loans 291,716 246,520 -155%
Small business loans 155,642 141,161 . -9.3%
Credit card shopping loans 117,223 127,678 89%
Per-item shopping loans 112,518 62,808 L WA
Loan guarantees 141,930 129,713 . -86%

INCOME BY PRODUCT SEGMENT .
Millions of yen)

2007 2008 % of change
Unsecured loans 374,839 300,887 -19.7%
Home equity loans 43,575 31,959 N
Smalt business loans 30,247 23,590 -22.0%
Credit card shepping loans 12,754 14,948 17.2%
Per-item shopping loans 12,998 6,912 TR
Loan guarantees 9,187 8,548 . ~7.0%

Unsecured Loans

Several group companies are involved in the unsecured loan
business. In addition to unsecured loans provided by AIFUL
CORPORATIGN, this segment also includes credit card cash advances
provided by LIFE. Unsecured loans are also provided by LIFE's
consurmner finance division, operating as LIFE Cash Plaza, and by
TRYTC, Wide, TCM and Passkey. which comprise a second consumer
finance group within the AIFUL Group.

In the consolidated accounting period ended March 31, 2008, the
AIFUL Group faced escalating competition for guality customers.
Business performance was also affected by the introduction of tighter
lending criteria by all group companies. in addition, the four
companies in the second consumer finance group suspended new
lending in Decermnber 2007 under a policy providing for their
restructuring and merger. These factors were reflected in the number
of new unsecured loans approved, which declined by 43.4% o0 137
thousand, while the number of accounts was reduced by 455
thousand, or 13.5%, to 2,911 thousand. As a result, the consolidated
balance of unsecured loans declined by ¥259,903 million, or 16.9%,
to ¥1,278,001 million, and the balance per account by ¥18 thousand
to ¥438 thousand. The average yield fell by 1.7 percentage points to
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21.5% because of a reduction in interest rates applied to new loans
approved during the year under review, and because of the proactive
application of preferential interest rates to quality customers.
Reduced top-line results also affected performance, and interest on
unsecured loans was ¥73,953 million, or 19.7%, below the previous
year's level at ¥300,886 million.

Home Equity Loans

At the consolidated level, secured home equity loans are provided by
A[FUL CORPORATION, and also by several subsidiaries, including
LIFE, City’s and BUSINEXT. This structure allows versatile marketing
to meet the needs of a wide range of customers.

In the consolidated accounting period ended March 31, 2008, the
AIFUL Group made radical changes to its products and marketing
methods and adopted a more conservative lending stance. As a result,
the number of home equity loan accounts as of March 31, 2008 was
73 thousand, 14 thousand, or 16.4%, below the previous year's figure,
while the balance of receivables in this category declined by ¥45,196
million, or 15.5%, to ¥246,520 million. The balance per account
increased by ¥37 thousand to ¥3,375 thousand, while the yield fell by
1.5 percentage points to 11.9%. Interest income on receivables
declined by ¥11,617 million, or 26.7 %, to ¥31,959 million.

Small Business Loans

The group companies that provide loans to business proprietors are
BUSINEXT, which specializes in lending to medium-risk borrowers,
City's, which handles high-risk lending, and AIFUL CORPORATION.

In the consotidated accounting period ended March 31, 2008,
BUSINEXT and City's both adopted cautious lending policies because
of a deteriorating business outlock for small and medium-sized
enterprises. AIFUL CORPORATION terminated its involvernent in smali
business lending in january 2007 in line with its policy of consolidating
business operations toc improve operating efficiency. As a result of
these changes, the number of small business loan accounts at the
consolidated level declined by 10 thousand, or 10.9%, to 83 thousand,
and the balance of receivables by ¥14.481 million, or 9.3%., to ¥141,161
million, The balance per account increased by ¥31 thousand to ¥i,697
thousand, but the yield declined by 2.9 percentage points to 15.9%.
interest on receivables amounted (o ¥6,657 millien, or 22.0%, below
the previous year’s level at ¥23,590 million.

Credit Card Shopping Loans

The consolidated credit card shopping loan business of the AIFUL
Group is based on the credit card operations of LIFE. In the year ended
March 31, 2008, the AIFUL Group’s basic policies were to expand the
cardholder base through a strategy based on a wide range of affiliaticn
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cards, and to improve the card utilization rate. In addition to efforts to
develop new affiliates and strengthen existing relationships, priority
was also given to the enhancement of custemer convenience, including
the extension of period over which points can be used, and the
recruitment of a wide range of affiliated merchants including public
utilities. These inftiatives were reflected in the growth of the number of
effective cardholders, which increased by 754 thousand, or 5.4 %, to
14,819 thousand. The emerging strength of LIFE Card as a brand
meanwhile helped e improve the card utilization rate. The balance of
credit card shopping loans increased by ¥10,456 million, or 8.9%, year
on year to ¥127,678 million. The yield was aiso higher, rising by 0.6
percentage poinis to 12.5%, while income from credit shopping loans
increased by 17.2% to ¥14,948 million.

Per-item Shopping Loans

Per-item installment plan services provided by LIFE form the mainstay
of the AIFUL Group’s per-item shopping loan business at the
consolidated {evel. In the year ended March 2008, the AIFUL Group
adapted 1o changes in the external environment resulting from the
passage of the amended Instaliment Sales Law by carefully selecting
quality affiliated merchants for per-item shopping loans. Related
measures included the tightening of credit standards for merchants,
and the implementation of regular credit checks partway through
contract periods. As a consequence of these measures, the
consclidated balance of per-item shopping loans declined by ¥49,710
million, or 44.2%, year on year to ¥62,808 million. The vield was 0.5
percentage points lower at 8.5%, while income from per-item
shopping loans declined by ¥6,086 millicn, or 46.8%, to ¥6,912 million.

Loan Guarantees

The loan guarantee business of the AIFUL Group consists of the loan
guarantee operations of AIFUL CORPORATION and LIFE. Both
companies operate agreements with financial institutions, including
regional banks and shinkin banks. They provide guarantees for
unsecured loans to individuals and business proprietors.

As of March 31, 2008, guarantees outstanding amounted 1o
¥129,713 million, a year-on-year reduction of ¥12,217 millien, or
8.6%. The non-consolidated guarantee balance of AIFUL
CORPORATION declined by ¥2,690 million, or 4.6 %, to ¥56,224
million. The total for LIFE was ¥9,527 million, or 11.5%, lower at
¥73,486 million, in part because of portfolic restructuring. The yield
improved by 0.1 percentage points to ¥6.3%, but income from loan
guarantees was ¥639 million, or 7.0%, lower at ¥8,548 million.




Balance Sheet

Consolidated total assets declined by ¥173,431 million, or 7.8%, o
¥2,041,128 million as of March 31, 2008. Current assets were reduced
by ¥166,232 million, or 7.9%, (0 ¥1,929,202 miliion, and fixed assets
by ¥7,199 million, or 6.0%, 1o ¥111,926 million.

The decline in current assets occurred despite the implementation
of a third-party issue of new shares and an issue of convertible bonds
with stock acquisition rights totaling ¥120,000 million, which caused
cash and deposits to increase by ¥101,256 million, or 79.6%, 1o
¥228 422 million. It was caused by a downward trend in the balance
of receivables, which shrank by ¥313,983 million, or 16.4%, to
¥1,598,706 million because of reductions in both new and
supplementary borrowing resulting from the introduction of tighter
lending criteria by all group companies. Another factor was an
increase in bad debt charge-offs.

Strong performance by LIFE's credit card business caused an
increase in the consolidated balance of credit card shopping loans,
However, the balance of per-item shopping loans was lower, with the
result that the consolidated balance of installment receivables declined
by ¥26.433 million, or 15.1%, to ¥ 148,490 million. The ivan-loss
allowance declined by ¥82,464 miilion, or 21,7%, to ¥297,384 million.
In addition to reduced allocations to the loan-loss allowance because
of a reduction in the amount of bad debt, the decline also reflects the
fact that claims abandoned because of interest refunds in the year
ended March 2008 were covered by the reversal of the allowance
provided in the previous year. As of March 31, 2008, the allowance
for claims abandoned because of interest refund demands amounted
to ¥108,974 million on a consolidated basis. The decline in fixed

assets was caused primarily by a reduction in investments and other
assets resuliing from lower unrealized gains on investment securities.

As of March 31, 2008, total consolidated liabilities amounted to
¥1,716.607 million, a year-on-year reduction of ¥240,807 million, or
12.3%. The consolidated balance of funds raised as of March 31, 2008
amounted to ¥1,354,088 million, a year-on-year reduction of ¥176,174
miliion, or 11.5%. Reasons for the lower figure include the repayment
of debt and the redemption of bonds, as well as a reduced need w0
procure funds because of the decline in the balance of receivables.
Interest refunds amounted to ¥49,818 million in the year ended
March 2008. The interest refund loss reserve was used (o cover some
of this amount, with the result that the reserve was reduced by
¥23,403 million to ¥143.750 million.

Consolidated total equity increased by ¥67,376 million, or 26.2%,
to ¥324,521 miltion as of March 3t, 2008. The higher figure reflects
net income of ¥27,434 million, together with an increase in common
stock resulting from a ¥50,000 million third-party allocation of new
shares by AIFUL CORPORATION. The consolidated equity ratic
increased by 4.2 percentage points 10 15.6%, or 19.1% with the
inclusion of ¥70,000 million in convertible bonds with stock
acquisition rights.

TOTAL ASSETS
Millions of yen)

3,000,000

2,000,000

1,000,000
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Bad Debt

According to statistics published by the Supreme Court, the number of
personal bankruptcy applications has declined relative to the same
month a year earlier for 53 consecutive months since Novermnber 2003,
This trend has been driven partly by the adoption of tighter lending
criteria by moneylenders. Another factor is the persistently high level of
debt restructuring through legal means, including interest refund
demands and other actions initiated by attorneys. As a result, conditions
in the claim recovery market are extremely challenging at present.

Consalidated bad debt increased by ¥15,723 million, or 4.8%, year
on year to ¥343,768 million. The sub-total for unsecured loans was
¥3,037 million, or 1.5%, lower at ¥194,381 million. These figures indicate
that the level of bad debt has started 1o stabilize after the rapid increase
that occurred when AIFUL CORPORATION implemented voluntary
restraints on recovery operations and reviewed its operating procedures
following the imposition of administrative penalties. Bad debt other than
unsecured loans, which consist mainly of home equity loans, remained
high with an increase of ¥18,759 million, or 14.4%, to ¥149,386 million,
because of time required o dispose of collateral,

In the year ended March 31, 2008, consclidated bad debt charge-offs
amounted to ¥227,727 million, a year-on-year increase of ¥21,747
millign, or 10.6%. The charge-off ratic was 2.7 percentage points higher
at t1.39%. The main reason for the increase is the fact that the rapid
increase in charge-offs following the imposition of administrative
penaliies reached its peak in the current acceunting period. The loan-
loss reserve declined by ¥77.158 million, or 18.9%, to ¥330,415 million
as of March 31, 2008. This reduction resulted in part from the reversal
of the reserve to cover claims abandoned because of interest refund
demands. Another factor was the reduction of transfers to the reserve
to reflect the peaking of the amount of new bad debt incurred. The
reserve includes ¥108,974 miillion provided to cover the abandonment
of claims because of interest refund demands.

(Millions of yen)

2006 2007 2008
Non-performing leans 203,800 328,046 543,768
Bad debt charge-offs 149,830 205,980 227,727
Allowance for bad debrs 171,715 407,573 330,415
Ratio of bad debt charge-offs (%} 5.59 8.69 11.39
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Liquidity and Capital
Resources

Fund Procurement Policy

By diversifying its procurement methads and sources, the AIFUL Group
aims [o ensure reliable access to funds while atso reducing the cost of
funds. We flexibly adjust our procurement mix to reflect changing
financial conditions, and we carefully monitor market risks, including
interest rate fluctuation risk and liguidity risk. so that we can adapt to
changes in the external environment.

Interest-rate Risk Hedging

The AIFUL Group minimizes its exposure to the risk of interest rate
fluctuations by maintaining a policy of using derivatives, including
interest rate caps and swaps, to fix interest rates on at least 70% of the
balance of funds procured. As of March 31, 2008, 47.6% of funds were
covered by fixed interest rates. When funds hedged against interest rate
moverments using caps and swaps are included, the percentage of funds
effectively covered by fixed interest rates rises 1o 76.1%.

Securing Liquidity and

Diversifying Funding Methods

AIFUL CORPORATION has a policy of ensuring adequate liquidity by
maintaining supplementary deposits, cash and commitment lines
equivalent to at least 50% of short-term funds procured, including long-
term loans repayable within one year. As of March 31, 2008, AIFUL
CORPORATION had commitment lines totaling ¥110,000 million. AIFUL
also combines security with reduced costs by maintaining an
appropriate balance berween direct and indirect procurement. As of
March 31, 2008, the non-consolidated procurement ratio for AJFUL
CORPORATION was 62.0%, and the consolidated ratio for the AIFUL
Group was 53.2%. AIFUL also aims to diversify its repaymeni periods by
using long-term borrowing for its indirect procurémem activities.



In February 2008, AIFUL CORPORATION implemented a ¥70,000
million issue of convertible bonds with stock acquisition rights and
allocated 25,440 new shares with an issue price of ¥1,966 to a third
party. These steps were taken to strengthen AIFUL's financiat
fundamentals and provide a new source of growth capital. AIFUL also
wanted to avoid the risk of a reduction in its credit rating and a resulting
deterioration in its fund procurement environment because of
temporary deterioration in the business environment resulting from the
worsening sub-prime mortgage crisis and the associated increase in
liquidity risk in money markets. The convertible bond issue was
designed to minimize dilution through features that include a clause
allowing AIFUL to exercise mandatory acquisition in up to seven
installments berween July 2008 and February 2010, and the right to
adjust the share price ence. The bonds alse have excellent equity
characteristics, since the mandatory acquisition clause will allow AIFUL
to acquire all outstanding bonds and warrants in exchange for ordinary
shares in AIFUL approximately two years after the issue date.
Furthermore, bonds are subordinated to all existing and future debt held
by AIFUL and are senior only to shareholder claims in relation to all
types of shares, including preferred stock. By issuing the bonds with a
zero coupon, AIFUL has also been able to reduce the cost of funds.

SHORT- AND LONG-TERM BORROWINGS

{Millions of yen)

2006 Al 2008
Short-term borrowings 138,200 91,370 ‘ 163,930
Borrowings 113,200 91,370 | 78,930
Asset-backed lending — — j 80,000
Commercial paper 25,000 — ‘ 5,000
Long-term borrowings 1,850,276 1,578,855 EISY¥RYY]
Bortowings 1015704 | 838900 (IERET
Straight bonds 510,500 496,100 1 424,100
Convertible bends — — | 70,000
Asset-backed securities 324,070 243,845 PIVICIE

Cash Flows

Cash and cash equivalents increased by ¥100,254 million 1o ¥257,311
million in the consolidated accounting period ended March 31, 2008.
This was because a decline in loans and other receivables and an
increase in funds resulting from the third-party share allocation and
the convertible bond issue outweighed debt repayment, bond
redemption, and the reduction of reserves relating to receivables.

Net cash provided by operating activities amounted to ¥247,525
million, compared with ¥250,558 million in the previous year. In
addition te net income before income taxes and minority interests
amounting to ¥30,898 million, this figure also reflects the fact that a
¥77,158 million reduction in bad debt reserves and ¥23,402 million
reduction in the reserve for interest refund losses were more than offset
by an increase in funds resulting from the reduction of receivables,
including a ¥313,984 million decline in the balance of loans outstanding.

Net cash provided by investing activities amounted to ¥ 16,420
million, compared with ¥13,498 million in the previous year. This was
because factors that reduced funds, including the acquisition of tangible
fixed assets worth ¥5,474 million and non-tangible fixed assets worth
¥8,715 million, were more than offset by an increase in funds resulting
from a ¥29,987 million reduction in short-term loans caused by a
change in the scope of funds.

Net cash used for financing activities amounted to ¥133,734 million,
compared with ¥271,391 million in the previous year. This was because
factors that contributed te an increase in funds, including ¥ 69,898
million from the issue of bonds with share acquisition rights and
¥49,764 million from the share issue, were outweighed by reductions in
funds, including ¥179,173 million resulting from debt repayment, and
¥72,000 million resulting from the redemption of bonds.

AVYERAGE RATE OF BORROWINGS
(%)
avﬁ — e e ———
o e =
0
04 05 06 07 08
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Dividend Policy

AIFUL regards shareholder returns as one of its most important
priorities. Our basic policy is to maximize shareholder returns and
shareholder value through medium- to long-term income growth, while
also maintaining stable internal reserves and providing consistent
returns based on business performance. Our basic approach is to
distribute surpluses twice yearly through interim and final dividends.

In accordance with our basic policy, and with the aim of providing
consistent returns based on business performance, we set the annual
dividend for the year ended March 2008 at ¥40 per share, including the
intesim dividend of ¥20 per share.

Our policy on internal reserves is to make effective use of retained
earnings for strategic investment that contributes to the restructuring
of our business base to reflect the market environment and other
factors, for investment in corporate infrastructure, including
improvements to compliance systems, and for the reinforcement of
internal control systems.

Dividends in the Year Ended March 31, 2008

. Total Dividend Dividend Per
Date of Resolution (Millions of yen) Share (Yen)
Resolution of Board of Directors
on November 5, 2007 2,831 20
Resolution of Board of Directors
on May 19, 2008 3,340 20
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Non-consolidated Results of
Operations

AIFUL CORPORATION

Overview

In the year ended March 2008, AIFUL continued to improve its internal
control systems by implementing company-wide measures to
strengthen its compliance, including the development of internal
standards and rutes. In preparation for the fult enforcement of the
amended Money Lending Business Law, AIFUL strengthened its
business base and began to build a new incorme structure through cost
restructuring, the continuing application of stringent lending criteria, the
reduction of the maximum interest rate, and the introduction of a new
range of special-purpose loans. As a result of these measures, on a non-
consolidated basis, total receivables outstanding declined by ¥241,546
million, or 17.7%, year on year to ¥1,119,756 million. A breakdown of
this figure shows that receivables outstanding in the core loan business
were ¥239,732 million, or 18.5%, iower at ¥1,058,880 million. Reasons
for this result include the application of tighter lending criteria, which
caused a reduction in the number of new and supplementary loans, and
an increase in bad debt charge-offs.

Total income in the year ended March 2008 amounted to ¥239,629
million, a year-on-year decline of ¥70,069 million, or 22.6%. In addition to
the smaller top-line figures, this result also reflects the effect of interest
rate cuts implermented to attract quality customers. Interest income on
receivables declined by ¥67,962 million, or 23.2%, to ¥224,707 milion.
Income from loan guarantees declined by 6.2% to ¥4,738 million because
of a reduction in the balance of guarantees outstanding. However, the
normalization of loan recovery operations boosted the recovery of
previously charged-off loans, which rose by 38.7% to ¥2,553 million. A
breakdown of interest income on receivables shows that interest on
unsecured loans declined by 21.9% year on year 1o ¥190,230 million;
interest on home equity loans fell by 28.0 % to ¥29,809 million, and
interest on small business loans dropped by 38.8% to ¥4,668 million.

The results for the previous accounting period included charge-offs
of long-term loans to consumer finance subsidiaries. Because TRYTO
and Wide returned positive results in the current year, total income
includes a ¥7,100 million reversal from the allowance for bad debts, and
¥7,955 million in proceeds from sales of fixed assets and ather iterns.

Total expenses in the year ended March 2008 amounted to ¥210,955
million, a reduction of ¥439,906 million, or 67.6 %, from the previous
year's total The decline in total receivables outstanding was accompanied
by a reduction in the amount of funds required, with the result that
interest on borrowings declined by ¥2,797 million, or 10.7%, year on year
to ¥23,233 million. In accordance with guidelines issued by the Japanese




Institute of Certified Public Accountants at the end of the previous year's
accounting period, we provided a new allowance for loans written off as
a resule of interest refund claims. This special-cost item was not incurred
in the current year, and there was also a reduction in bad debt expenses,
As a result, loan losses were ¥ 115,014 million, or 52.7 %, below the
previous year's level at ¥103,071 million. Interest refund-related costs
declined by ¥96,020 million, or 78.1%, to ¥26,936 million,

In accordance with guidelines issued by the Japanese Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, we calculated the allowance for interest
refunds in our half-yearly results for the year ended March 2008 using
the “basic principle” method, whereby the provision is made for the
total amount thai could be incurred, instead of the “exception” method
based on historical data and revised calcuiations. This resufied in a
supplementary provision of ¥26.936 million for interest refund
expenses. Interest refunds in the current year totaled ¥50,425 million
and were covered from the allowance. Cost restructuring measures
reduced selling, general and administrative expenses (including labor
costs, leasing expenses and rents) by ¥22,948 million, or 27.4 %, to
¥60,720 million. Total expenses also include ¥ 1,472 million for other
iterns, including ¥602 million in losses on disposal of fixed assets, and
¥521 million in contract cancellation adjustments.

Non-consolidated net income before income taxes amounted to
¥28,674 million, compared with a loss of ¥341.,163 million in the previous
year, Provision was made for ¥3,634 million in deferred corporation tax,
residential tax and enterprise tax from previous years, but the application
of tax effect accounting resulted in an adjusement of ¥2,029 million, with
the result that tax expenses toialed ¥1.605 million. This left net income of
¥27,069 million, compared with a net loss of ¥359,399 millien in the
previous year. Net income per share was ¥188.24.

Segment Information

Loans

In October 2006, AIFUL introduced tighter lending criteria ahead of other
major lenders. i took this step in anticipation of temporary market
disruption following the full enforcement of the armended Money Lending
Business Law, and also 1o make an early start on actions to limit future
loan losses. AIFUL maintained this stance in the year ended March 2008,
with the result that total receivabies outstanding in the loan segment
dectined by ¥239,732 million, or 18.5%, 1o ¥1,058 880 million, compared
with the position at the end of the previous accounting period.

In the core unsecured loan category, the number of new loan
applications (excluding affinity cards) shifted 10 a recovery trend, with a
year-on-year increase of 4.8% 1o 324 thousand. This growth reflecis the
resumption of adventising activities and other marketing efforts, including
the introduction of a new range of loans for specific purposes. However,
the application of tighter lending criteria meant that the number of
applications approved declined by 25.7% to 115 thousand, and the annual
approval rale was 3.6 percentage points lower at 34.7%. This caused the
balance of unsecured loans outstanding to shrink by ¥177,252 million, or
17.8%, to ¥817,825 million, The number of accounts also declined by 280
thousand, or 15.7 %, to 1,508 thousand, and the balance per account by
¥14 thousand to ¥542 thousand. In addition to the early reduction of
interest rates on new loans, AIFUL also proactively applied preferential
interest rates to existing quality custormers. As a result, the effective average
yield on unsecured loans declined by 1.9 percentage points to 21.0%.

In the home equity loan {secured lan) category, AIFUL continued ©
apply conservative lending criteria in the year ended March 2008, This
stance was based on an in-depth review of products and operating
methods that AIFUL initiated in the previous year with the aim of
strengthening its compliance systems. As a result, the number of new

TOTAL INCOME/TOTAL EXPENSES {AIFUL) NET INCOME (AIFUL}) EPS {AIFUL)
{Millions of yen} {Millions of yen) (Yen)
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loan applications was 55.0% lower at 509, while the number of
applications approved declined by 64.0% to 277. The balance of home
equity loans outstanding was ¥53,210 millicn, or 19.4 %, lower at
¥221,577 million, and the number of accounts as of March 31, 2008 was
17.3 % down at 69 thousand. These reductions in both the balance of
loans and the number of accounis were accompanied by a decline in the
balance per account, which fell by ¥81 thousand to ¥3,188 thousand. The
effective average yield was 1.4 percentage points lower at 12.0%.

[n the small business loan category, AiFUL suspended approvals of
new loans at the non-consolidated level in December 2007 in
preparation for the centralization of this business. The number of new
applications was consequently 78.9% lower year on year ar 352, and
the number of loans approved fell by 86.4% to 54. The balance of loans
outstanding as of March 31, 2008 was ¥19,478 million, a year-on-year
decline of ¥9,269 million, or 32.2%. The number of accounis declined
by 28.4 % 10 15 thousand. The average balance per account was ¥72
thousand lower at ¥1,263 thousand, and the effective average yield
declined by 3.3 percentage points o 19.4%.

Loan Guarantees
AIFUL provides credit guarantees under operating agreements with
regional banks, credit cooperatives and other financial institutions. The
financial institutions process and action loan applications, while AIFUL
provides credit screening of applications from individuals and business
proprietors and subrogated performance of overdue loans. Income from
this activity takes the form of guaraniee fees paid by the partner
financial institutions.

As of March 31, 2008, AIFUL was holding guarantees for outstanding
loans amounting 1o ¥56.224 million, a year-on-year decline of ¥2,690
million, or 4.6%. This total includes ¥34,826 million in guarantees on

loans to individuals. Escalating competition in this area caused the
balance 10 decline by 8.8 %, In the area of guarantees for loans (o
business proprietors, AIFUL has unigue expertise and faces few
competitors, The balance in this category increased by 3.2 % year on
year to ¥21,397 million as of March 3!, 2008. Operating agreements
were signed with another 11 financial institutions, bringing the total to
44 for guarantees for unsecured loans to individuals, and 68 for
guarantees for unsecured loans to business proprietors.

Balance Sheet

Total assets declined by ¥124,869 million, or 7.5%, 10 ¥1,535,958 million
as of March 31, 2008. Current assets were reduced by ¥86,393 miilion,
or 7.0%. to ¥1,152,102 million, while fixed assers declined by ¥38,476
million, or 9.1% at ¥383,856 million.

An analysis of current assets shows that liquidity in hand increased
because of an issue of new shares to a third party and an issue of
convertible bonds with stock acquisition rights totaling ¥120,000 million
implemented in February 2008. Cash and deposits increased by
¥96,308 million, or 128.0%, to ¥171,563 miillion as of March 31, 2008.
However, the continuing application of tighter lending criteria and
increased provision for loan losses caused outstanding receivables to
decline by ¥239,732 million, or 18.5%, to ¥1,058,880 million. Loan
charge-offs appeared to have peaked out, and the allowance provided in
the year ended March 2008 was reduced. There was also a reversal
from the allowance for interest refunds. As a result, provision for bad
loans declined by ¥60,288 million, or 23.0%, to ¥201,898 million. (This
total includes ¥93,504 million to provide for loans written off as a result
of interest refunds.)

Fixed assets were lower primarily because of reductions in
investments and other assets. The most important factor was a

LOANS OUTSTANDING (AIFUL)
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reduction in the balance of long-term loans to affiliated companies,
which was ¥49,212 million, or 17.7%, lower at ¥228,291 million. This
reflects the application of more stringent lending criteria by all group
companies, which led 1o a decline in the loan balances of subsidiaries
and reduced their need for funds.

Current fiabilities increased by ¥207 million, or 0.1%, w0 ¥398,737
million, while fixed liabilities declined by ¥192,087 million, or 19.1%, to
¥815,205 million. A lower balance of receivables outstanding reduced
the need for funds. This factor, together with the repayment of debt and
the redemption of bonds, caused the balance of funds procured (o
decline by ¥152,669 million, or 12.8%, to ¥1,038,291 million.

Changes affecting fixed liabilities included the use of the "basic
principle” method rather than the “exception” method to calculate the
allowance for interest refunds in the half-yearly results for the year
ended March 2008. This resulted in a ¥26,936 million increase in the
allowance. However, the allowance was used to cover toial interest
refunds for the year, which amounted to ¥50,425 million, and was
consequently ¥23,489 million, or 19.1% lower than the previous year's
level, at ¥99,467 million as of March 31, 2008,

Total equity amounted to ¥322,016 million as of March 31, 2008, a
year-on-year increase of ¥67,011 million, or 26.3%. The addition of
¥50,000 million raised through a third-party aliocation of new shares to
commen stock and the capital surplus, together with net income of
¥27,069 million, brought toial shareholders' equity to ¥324,244 milion,
an increase of ¥69,863 million, or 27.5%. over the previous year's level.
The equity ratio increased by 5.6 percentage points to 21.0%.

Bad Debt
Bad debt amounted to ¥240,685 million as of March 31, 2008, an
increase of ¥2,553 million, or 1.1%, compared with the previous year's

TOTAL EQUITY (AIFUL}
(Millions of yen)

figure, This includes ¥12,078 million for unsecured loans, a year-on-year
increase of ¥9,741 million, or 7.4%. The levet of bad debt temporarily
increased as a result of voluntary curbs on recovery operations and a
review of related activities after the imposition of administrative
penalties. However, the amount has peaked and is now starting to
decline. Bad debt relating to secured loans, which consist mainly of
home equity loans, increased by ¥12,294 million, or 11.5%, 1o ¥119.607
miltion. Because the recovery of collateralized loans takes ionger than
procedures for charging off unsecured loans, the level of bad debt in this
category is likely to remain high.

{Millions of yen)

2008

2006 2007

—
Unsecured | Secured | Unseoured | Secured [RSSeiRRCEaN

Loans in legat
bankruptcy 4,169 (26,140 4,152(32,783 EEEEXIELE:LY
Non-accrual loans | 32,549 | 31,329 | 74,403 | 68,529 [GREINIFENE]
Accruing loans

contraciually past
due three months
Or MOre as to
principal or interest
payments

Restructured loans 35,617 766 | 36,208

11,900| 3,767 16,056 4,305 NREErARFR-pI

1,695 SYAEYAR Wi

Bad deht charge-offs increased by ¥19.551 million, or 14.8%, year on
year to ¥i5t,234 million. This higher figure reflects a voluntary curb on
recovery operations in the year ended March 2008, with the result that
charge-offs reached their peak level in the year under review, The
quality of receivables is improving because of the introduction of more
stringent lending criteria, The impact of the voluntary curb on recovery
operations also peaked out in the year under review. The allowance for
loan tosses was reduced because of a projected reduction in bad loan
charge-oifs in the coming year, with the result that loan losses were
¥115,0t4 miflion, or 52.7%, lower at ¥103,071 million. In the year ended
March 2008, the allowance for loan losses, which is treated as a current
asset, amounted to ¥201,897 million, including ¥93.504 million to
provide for loans written off as a result of interest refunds.

(Millions of yen)

2006 2007 2008

Allowance for bad debt

at beginning of fiscal year 81,928 | 85659 PLYALL
Bad debt charge-offs 91,890 | 131,684 REIWAL
Direct charge-offs 11,494 48,469 190
Allowance for bad debt 92,026 | 169,616 RLIPR:I3
Charge-offs and provision for doubtful

loans, advances 1o subsidiary and

claims in bankruptcy 103,520 | 218,086 [RlisXury
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AIFUL has three charge-off schedules. Loans are written off
immediately if borrowers are bankrupt, and after six months if
borrowers have disappeared or are deceased. Non-performing loans
are written off after 12 months. An analysis of charge-offs of
unsecured loans in the year ended March 2008 shows that loans to
bankrupt borrowers accounted for 11.9%, a reduction of 6.4
percentage peints, and those classified as “disappeared” stood at
7.7%, which was 2.4 percentage points lower. However, non-
performing loans, including loans involving intervention by attorneys,
accounted for 80.4 % of charge-offs, an increase of 8.8 percentage
points. Charge-offs resulting from bankruptcy and disappearance are
tending to decline, in part because of a continuing downward trend
in applications for personal bankruptcy. However, the amount of
loans liguidated because of intervention by attorneys and other
parties, including demands for interest refunds, remains high. The
resulting increase in the amount of claims written off is a source of
upward pressure on total bad debt charge-offs.

(%)
2006 2007
Bankrupt 319 183
Disappeared 15.0 10.1
Non-performing 13.5 28.1
Abandoned 39.6 43.5

LIFE Co., Ltd.

Overview (Managed Asset Basis)

LIFE undertook a major restructuring of its business in anticipation of
changes in the competitive environment resulting from the enforcement
of the amended Money Lending Business Law and changes to the
Instaliment Sales Law. It strengthened its business base in the core
credit card segment and continued to restructure its business portfolio
while also reducing costs. LIFE’s goal is to shift to a business model that
avoids excessive reliance on lending.

In the year ended March 2008, total receivables outstanding declined
by ¥64.838 million, or 9.0%. to ¥653,045 million. Results for individual
segments show sustained growth in the credit card shopping loan
business. The balance of credit card receivables rose by ¥10,455 million,
or 8.9%, to ¥127,677 million. In contrast, the balance of per-item
shopping loans fell by ¥49,705 millien, or 44.2%, to ¥62,807 million.
This resulted from a change in transaction policies, including the
introduction of more stringent credit criteria for member merchants. In
the lending segment, LIFE ook over ¥21,339 million in receivables from
four AIFUL Group consumer finance subsidiaries. However, it continued
to apply stringent lending criteria, with the result that the balance of
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receivables declined by ¥16,069 million, or 4.1%, to ¥380,191 million.
The balance of credit guarantees was also lower, with a decline of
¥9.527 million, or 11.5%, to ¥73,486 million. This resulied frorm LIFE's
decision to withdraw from conventional guarantee products, which
were making a limited contribution to earnings.

LIFE's operating revenues for the year ended March 2008 amounted
to ¥120,667 million, a reduction of ¥8,812 million, or 6.8%, compared
with the previous year's result. Reasons for this lower figure include a
reduced top line, resulting from the application of more stringent
lending policies, and a reduction in loan interest rates. Operating costs
deciined by ¥32,998 million, or 22.2%, to ¥115,561 million. In addition
to reductions in labor costs and other operating costs achieved through
cost restructuring, this saving also resulted from lower credit costs,
including lower interest refunds and loan-loss costs.

RECEIVABLES

2006 2007
Expanding segments 44.7% 52.1%
Foundation segmenis 458% 38.7%
Shrinking segments 9.5% 9.2%

These figures added up to lower revenues and higher income.
Operating income was ¥5,106 million, compared with an operating loss
of ¥19,079 million in previous year. Ordinary income reached ¥5,183
million, reversing the previous year's ¥18,957 million loss. Net income
also returmed to positive Rgures at ¥3,427 miilion, up from a net loss of
¥43,313 million in the previous year.

Segment Information

Credit Cards

LIFE has targeted its credit card business for expansion. It continued to
enhance customer services and encourage consumers 10 use the LIFE
Card as their main card.

In the year ended March 2008, LIFE's basic policy was (o expand the
effective cardholder base through a diversified affinity card strategy,
and to strengthen existing affinity card relationships while developing
new affinity relationships with retailers, medical institutions, leisure
facility operators, and other organizations. Synergies with Chintat Anshin
Hosho K.K., also an AIFUL group company, were also exploited to
expand the number of affinity cards with the potential to generate
steady business, including rent payments.

LIFE diversified the application channels for its proprietary card, to
include onvline applications and sign-up booths at public events. These
efforts helped to fift the number of new cards issued in the year ended



March 2008 to 1.84 million. As a result, the number of effective cardholders
increased by approximately 750 thousand or 5.4 %, to 14.81 million.
Enhancemens to customer services included a change to the “LIFE
Thanks Present” point system to extend the life of accumulated points.
Cardhclder convenience was also enhanced through LIFE’s continuing
efforts 1o build a diversified range of member merchants, including
public utilities. A new contract was signed with the Sociat Insurance
Agency, allowing cardholders to use their LIFE Cards to pay national
pension insurance contributions. LIFE also reached agreement with NTT
DOCOMO, Inc. on the joint promaotion of the ID™ e-money system,
including a LIFE Card iD registration campaign. These and other
initiatives brought significant improvements to cardholder services. As a
result of these efforts, a substantial increase in the cardholder base was

accompanied by a 0.9% rise in effective utilization rate for the LIFE
Card, which reached 31.0%.

In addition to growth in the effective number of cardholders and a
rising card utilization rate, there was atso growth in the number of
cardholders using the LIFE Card as their main credit card. These trends
were reflected in sustained growth in credit card transactions, which
increased by ¥103,492 million, or 18,4 %, 10 ¥664,791 million. The
effective vield was 0.6 percentage points higher at 12.5%, and revenues
for credit card shopping loans increased by 16.8% to ¥15,547 million.

Per-item Shopping Loans
In the previous year, LIFE implemented major changes in its transaction
policy for affiliated merchants in readiness for the introduction of tighter

1. CREDIT CARD SHOPPING LOANS

LIFE’s cards allow consumers to use credit to shop at or get cash advances
from affiliated retailers and merchants that accept MasterCard, jCB, or Visa
cards. Unlike shopping, credit cards involve a credit check only at the time
they are issued and not at each time of purchase. They are also convenient
because consumers can freely make purchases up 1o their credit limits, and
attractive since they include a host of card member services. LIFE's credit
cards include ones issued with partner companies, which benefit frem
added convenience for their customers, improved cusiomer management
capabilities, and another way to promote sales,
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2. PER-ITEM SHOPPING LOANS

Under this system, consumers without credit cards or the required
cash are able to purchase the goods they want with financing
from LIFE. Credit reviews are conducted at the time of purchase.
Consumers can cheose 10 make a cne-tlime payment, installment
payments, or payments cut of future bonuses, depending on
whichever financing option fits their lifestyle. The system is also
actractive to affiliated retailers since LIFE services the loans, thereby
freeing the retailers from customers’ credit risk and allowing them
1o streamline their operations.
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3. LOAN GUARANTEES

Under this system, LIFE conducts credit reviews on behalf of partner
financial institutions that provide financing to customers, and guarantees
the financing. This system allows banks to quickly provide their
customers with unsecured loans, with the help of LIFE's scoring system.
At the same time, banks can minimize their credit risks and benefit from
having another source of stable earnings. LIFE's expertise comes heavily
into play in the credit guarantee business, which requires strong risk-
management capabilities based on access to a voluminous amount of
consumer credit information and the ability to manage customers’ credit.
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regulations following amendments to the Instaliment Sales Law. [n the
year ended March 2008, it continued its strategy of selecting quality
receivables through policies that included the application of more
stringent screening ¢riteria for affiliated merchants, and the continuing
implemeniation of credit checks partway through contract periods.
These measures were reflected in reduced purchase transactions, which
fell by ¥21,187 million, or 65.1%, to ¥11,341 million. Yield declined by
0.5 percentage points to 8.5%, and revenues from per-item shopping
loans by 47.6%, to ¥6,926 million.

Loan Guarantees

In the loan guarantee segment, LIFE continued to reduce its
involvement in conventional guarantee preducts because of their
limited profitability, and to restructure its guarantee portfolio and
improve its earning potential in this area by actively marketing new-
type products with higher margins. As a result, the balance of business
in discontinued areas, including conventional bank guarantees and
housing loan guarantees, was reduced by 13.1% to ¥48,737 million.
However, the amount of new-type guarantee business remained
stagnant, and the balance declined by 8.0% to ¥24,749 million.
Revenues from loan guarantees were 7.9 % lower at ¥3,809 million,
but the yield improved by 0.1 percentage poinis to 4.9 %, in part
because of the restructuring of LIFE’s guarantee portfolio. LIFE
established alliances with five additional financial institutions in the
year ended March 2008, bringing the total to 131.

Loans

Like other AIFUL group companies, LIFE continued to tighten its lending
criteria, At the same time, it used an enhanced product line-up, including
business [oans secured by real estate, and LIFE Special-Purpose Loans, to
attract new customers. In December 2007, LIFE tock over loans provided
by four AIFUL Group consumer finance subsidiaries to approximately
40,000 custorners under the Group's business rationalization strategy. The
purpose of this move was to expand LIFE’S loan revenues.

The balance of receivables as of March 31, 2008 was ¥380, 191
millior, a year-on-year reduction of ¥ 16,069 million, or 4.1 %. This
includes a balance of ¥221,691 for LIFE Card cashing loans, which
declined by ¥8,293 million, or 3.6%, and a ¥156,697 miliion balance
for LIFE Cash Plaza cash advances, which were down by ¥8,183
million, or 5.0%.

In October 2007, LIFE reduced the maximum interest rate for cash
advances using the Playcard issued through LIFE Cash Plazas to {8 %,
ard in December 2007 the maximum credit card rate for new cash
advance transactions was also cut to 18%. LIFE ook these steps ahead
of the full implementation of the amended Money Lending Business
Law with the aim of attracting quality customers. This factor, together
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with a lower loan balance, caused loan revenues in the year ended
March 2008 to decline by ¥4,906 million, or 5.4%, to ¥86,436 million.
The reat yield on locans was 1.3 percentage points lower at 21.7%.

Bad Debt
In the year ended March 2008, the amount of loans written off
increased by ¥3,777 million, or 8.5%, to ¥48,275 million, and the
charge-off ratio was 1.19 percentage points higher at 7.39%. The main
reason for this increase was a partial review of recovery procedures in
the previous year, as part of measures to ensure regulatory compliance.
This caused a temporary rise in the armount of non-performing loans,
and the resulting increase in write-offs reached a peak in the year under
review. The allowance for bad debt was reduced by ¥3,672 million, or
7.2%, 10 ¥47,435 million. Loan charge-offs are expected to decline in
the coming year and thereafter, reflecting the effect of tighter lending
criteria, and the normalization of recovery operatfons. The reserve for
tnterest refunds was increased by ¥1,600 million, or 6.0%. to ¥28,100
millicn as of March 31, 2008 on the basis of historical data and recent
trends in the level of refund demands.

{Millions of yen)

2006 2007 2008

Bad debt charge-offs 37,266 44,498 48,275
Ratio of bad debt charge-offs 478% 6.20% 7.39%
Allowance for bad debts 40,162 51,107 47,435
Reserve for interest refunds 1,646 26,500 28,100

Other Consolidated Subsidiaries

Small Business Loans

BUSINEXT CORPORATION

BUSINEXT CORPORATION was established as a joint venture with The
Suritomo Trust & Banking Co., Lid. as a financial services company
specializing primarily in services for medium-risk businesses. Since
commencing operations in April 2001, it has developed its own
corporate scoring system and created a unique business model that
allows it to respond quickly te applications for unsecured, non-
guaranieed loans. This strategy has brought sustained growth in its
business activities.

In the year ended March 2008, BUSINEXT maintained a
conservative lending stance because of a deteriorating economic
environment that included a sharp rise in the number of bankruptcies
in the small and medium-sized enterprise sector. It adapted quickly to
changing business conditions by intensifying its marketing of secured
products, and by reducing operating expenses. BUSINEXT also
increased its emphasis on face-to-face marketing, either at customer’s
premises or at its branches in major cities.




Despite a challenging business environment, BUSINEXT was able to
maintain growth in its top line. The balance of receivables reached
¥83,192 million as of March 31, 2008, an increase of ¥863 million, or
1.0%. compared with the level at the end of the previous financial
year. Operating revenues were ¥ 189 million, or 1.7 %, higher, at
¥11,349 million. Increased financing costs and loan losses caused
operating expenses to increase by ¥1,021 miflion, or 10.2%, to ¥11,058
million, with the result that ordinary income was ¥859 million, or
76.5%. lower at ¥264 million. Net income declined by ¥572 million, or
87.9%. ro ¥79 million.

City’s Corporation

Acquired by AIFUL in October 2002, City's provides loans to high-risk
business borrowers. It is preparing for the full implementation of the
amended Money Lending Business Law by modifying its cost structure
through changes to its branch network and workforce. It is also building
a new income structure by shifting its focus toward the mediumerisk
segment, using know-how provided by BUSINEXT.

Results for the year ended March 2008 were affected by the
tightening of loan criteria. Despite this, City's was able to increase its
loan balance by ¥1.831 million, or 3.1%, to ¥60,147 million, Contributing
factors included active marketing of secured products, the intreduction
of loans secured by medical fee receivables, which BUSINEXT has
marketed successfully, and the expansion of alliances with chambers of
commerce and industry and other organizations. Portfolio restructuring
resulted in an increased weighting toward low-interest products, and the
average yield fell by 6.5 percentage points to 17.2%. Operating revenues
were ¥3,784 million, or 27,9 %, lower at ¥9,766 million. While cost
restructuring brought substantial reductions in labor costs and selling,
general and administrative expenses, City’s took a conservative stance
on provision for loan charge-offs because of the persistently high leve! of
bad loans. This was reflected in an ordinary loss of ¥1,345 million, and a
net loss of ¥1,622 million.

Consumer Finance Subsidiaties
As part of a strategy designed to optimize operating efficlency through
the reallocation of group-level management resources, plans were
made for the restructuring of the four consumer finance subsidiaries
and their absorption by AIFUL CORPORATION. Completion of this
process was tentatively scheduled for March 2009, in the case of TCM.
Co. Ltd. and Passkey Co., Lid., and March 2010, in the case of TRYTO
CORPORATION and Wide Corporation. This plan was later revised to
create an optimal scheme from a customer service perspective by
partially transferring receivables to LIFE Co., Lid.

In the year ended March 2008, the outstanding loans of the four
companies declined by 48.1% to ¥77,760 miflion. This reflecis the

transfer of receivables, and the suspension of new lending to allow the
companies to concentrate their efforis on loan recovery, TRYTO's loan
balance was reduced by 46.7% to ¥29,274 million, and that of Wide by
49.5% 1o ¥40,887 miliion. An analysis of earnings shows that this
decline in the loan balance caused TRYTO's operating revenues to fall
by 36.9% year on year (o ¥9,467 million. The company made
conservative provision for bad loans, and its ordinary income was ¥305
million. Net income amounted to ¥449 million, Wide's operating
revenues declined by 37.8% to ¥14.087 million. Because it had already
made ample provision for bad ieans and interest refunds in the previous
year, it was able to record ordinary incormne of ¥6,330 million and net
income of ¥6,276 million.

Other Subsidiaries

AsTry Loan Services Corporation

AsTry Loan Services Corporation was established in November 2001 by
AIFUL and Aczora Bank, Ltd. According to a rating issued by Standard
& Poars in December 2006, AsTry has ample capacity as a special loan
servicer, and its outlook is stable. The company has earned an excellent
reputation for its ability to service contracis. [n the year ended March
2008, it integrated its head office management divisions to speed up
decision-making and improve operating efficiency. It also commenced
business operations at a new office. Another focus was the
reinforcement of internal control systems, including the achievement
of “Privacy Mark” certification. As of March 31, 2008, the balance of
receivables purchased was ¥12,847 million, a year-on-year increase of
0.7%. Both revenues and income were higher, with operating revenues
increasing by ¥2,908 million, or 78.1%, to ¥6,634 million. Both ordinary
income and net income shifted to positive figures with results of ¥141
million and ¥119 million, respectively.

New Frontier Partners Co., Ltd. (NFP)

This venture capitat company became an AIFUL subsidiary on March
31, 2004. NFP’s mission is o create corporate value through venture
capital by supplying growth capital to medium-sized companies and
venrures through its investment role, and by diagnosing and treating
businesses through its consulting activities. In the year ended March
2008, NFP continued to pursue aggressive strategies, including the
development of new investment targets and the expansion of secondary
investment activities, However, market stagnation caused a 1.7 %
decline in its total investments, including investments through funds,
which armounted to ¥4,748 million as of March 31, 2008. Operating
revenues were 25% lower at ¥761 million. There was an ordinary loss
of ¥536 million and a net loss of ¥541 million.
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Risk Factors

The fellowing is a list of the major risk factors that can have an effect
on the AIFUL Group's operating results, stock price and financial
position. This is not a complete list of the risk factors that, in the
opinion of management, have the potential of significantly affecting
the Group. Other than the risk factors listed below, there are a
number of risk factors that are difficult 1o predict. Management is
aware of the possibility of a negative impact on the Group's operating
results, stock price and financial position due to these risk factors,
and has a policy of taking actions’ to prevent these problems and 1o
respond properly in the event a problem occurs. However, there is no
agsurance that the Group can avoid all risk factors or can respond
properly to a problem. Forward-looking statements in this section are
based on judgments of the Group as of June 25, 2008, the date on
which the Ministry of Finance Securities Report {Yukashoken
Hokokusho) was submitted.

Risk Factors Involving the Operating Environment
Many faciors influence the ability of the AIFUL Group to maintain
past levels of income and growth or improve on those levels. Those
discussed here are seen as the most significant ones.

(13 Econamic conditions and market trends in Japan, especially in the
consumer credit market

(2} Escalation of competition in the consumer finance market

(3) Changes in laws and regulations relating to consumer credit,
especially the regulatery framework relating to statutory maxirmum
interest rates, and the enforcement of those laws and regulations, as
well as court decisions concerning the related laws and regulations,
the resulting changes 0 accounting standards, and the incidence of
litigation, including lawsuits demanding interest refunds

(4) Changes in the Group’s capacity to provide credit, in the number
of accounts, in the average balance per account, in the average
interest rate on loans, and in the delinquency ratio

(5) Changes in the Group's ability to procure funds because of market
interest rate, bond and securitization trends. changes in the
Group's credit status, and other factors

{6) Changes in expenses and losses, such as fees and commissions,
advertising expenses, and labor costs

(7} Unfavorable media reporting or scandals concerning the AIFUL
Group or the consumer finance industry
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in Aprit 2007, AIFUL CORPORATION established a Risk Management
Committee, which reports directly to the Board of Directors. Its task
is 10 coordinate rish rmanagement across the entire organization and
develop systems to avoid risk and ensure an appropriate response in
the event problems arise. However, the AIFUL Group’s financial
position or business performance may be adversely affected by a
range of factors, such as changes in the business environment,
including the tightening or easing of regulatory systems, the
competitive environment, or economic fluctuations.

Risks Concerning Multiple Debtors, etc.

In recent years, although the number of consumers that have
become indebted by borrowing from multiple lending institutions or
by using multiple credit cards is decreasing, there has been an
increase in the number of consumers, including AIFUL Group
customers, seeking legal protection. These social problems are linked
1o the economic situation, as well as to changes 1o legal systems in
the area of consumer protection.

The AIFUL Group is taking various steps, including the introduction
of tighter credit criteria, and the use of personal credit rating agencies
and the Group’s own screening systems to check the repayment
capacity of borrowers, including ongoing analyses of customers’
credit situation during the period of loans. We have also modified our
products to encourage systematic repayment under revolving credit
agreements by setting a maximum repayment period of five years.

However, if these measures fail to alleviate the problem of
multiple indebtedness because of future developments in the
economic environment, changes to legal systems or other factors, it
is possible that a credit crunch will occur, leading to deterioration in
the cash flow positions of our customers. Problems such as these
could cause market contraction affecting the entire industry, as well
as increased credit costs resulting from loan write-downs and other
factors. These outcomes could affect the financial position and
business performance of the AIFUL Group.

Laws and Regulations

1. Compliance with Laws and Regulations

On April 14, 2006, the Kinki Finance Bureau of the Ministry of Finance
conducied a search of AIFUL CORPORATION premises. This action
resulted in the discovery of various regulatory violations, including the
fraudutent preparation and exercise of powers of attorney, demands
for repayment from persons subject to arders for the commencement
of assistance, repeated telephone calls to customers’ places of
employment with the aim of soliciting repayment, persistent requests
to third parties for assistance in the recovery of claims, and improper
recording of negotiations. As a result of these violations, the authorities




ordered AIFUL to suspend business operations at five branches for a
period of 20 to 25 days, and at other branches and premises for a
period of three days from May 8, 2006.

The Company has established a8 Compliance Committee and
created the Compliance Coordination Department to serve as its
secretariat. The Committee reports directly to the Board of Directors
and provides advice on the development of compliance systems, and
measures (0 prevent inappropriate activities, such as violations of laws
and regulations relating to the money-lending business, and
unauthorized disclosure of information. The Company has also created
information gathering mechanisms and systems (o prevent regulatory
violations. These support company-wide verification and monitoring of
compliance systems. Management of hotlines, the gathering of
compliance-related information, and systems relating to disciplinary
measures have all been integrated under the Compliance Coordination
Department. The aim of these and other changes is to allow integrated
complianée management across all divisions, and to strengthen
compliance systems. We have also formulated operating rules as part
of our efforts to inform staff about the importance of regulatory
compliance. Staff members acquire legal knowledge through in-house
educational programs, and we are working to strengthen awareness of
compliance. The effectiveness of internal auditing systems, including
telephone monitoring, has also been improved, [n addition, we have
established structures to ensure that these and other systems are
reviewed at appropriate intervals.

Despite these efforts, there is a possibility that employees or other
persons in the AIFUL Group may violate laws and regulations or engage
in inappropriate behavior. In such cases, AIFUL will be required 1o take
responsibility through the imposition of administrative penaliies or other
measures. Such situations may affect the financial position and business
performance of the AIFUL Group.

2, Business Restrictions

The loan business of the AIFUL Group, including its core consumer
finance business, is subject 1o regulation under the Money-Lending
Business Control and Regulation Law and the Investment Deposit and
Interest Rate Law, Business restrictions and prohibitions under these
laws inctude the prohibition of excessive lending, a requirement 10
disclose and advertise loan terms and other information, the
prohibition of exaggerated claims in advertising, a requirement 1o
provide explanatory information when contracts are signed and at
other times, obligations to provide documents before guarantee
contracts are signed, obligations to provide documents when contracts
are signed, obligations to provide documents and receipts, maintatn
proper accounts and makes accounts available for inspection,
restrictions on debt collection activities, requirements concerning the

return of claim documents and the display of business licenses, and
restrictions on the sale of receivables and the delegation of authority.
There are also requirements concerning the disclosure of transaction
histories, the appointment of registered money-lending officers, the
carrying of identification documents, as well as requirements
concerning the appropriate handling of personal information,
including stacutory requirements reating to the information shown in
payment demands.

AIFUL is also subject to supervision by the Financial Services
Agency, which on December 19, 2007 issued comprehensive
supervisory guidelines for moneylenders. Under these guidelines,
tenders are required to verify the borrower's income, such as by
obtaining documentary evidence of annual income, if the amount
borrowed is more than ¥500,000 from one lender or more than
¥1,500,000 from multiple lenders. Lenders are also required 1o
establish specific objective lending criteria to ensure that the
repayment burden is not excessive, such as by ensuring that total
monthly repayments, including repayments to other lenders, do
not exceed one-third of the borrower’s monthly income, as
determined from the borrower’s annual income, existing debt and
other evidence.

The AIFUL Group’s shopping loan business, including credit card
loans and per-itern shopping loans, is subject to resirictions under the
Instaliment Sales Law. These include requirements concerning the
disclosure of transaction terms and the provision of documents, and
restrictions on the amount of compensation that can be dermanded in
the event of a contract cancellation or other situation, There are also
provisions concerning the right to make complaints to a party
arranging installment purchases, the prevention of purchasing beyond
the purchasers’ ability to pay, and the prevention of consumer
problems relating to continuous services.

Under the Money-Lending Business Control and Regulation Law,
whenever the AIFUL Group, as a money-lender, enters into a
guarantee agreement, it must first ;;rovide the person intending to
become a guarantor with documents explaining the content of the
guarantee agreement. Whenever a loan agreement or guarantee
agreement is signed, the borrower must be provided with documents
clearly explaining the terms of the agreement, and the guarantor with
documents clearly explaining the terms of the guarantee, These
documents must be provided without delay.

Under the existing administrative guidelines (supervisory
precautions relating to financial supervision and other matters,
volume IlI: For Non-Bank Finance Companies), which have been
abolished (with some exceptions) following the formulation of the
new supervisory guidelines, the lender was required to provide
specified documents when agreements were signed, and to issue
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documents (or forward them by mail without delay) containing alt
information required by law, whenever a debtor borrowed funds
through an ATM or manned branch.

In August 2003, AIFUL modified its ATM software to support the
provision of documents containing all information required by law.
The content of this information has since been maodified to reflect a
cabinet office ordinance promulgated on April 11, 2006, partially
amending the enforcement regulations for the Money-Lending
Business Control and Regulation Law. The effect of this order was 1o
change statutory requirements concerning infermation that must be
included in receipts issued by the lender when repayments are
received, and in payment demands.

When customers obtain loans through the ATMs of partner
institutions, documents containing the information required by law
are mailed individually to those customers withcut delay, provided
that the customers have given prior consent for this service. The
Financial Services Agency has the authority to impose administrative
penalties, including orders ro totally or partially suspend business
operations, if a money-lender fails to comply with regulatory
requirements concerning the provision of documents and information.
it can also restrict the use of ATMs owned by partrer institutions and
has the authority to cancel regisiration as a money-ender. There are
issues concerning the provision of documents and related maters,
and if this situation results in adminisirative action against the AIFUL
Group, the Group's financial position and business performance could
be affected. It would also be necessary to review the Group's
operating methods.

An act partially amending laws and regulations governing the
money-lending business was promulgated in December 2006,
resulting in the changes to the Interest Limitation Law, the Investment
Deposit and Interest Rate Law and the Money-Lending Business
Controt and Regulation Law. The changes will be phased in over a
period of approximately three years from the date of promulgation,
and some of the changes took effect on December 19, 2007. The first
measure, which relates to business operations, stipulates the
establishment of internal regulations to ensure that operations are
conducted in a sound and appropriate manner, including the
provision of important information to the barrower, etc., according to
the nature and method of the business operations, and taking into
account the knowledge, experience and financial situation of the
borrower. The lender is also required to establish regulatory
compliance structures, etc., providing for the creation of systemns,
including staff wraining, o ensure that operations are conducted in
accordance wiih those internal regulations. A second measure
imposes more stringent restrictions on lenders, including a prohibition
on certain actions, such as (a) the provisicn of false information o
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borrowers, etc., or the omission of important items from loan
agreements provided to borrowers, etc., (b) the making of affirmative
statements to borrowers, etc., about matters that have not yet been
confirmed, or the making of statements that are likely to mislead
borrowers, etc., into assuming that such matters have already been
confirmed, and {c) the making of statements likely to mislead parties
wha are about to become guarantors into assuming that the principal
borrower will be able to repay the debt reliably. A third measure
introduces a system of business improvement orders. A fourth
measure strengthens the voluntary regulatory functions of the
Financial Services Association. As a result of this measure, the Japan
Financial Services Association was established in December 2007 as a
voluniary regulatory organization. Votuntary regulations have since
been established under the auspices of that organization, including
rules against excessive lending, and advertising and solicitation rules,
To enhance the effectiveness of these voluntary regulations, the
Association has been given powers to investigate and audit members,
and to fine or expel members who fail to comply. As a member of
the Japan Financial Services Association, AIFUL is subject to these
voluntary regulations.

When the act partially amending laws and regulations governing
the money-lending business (promulgated in December 2006) 1akes
full effect, the maximum interest rate under the Investment Deposit
and Interest Rate Law will be reduced to the level of the Interest
Limitation Law (to 20% per annum). There will also be restrictions on
total lending. For example. a lender will be prohibited in principle from
making a loan if the total amount owed, including loans from other
lenders, would exceed one-third of the borrowers annuat income.

The AIFUL Group is determined to make the necessary adaptations
and is currently considering group restructuring measures and
business portfolio diversification. We will also develop new products
and modify our operations to reflect changes in related laws and
regulations. At the same time, we aim {0 improve management
efficiency through cost reductions achieved by closing and
amalgamating branches and optimizing workforce efficiency.
However, we may be unable to implement these measures as
planned because of other changes, such as further escalation of
competition or a credit squeeze, our ability (o attract customers being
adversely affected by other factors, leading to a decline in our earning
capacity, or marketing capacity declines because of a reduction in our
human resources. If this occurs, it is possible that we will be forced to
review our group business strategies.



3. Interest Rates on Loans and Deemed Payments

A law partially amending the Money-Lending Business Control and
Regulation Law came into effect on June 1, 2000. This new law reduced
the maximum interest rate that can be charged by a party engaged in
money-lending as a business from 40.004% to 29.2%. It also introduced
criminal penalties for violations of this rule. The maximum interest rates
charged by the AIFUL Group are below this limit.

An act partially amending the laws and regulations governing the
money-lending business came into force in December 2006, as
described earlier in this report. Changes to the related laws will
result in the fowering of the maximum interest rate from 29.2% 10
20%, and the abolition of the deemed repayment system under the
Money-Lending Business Conirol and Regulation Law, These
changes will be implemented over a period of approximately three
years from the date of promulgation.

Since August 1, 2007, AIFUL has complied with these requirements
by reducing its maximum inierest rate for customers entering into
new loan agreements, and for customers eligible to enter into
contracis under our new loan criteria. Our maximum rate is currently
below 18.0%. It is possible that the tightening of these restrictions will
have a negative effect on the financial position and business
performance of the AIFUL Group if its earning potential is reduced, its
market contraction leads to increased credit costs, or if ather
unforeseen Costs are incurred.

Under the Interest Limitation Law, the maximum inierest rate
under interest agreerments for cash loans to consumers is 20% where
the principal is less than ¥100.000, |18 % where the principal is
¥100,000 or more but less than ¥1 million, and 15% where the
principal is ¥1 million or more. Article 1 Paragraph 1 of the same law
siates that any amount in excess of these limiis is invalid, but
Paragraph 2 states that debtors who have voluntarily paid excess
amounts are not entitled to demand refunds. Article 43 of the Money-
Lending Business Control and Regulation Law states that if documents
as stipulated in Article 17 of the same law were issued to debtors, etc.,
when the loan was provided, and the debtor has voluntarily paid
excess interest that constitutes a payment under the Agreement for
which documents were issued under the provisions of Article 17, such
amounts will be deemed o be legally valid interest payments
(“deemed payments™), irrespective of the provisions of Article 1
Faragraph 1 of the Interest Limitation Law. This assumes that
documents as stipulated in Article 18 of the same law were issued
immediately after payment.

However, the Japanese Supreme Court ruled on January 13, 2006,
that special contract provisions requiring full payment of the entire
amount outstanding in the event that the borrower fails to make
interest payments by the due date are in effect mandarory payment

requirements covering amounis above the maximum rate stipulated
in the [nterest Limitation Law, and that such payments by the debtor
could not be regarded as voluntary. This includes amounts above the
maximum rate stipulated in the Interest Limitation Law. The court
further ruled that Article 15 Paragraph 2 of the Enforcement
Regulations of the Money-Lending Business Control and Regulation
Law, which states that other information, such as the date of the
agreement, can be substituted for an agreement number on receipts,
is invalid since it is outside the mandate of the law. The AIFUL Group
takes these rulings very seriously and is implementing appropriate
actions, including the introduction of agreement forms that reflect
these rulings.

Some loan products currently provided by the AIFUL Group include
contractual interest rates in excess of the maximum interest rates
stipulated in the [nterest Limitation Law, There have been cases in
which companies in the consumer finance industry have been targeted
by lawsuits demanding refunds of excess interest on the grounds that
agreement documenits did not meet the requirements stipulated in the
Meney-Lending Business Control and Regulation Law. There have
been also court rulings in favor of these claims.

There have been lawsuits against the AIFUL Group demanding
refunds of excess interest. Courts have accepted the plaintiffs’
argurmnent that the AIFUL Group, as a money-lender, failed to fulfill the
requirements for deemed payments under Money-Lending Business
Control and Regulation Law. In some cases the excess interest has
been refunded under out-of-court settlements. Refunds of excess
interest in the consolidated accounting period ended March 31, 2007
amounted to ¥73,221 million.

The AIFUL Group has provided interest refund reserves of ¥252,723
million to cover claims for excess interest refunds. This includes
¥108,973 million in [oans that are expected to be recoverable, which
were included in the loan-loss reserve, since it was estimated thart this
amount would be applied preferentially to loans.

However, the premises on which these accounting estimates were
based include historical refund data and current trends in interest
refunds. If refund demands exceed these premises, there is a
possibility that the financial position and business performance of the
AIFUL Group will be adversely affected.

4. Other Laws and Regulations

(1) Handling and Protection of Personal Information

Japan's Personat Information Protection Law, together with refated
guidelines established by various government agencies, took effect on
April 1, 2005. Under the Personal Information Protection Law,
businesses that handle personal information are required t¢ submit
reports when necessary. If obligations under the law are violated, the
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minister in charge is empowered to issue warnings or directives
requiring the necessary steps to be taken to protect the rights and
interests of individuals. The guidelines state that the purposes for
which persenal information will be used must be disclosed and
published. and where necessary the consent of borrowers must be
obtained for the handling of personal information, and that if the
handling of personal information is outsourced, the service providers
must be properly supervised. Other requirements include the
establishment of security management systems from the
organizational, human and technical perspectives, and the publication
of basic policies on the handling of perscnat information.

The AIFUL Group has reviewed its procedures for handling
personal information according to these requirements, and we have
also adopted a privacy policy and taken steps to prevent leaks of
personal information from the AIFUL Group. However, in the unlikely
event that persenal information is leaked, resulting in a warning or
directive from the Financial Services Agency, there is a possibility that
the reputation, financial position or business performance of the
AIFUL Group could be adversely affected.

(2) Amendment of the Judicial Scrivener Law

On April 1, 2003, the Judicial Scrivener Law was amended to expand
the range of situations in which judicial scriveners (shiho shoshi) can
act as legal representatives. Judicial scriveners can now represent
clients in mediations, civil suits and other 1ypes of cases that can be
heard in summary courts, provided that the amount of any claim
does not exceed ¥1.4 million. If this amendment, future developments
or a further expansion of the scope of services that can be provided
by judicial scriveners result in further increases in the incidence of
lawsuits and debt restructuring, the consequences could include
longer repayment schedules and increased bad debts: These factors
could affect the financial position or business perfermance of the
AIFUL Group,

(3) Amendment of the Bankruptcy Law

Amendments to the Bankruptcy Law, which took effect on January 1,
2005, were designed to simplify and speed up bankruptcy
proceedings by integrating bankruptey and discharge procedures and
shortening the period during which a bankrupt cannot be discharged,
The range of assets that bankrupts can keep (free assets) was
expanded, and safeguards for the rights of personal bankrupicies
were strengthened.

If these changes lead to an increase in the number of bankruptcies
or other consequences, the resulting increase in bad debts could
impact on the financial position and business performance of the
AlFUL Group.
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(4) Possibility of Increased Customer Debt Restructuring Following
the Enactment of the Special Mediation Law and Amendments to
the Civil Rehabilitation Law

Under the Law Concerning Special Mediation to Promote the

Adjustment of Special Debts, eic. (the “Special Mediation Law™), which

took effect on February 17, 2000, a debror a1 risk of becoming unable

o repay debts can seek debt restructuring, including changes to

payment dates. This can be done by negotiating with creditors

through a civil mediation committee made up of a judge and experts
in fields that are appropriate based on the business activities of the
debtors, such as law, taxation, corporate finance and asset valuation.

While special mediation procedures are in progress, the debtor can

also seek a stay of other civil enforcement procedures targeting the

debtors’ assets.

Under the amended Civil Rehabilitation Law of April 1, 2001, a
number of options were introduced allowing an individual who is
economically bankrupt to defer repayment of a lean without
becoming subject to a bankrupicy declaration. One of the options
avallabie under this law does not require the approval of creditors for
rehabilitation plans. Under certain circumstances, it is also possible to
avoid the loss of a house covered by a home equity loan by applying
special housing finance provisions.

To date few AIFUL Group customers have sought protection
under these legal systems. However, if the number increases
because of economic trends or other factors, the financial position
and business performance of the AIFUL Group could be affected by
the resulting extension of loan repayment timetables, increased bad
debts or other factors.

{5) The Law Concerning the Promotion of the Use of Out-of-Court
Dispute Settlement Procedures

The Law Concerning the Promation of the Use of Out-of-Court
Dispute Seulement Procedures, which came into effect on April 1,
2007, expands the functionality of out-of-court settlement procedures
(procedures for the settlement of civil disputes without recourse (o
litigation, with the participation of specified third parties). The Minster
of Justice is now able to certify dispute resolution contractors as third
parties capable of participating in these procedures. The law also
accords legal status to out-of-court settlement services provided by
these contractors. If the use of out-of-court setilement procedures
increases, the financial position and business performance of the
AIFUL Group could be affected by the resulting extension of loan
repayment timetables, increased bad debts or other factors.




Fund Procurement Risks

1. Interest Rate Fluctuation Risk

Interest rates on funds procured by the AIFUL Group fluctuate
according to market conditions and other factors. To minirmize its
exposure 1o this risk, the AIFUL Group uses interest swaps and caps
to hedge against interest rate rises. However, depending on the
extent of furure interest rate increases, it is possible that the
procurement activities of the AIFUL Group may be affected.

2. Changes in Credit Ratings
AIFUL has been rated by the following rating agencies. If these
rarings change, AIFUL's procurement activities may be affected.

Rating Agency Rating
Rating and Investment Information A—Negative
]Japan Credit Rating Agency BBB+/Negative
Moody's Japan Baa2/Positive
Standard & Poor’s BBB/Negative
Fitch Ratings BBB+/Negative

3. Diversification of Fund Procurement

The AIFUL Group is diversifying its procurement methods, which
include direct borrowing from financial institutions, syndicated
loans, domestic and overseas bonds, commercial paper and asset
securitization. The financial position and business performance of
the AIFUL Group could be affected In certain situations, such as if a
decline in the Group's credit rating affects borrowing terms or
causes a decline in the amount that can be borrowed, preventing
the Group from procuring funds under terms similar to those
prevailing at present.

Disruptions, Malfunctions and Other Problems
Concerning Data, Network Systems, Internet
Systems and Other Technological Systems

The AIFUL Group uses internal and external information and
technology systems to manage its business operations. The Group is
becoming increasingly reliant on software, systems and networks to
conrrol the various information resources, including branch network
data and account data, on which its business activities are based.
Hardware and software used by the Group could be affected by
human error, natural disasiers, power cuts, computer viruses and
similar situations, as well as by interruptions to support services
provided by third parties, such as telephone companies and internet
service providers. Disruptions, faults, delays or other problems
affecting informarion and technology systems could have an adverse
impact on the AIFUL Group's financial position or business

performance, inctuding a reduction in the number of accounts opened.
delays in sertling receivables, and a loss of consumer confidence in the
services provided by the AIFUL Group.

The AIFUL Group maintains redundancy in both its hardware and
telecommunications equipment so that it can minimize the damage
resulting from failures by switching to back-up systems. However, a
natural disaster, such as an earthquake or typhoon, could necessitate
the suspension of the Group's business operations,

Possession and Sale of AIFUL Stock by the
Representative Director and Family Members

As of March 31, 2007, Yoshitaka Fukuda, the representative director
of AIFUL, members of his family, including Yasuraka Fukuda, who is
also an AIFUL director, and associated corporations owned
approximately 50% of all shares outstanding. These shareholders are
able to exercise a controlling influence over important decisions that
will affect AIFUL’s business activities, inciuding important corporate
transactions, such as the sale of a controlling interest in AIFUL,
business restructuring and reorganization, investment in other
businesses or assets, and the establishment of terms for future fund
procuremeni activities. While these shareholders have so far
maintained their shareholdings, it is possible that they will dispose of
shares in the future. This would increase the supply of AIFUL shares
in the market, possibly affecting the share price,

Significant Lawsuits and Litigation

The AIFUL Group is aware that multiple lawsuits have been filed by
certain organizations concerning the claim recovery activities of
AIFUL. If there are further lawsuits, etc., in the future, it is possible
that additional unplanned expenses will be incurred, and that
reporting of these lawsuits, etc., in the mass media will influence the
ways in which customers use our services, the fermation of our share
price, our ability to procure funds, and other factors, with the result
that the financial position and business performance of the AIFUL
Group will be affected.

Concerning the Dilution of Shares Due to Offering
of Euroyen Subordinated Zero Coupon Convertible
Bonds with Stock Acquisition Rights

On February 29, 2008, pursuant to a resolution of the Board of
Directors on February 13, 2008, AIFUL CORPORATION issued
Euroyen Series A through G Subordinated Zero Coupon Convertible
Bonds with Stock Acquisition Rights Due 2010 (hereinafter referred
to as “the convertible bonds”). The convertible bonds are worth a
total of ¥70,000 million. This move was prompted by an urgent need
to replenish our net assets, which were depleted in the previous
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financial year because of a substantial increase in the provision of
reserves. It was also seen as a way to strengthen our financial
structure and provide the capital needed for continuing growth.

The issue is subject 1o the mandatory acquisiticn of all outstanding
convertible bonds in exchange for common stock on February 26,
2010, If there are any convertible bonds on which the warrants have
not been exercised by this redemption date, there will be a one-off
dilution of the Company's common stock. However, the convertible
bonds were issued on condition that they could be acquired at any
time deemed suitable by AIFUL in exchange for AIFUL common
stack. The issue was designed to allow AIFUL io acquire the
convertible bonds at any time on a maximum of seven occasions,
thereby spreading the timing of dilution of its common stack.

However, the value per share of common stock could be diluted
with implications for the share price under certain circumsiances,
such as if large numbers of warrants are exercised at the same time,
or if the improvement of our income growth rate is not
commensurate with the level of dilution of our common stock.
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FINANCIAL SECTION

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

Aiful Corporation and Consolidated Subsidiaries
March 31, 2008 and 2007

Millions of Yen

Thousands of

U.S. Dollars {(Note 3)

2008 2007 2008
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents ¥ 257,311 ¥ 157,057 $ 2,573,110
Time deposits 3,088 78 30,880
Operational investment securities (Note 7) 1,175 1,837 11,750
Loans, loan guarantees and receivables
Loans (Notes 4 and 9) 1,598,706 1,912,689 15,987,060
[nstallment accounts receivable (Notes 5 and 9) 148,490 174,923 1,484,900
Loan guarantees (Note 6) 129,715 141,930 1,297,130
Other receivables 26,382 25,406 263,820
Allowance for doubtful accounts (Note 2.i) {297,384) {(379.,848) (2,973,840)
Prepaid expenses 2,848 4,018 28,480
Deferred tax assets (Note 14) 16,997 13,771 169,970
Other current assets (Note 9) 41,876 43,573 418,760
Total current assets 1,929,202 2,095,434 19,292,020
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (Note 9):
Land (Note 8) 14,363 14,464 143,630
Buildings and structures (Note 8) 38,922 44,118 389,220
Machinery and equipment 265 268 2,650
Furniture and fixtures (Note 8) 21,112 24,879 211,120
Construction in progress (Note 8) 2,921 1,016 29,210
Total 77,583 84,745 775,830
Accumulated depreciation (35,170) (42,339 (351,700)
Net property and equipment 42,413 42,406 424,130
INVESTMENTS AND OTHER ASSETS:
Investment securities {(Note 7) 12,431 20,983 124,310
Investments in and advances to unconsolidated
subsidiaries and associated companies 4,620 3.311 46,200
Claims in bankruptcy (Note 4) 46,350 38,988 463,500
Goodwill, net 2,289 3,145 22,890
Software, net 22,793 21,337 227,930
Long-term loans receivables (less current portion) 10 19 100
Lease deposits 7,639 11,493 76,390
Long-term prepayments 2,300 2,766 23,000
Deferred tax assets (Note 14) 2,151 334 21,510
Other assets {(Note 8) 1,961 2,068 19,610
Allowance for doubtful accounts (33,031) (27,725) (330,310)
Total investments and other assets 69,513 76,719 695,130
TOTAL ¥ 2,041,128 ¥ 2,214,559 $20,411,280

See noies to consolidated financial statements.
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Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars {Note 3)
2008 2007 2008
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Short-term borrowings (Note 9) ¥ 163,930 ¥ 91,370 5 1,639,300
Current portion of long-term debt (Note 9) 358,819 404,241 3,588,190
Trade notes payable 1,778 6,021 17,780
Trade accounts payable 31,616 36,823 316,160
Obligation under loan guarantees (Note 6) 129,713 141,930 1,297,130
Income taxes payable 2,204 7.992 22,040
Accrued expenses 8,840 9,219 88,400
Aliowance for losses from business restructuring (Note 13) 193 11,316 1,930
Allowance for clean-up costs of contaminated land 630
Other current liabilities {(Notes 5 and 6) 34,737 33,847 347,370
Total current liabilities 731,830 743,389 7,318,300
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES:
Long-term debt (less current portion) (Note 9) 831,340 1,034,651 8,313,400
Deferred tax liabilities (Note 14) 8 526 80
Liability for retirement benefits (Notes 2.h and 10) 1,063 1.339 10,630
Allowance for losses on interest refunds (Note 2.1 143,750 167,153 1,437,500
Interest rate swaps {(Note 16) 6,417 8,193 64,170
Other long-term liabilities 2,199 2,163 21,990
Total long-term liabilities 984,777 1,214,025 9,847,770
EQUITY (Notes 11 and 18):
Common stock,

authorized, 568,140,000 shares;

issued, 167,475,000 shares in 2008 and 142,035,000 shares in 2007 108,525 83,317 1,083,250
Capital surplus :

Additional paid-in capital 129,134 104,126 1,291,340
Retained earnings 86,820 66,466 868,200
Net unrealized gain on available-for-sale securities 2,080 6,536 20,800
Deferred loss on derivatives under hedge accounting (Note 6) (4,332) (5,752) (43,320)
Treasury stock-at cost

455,717 shares in 2008 and 412,835 shares in 2007 (G.110) (2,968) (31,100)

Total 318,917 251,725 3,189,170
Mingrity interests 5,604 5,420 56,040
Total equity 324,521 257,145 3,245,210
TOTAL ¥ 2,041,128 ¥ 2214559 $20,411,280
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Aiful Corporation and Consolidated Subsidiaries
Years Ended March 31, 2008 and 2007

Millions of Yen

Thousands of
U.S. Dollars (Note 3)

2008 2007 2008
INCOME:
Interest on loans ¥ 356,435 ¥ 448,662 $3,564,350
Interest on credit card shopping loans 14,948 12,754 149,480
Interest on per-item shopping loans 6,912 12,998 69,120
Interest on lean guarantees 8,548 9,187 85,480
interest on deposits, securities and other 952 471 9,520
Recovery of loans previously charged off 4,395 4,023 43,950
Other income 10,199 12,914 101,990
Total income 402,389 501,009 4,023,890
EXPENSES:
Interest on borrowings 30,646 32,898 306,460
Charge-offs and provision for doubtful accounts 155,930 447,375 1,559,300
Salaries and other employees’ benefits 43,182 55,156 431,820
Advertising expenses 7,429 15,074 74,290
Rental expenses {(Note 15} 11,858 19,415 118,580
Comrmissions and fees 22,902 25,585 229,020
Loss on impairment of long-lived assets (Note 8) 175 6,805 1,750
Depreciation and amortization 11,924 19,251 119,240
Provision for employees’ retirement benefits (Note 10) 1,169 1,372 11,690
Provision for losses on interest refunds (Note 2.1) 49,819 167,148 498,190
Loss on interest refunds 15,240
Loss from and provision for business restructuring (Note 13) 97 18,528 970
Provision for clean-up costs of contaminated land 630
Other expenses 36,360 48,815 363,600
Total expenses 371,491 873,272 3,714,910
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAXES AND MINORITY INTERESTS 30,898 (372,263) 308,980
INCOME TAXES (Note 14):
Current 6,526 15,795 65,260
Deferred (3,251) 24,734 (32,510)
Total income taxes 3,275 40,529 32,750
MINORITY INTERESTS IN NET INCOME (LOSS) 189 (1,541) 1,890
NET INCOME (LOSS) ¥ 27,434 ¥ (411,251) $ 274,340
Yen U.S. Dollars
AMOUNTS PER COMMON SHARE {Notes 2.v and 17}
Basic net income {loss) ¥ 190.77 ¥ (2,903.85) ) 1.91
Diluted net income 186.86 1.87
Cash dividends applicable to the year 40.00 60.00 0.40

See notes to consolidated financial statemenis.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Aiful Corporation and Consolidated Subsidiaries
Years Ended March 31, 2008 and 2007

Thousands Millions of Yen
Capilal Net Deferred
Surplus Unrealized  gain
Number of —— Gainen _ (loss) on
Shares of Additional Available- Derivatives
Common Common Paid-in  Retained for-sale under Hedge Treasury Minority  Total
Stock Issued  Stock Capital Earnings Securities Accounting  Stock Total  Interests Equity
BALANCE AT APRIL 1, 2006 142,035 ¥ 83317 ¥104,126 ¥486,214 ¥11,002 ¥(2,965) ¥6B1,694 ¥681,694
Reclassified balance
as of March 31, 2006 (Note 2.0} ¥ 6,965 6,965
Net toss “11,251) (411,251) (411.251)
Cash dividends paid, ¥60 per share (8,497) (8,497) {8.497)
Net increase in treasury stock
(711 shares) 6)] (3} (3}
Net change in the year (4.406) ¥(5.752) 10,218y (1,545 (11,763}

BALANCE AT MARCH 31, 2007 142,035 83,317 104,126 66,466 6,536 (5.752) (2.968) 251,725 5,420 257.145
Issuance of common stock through a

third-party capital allotment (Note 11) 25,440 25008 25,008 50,016 50,016
Net income 27,434 27,4534 27,434
Cash dividends paid, ¥50 per share (7.080) (7.080) {7.080)
Net increase in treasury stock

(42,882 shares) (142) (142} (142)
Net change in the year (4.456) 1,420 (3,036) 184 (2.852)

BALANCE AT MARCH 31, 2008 167,475 ¥108,325 ¥129,134 ¥ 86,820 ¥ 2,080 ¥(4,332) ¥(3,110) ¥318,917 ¥5,604 ¥324,521

Thousands of U.5. Dollars (Note 3)

Capital Net Deferred
Surplus Unrealized  gain
a—— Gainen  {loss) on
Additional Available- Derivatives
Common Paid-in Retained for-sale under Hedge Treasury Minority  Total
Stock Capitat Earnings Securities Accounting  Stock Total  Interests Equity
BALANCE AT MARCH 31, 2007 5833.170 51,041,260 $664.660 565360 5(57,520) 5(29,680) 52.517.250 §54,200 $2,571.450
Issuance of common stock through a
third-party capital allotment {(Note 11) 250,080 250080 500,160 500,160
Net income 274,340 . 274,340 274,340
Cash dividends paid, $0.50 per share (70,800} (70,800 (70,800
. Net increase in treasury stock (42,882 shares) (1,420) (1,420 (1,420
Net change in the year 44.560) 14,200 (30,360) £.840 (28,520)
BALANCE AT MARCH 31, 2008 §1,083,250 $1,291,340 $B68,200 520,800  5(43,320) S$(31,100) 53,189,170 556,040 §3,245,210

See notes 1o consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Aiful Corporation and Consolidated Subsidiaries
Years Ended March 31, 2008 and 2007

Millions of Yen

Thousands of
U.S. Dollars (Note 3)

2008 2007 2008
OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Income (loss} before income taxes and minority interests ¥ 30,898 ¥ (372,263) S 308,980
Adjustments for:
Income taxes - paid (12,313) (32,844) (123,130)
Depreciation and amertization 11,928 19,251 119,280
Loss on impairment of long-lived assets 175 6,805 1,750
{Decrease) increase in allowance for doubtful accounts (77,158) 235,858 (771,580}
{Decrease) increase in allowance for losses on interest refunds (23,403) 146,079 (234,030)
Amortization of bonds issue costs 339 519 3,390
Loss on write-down of invesiment securities 42 620 420
Loss on sales of property and equipment, net 78 123 780
Loss on disposal of property and equipment 735 1.965 7,350
Changes in assets and liabilities
Decrease in loans : 313,984 211,328 3,139,840
Decrease in installment accounts receivable 26,431 34,661 264,310
Decrease (increase) in operational investment securities 597 (13) 5,970
Increase in other receivables (976) {3,954 {9,760)
increase in claims in bankruptcy (7,362) (5,957 (73,620)
Increase in inventories (36) (45) (360)
Decrease in prepaid expenses 1,519 743 13,190
Decrease in long-term prepayments 930 1,154 9,300
Decrease in other current assets 1,713 4,371 17,130
(Decrease) increase in other current liabilities (19,961) 5,621 (199,610)
Other — net (435) (3,464) (4,350)
Total adjustments 216,627 622,821 2,166,270
Net cash provided by operating activities 247,525 250,558 2,475,250
INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Capital expenditures (14,191) (11,269) (141,910)
Increase in loans (33) (46) (330)
Purchases of investment securities (1,969) (1,676) (19,690}
Other — net 2,646 6,458 26,460
Net cash used in investing activities (13,547) (6,533) (135,470)
FORWARD ¥ 233,978 ¥ 244,025 $ 2,339,780
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Millions of Yen

Thousands of
U.S. Dollars (Note 3)

2008 2007 2008

FORWARD ¥ 233,978 ¥ 244,025 $ 2,339,780
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Net increase (decrease) in short-term borrowings 72,560 (46,830) 725,600

Proceeds from long-term debt (net of bonds issue costs) 174,227 441,905 1,742,270

Repayments of long-term debt (423,063} (657,965) (4,230,630)

Proceeds from issuance of common stock 49,764 497,640

Cash dividends paid (7,080) (8,497) (70,800)

Acquisition of treasury stock (142) 4 (1,420)

Net cash used in financing activities (133,734) (271.391) {1,337,340)

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION ADJUSTMENTS ON

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 10 46 100
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND

CASH EQUIVALENTS 100,254 (27.320) 1,002,540
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 157,057 184,377 1,570,570
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR ¥ 257,311 ¥ 157,057 $ 2,575,110

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Aiful Corporation and Consolidated Subsidiaries
Years Ended March 31, 2008 and 2007

0 BASIS OF PRESENTING CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have
been prepared in accordance with the provisions set forth
in the Japanese Financial Instruments and Exchange Law
{formerly, the Japanese Securities and Exchange Law) and
its related accounting regulations, and in conformity with
accounting principtes generally accepted in Japan (“Japanese
GAAP"), which are different in certain respects as to
application and disclosure requirements of International

0 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a. Consolidation — The consolidated financial statements
include the accounts of Aiful Corporation (the “Company”)
and its eleven significant subsidiaries (together, the “Group™).
Consolidation of the remaining eighteen unconsolidated
subsidiaries would not have a material effect on the
accompanying consolidated financial staterments,

On March 26, 2007, the Company merged id CREDIT
and NET ONE CLUB which were wholly owned subsidiaries
of the Company.

Under the control or influence concept, those companies
in which the Company, directly or indirectly, is able to
exercise control over operations are fully consolidated,
and those companies over which the Group has the ability
to exercise significant influence are accounted for by the
equity method.

Investments in five unconsolidated subsidiaries (three
in 2007) and two associated companies are stated at cost,
Investments in the remaining thirteen unconsolidated
subsidiaries (fifteen in 2007), which are limited liability
investment partnerships and similar partnerships, are
initially recorded at cost, and the carrying amount is
adjusted to recognize the Company’s interests in earnings
or losses in such partnerships based on the recent available
financial statements of the partnerships. If the equity
method of accounting had been applied to the investments
in these companies, the effect on the accompanying
consclidated financial statements would not be material,

Goodwill on acquisition of subsidiaries is amortized
using the straight line method over the estimated period

72

Financial Reporting Standards and accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

In preparing these consolidated financial statements,
certain reclassifications and rearrangements have heen
made to the consoclidated financial statements issued
domestically in order to present them in a form which is
more familiar to readers outside Japan.

In addition, certain reclassifications have been made in
the 2007 financtal statements to conform to the classification
used in 2008.

(not to exceed 20 years), in which economic benefits are
expected to be realized. However, when the excess of cost
over net assets of subsidiaries acquired is not material, it
is charged to income when incurred.

All significant intercompany balances and transactions
have been eliminated in consolidation. All material
unrealized profit included in assets resulting from
transactions within the Group is eliminated.

b. Business Combination — In October 2003, the Business
Accounting Council (the “BAC™) issued a Statement of
Opinion, “Accounting for Business Combinations”, and on
December 27, 2005, the Accounting Standards Board of
Japan (the “ASBJ") issued ASB) Statement No.7, “Accounting
Standard for Business Divestitures” and ASB] Guidance
No.10, “Guidance for Accounting Standard for Business
Combinations and Business Divestitures™. These new
accouniting pronouncements were effective for hscal years
beginning on or after April 1, 2006.

The accounting standard for business combinations
allows companies to apply the pooling of interests method
of accounting only when certain specific criteria are met
such that the business combination is essentially regarded
as a uniting-of-interests.

For business combinations that do not meet the
uniting-of-interests criteria, the business combination is
considered to be an acquisition and the purchase method
of accounting is required. This standard also prescribes
the accounting for combinations of entities under common
control and for joinr ventures.

On March 26, 2007, the Company merged id CREDIT and
NET ONE CLUB, which were wholly owned subsidiaries of
the Company. The accounting for combinations of entities




under common control prescribed by the accounting
standard for business combinations was applied to it.

. Cash Equivalents — Cash equivalents are short-term
investments that are readily convertible into cash and
that are exposed to insignificant risk of changes in value.
Cash equivalents include time deposits and certificate
of deposits which mature or become due within three
months of the date of acquisition and securities purchased
under resale agreements. Prior to April 1, 2007 securities
purchased under resale agreements were not included in
components of cash equivalents. Effective April 1, 2007,
however, the Group changed its policy to include securities
purchased under resale agreements in cash equivalents
which are in the coniext of the actual situation for
investments of short-term funds.

. Operational investment securities held by venture capital
subsidiary and investment securities — Operational
investment securities held by a venture capital company
and investment securities, all of which are classified as
available-for-sale securities, are reported at fair value, with
unrealized gains and losses, net of applicable taxes, reported
in a separate component of equity. The cost of securities sold
is determined based on the moving-average cost method.
Neon-marketable available-for-sale securities are stated at cost
determined by the moving-average method. For other than
temporary declines in fair value, operational investmeni
securities and investment securities are reduced to net
realizable value by a charge to income.

Investments in limited liability investment partnerships
and similar partnerships are initially recorded at cost,
and the carrying amount is adjusted to recognize
the Company’s interests in earnings or losses in such
partnerships based on the recent available financial
statements of the parinerships.

. Property and Equipment — Property and equipment are
stated at cost. Depreciation of property and equipment
of the Company and its consolidated subsidiaries is
compured by the declining-batlance method except that
the straight-line method is applied to the buildings of the
Company’s consolidated subsidiaries acquired on and
after April 1, 1998. The range of useful lives is principally
from 2 to 62 years for buildings and structures, from 2 to
17 years for machinery and equipment, and from 2 to 20
years for furniture and fixtures,

. Long-lived assets — The Group reviews its long-lived
assets for impairment whenever events or changes in

circumstance indicate the carrying amount of an asset or
asset group may not be recoverable. An impairment loss
would be recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or
asset group exceeds the sum of the undiscounted furure
cash flows expected to result from the continued use and
eventual disposition of the asset or asset group.

The impairment loss would be measured as the amount
by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its
recoverable amount, which is the higher of the discounted
cash flows from the continued use and eventual disposition
of the asset or the net selling price at disposition.

. Software — Expenditures for the purchase of software,

which meet certain future-tests, are capitalized as
software and amortized by the straight-line method over
the estimated useful lives of five years.

. Liability for Retirement Benefits — The Company

and certain consolidated subsidiaries have a defined
contribution pension plan and a prepaid retirement
benefits plan. Contributions to the defined contribution
plan and payments to the prepaid retirement benefits
plan are charged to income when made.

Liability for retirement benefits rto directors and
corporate auditors is provided at the amount which would
be required if they retired at each balance sheet date.

The liability for retirement benefirs in the consolidated

balance sheet is for directors and corporate auditors.
Aliowance for Doubtful Accounts — The allowance
for doubtful accounts is stated in amounts considered
to be appropriate based on the Group’s past credit loss
experience and an evaluation of potential losses in the
accounts outstanding.
Allowance for clean-up costs of contaminated land
— The allowance for clean-up costs of contaminated
land (2007) is provided for losses on cleaning up soil
contamination discovered in some portion of the
Company's land for sale and is based on the estimated
amount of future costs to be paid.

. Allowance for losses from business restructuring —

The allowance for losses from business restructuring is
provided at an estimated amount of future costs related
10 closure of outlets and other restructuring activities.

Allowance for losses on interest refunds — The limit
of interest rates is regulated by two laws - “Contributions
Law" and “Interest Rate Restriction Law™. Under the former
law, interest rates on loans should not exceed 29.2% and
violation of law is considered to be a criminal penaley. The
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latter law stipulates that interest payments for interest
rates that exceed the legal limit (20% for principal amounts
under ¥100 thousand, 18% for principals between ¥100
thousand and ¥1 million and 15% for principals over ¥1
million} are void. However, under the “Moneylending
Business Restriction Law”, such interest payments are
nonetheless considered to be valid if moneylenders
issue notices as prescribed by the law to debtors and
debtors pay voluntarity. Recent strict interpretation by the
courts of these requirements has led to decisions against
moneylenders and resulted in more debtors claiming for the
return of excess interest payments.

On March 15, 2006, the Japanese Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “JICPA”) issued a report requiring
moneylenders to make an accounting provision for losses
on interest refunds for interest rates that exceeded the limic
set by the Interest Rate Restriction Law. The Company and
certain consolidated subsidiaries have loaned money at
rates between the limit set by the two laws, and have in the
past charged refund costs to income as incurred. However,
the growing number of claims against the Company
and certain consolidated subsidiaries has increased the
materiality of the financial effects of the situation. So, the
Company and certain consolidated subsidiaries decided to
record a provision of ¥21,074 million ("Aliowance for losses
on interest refunds”) for interest refunds for the fiscal year
ended March 31, 2006.

On October 13, 2006, the industry practice committee
of the JICPA issued its Report No.37 “Audit Guidance for
Consumer Finance Companies’ Recording of Provisions
for Losses on Interest Refunds,” (“Report No. 377) which
became effective for fiscal periods ending on or afier
September 1, 2006. The Group changed the method of
estimating allowance for losses on interest refunds in
accordance with the new guidelines.

The differences between the amount of allowance for
losses on interest refunds estimated and recorded as of
the beginning of the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007 in
accordance with the report issued on March 15, 2006 and
the amount estimated as of the beginning of the fiscal
year ended March 31, 2007 in accordance with Report
No. 37, was recorded as “Charge-offs and provision for
doubtful accounis” in the amount of ¥107,013 million and
“Provision for losses on interest refunds” in the amount
of ¥69,312 million in the consoclidated statements of
operations for the year ended March 31, 2007

At March 31, 2008 and 2007, the Group recorded an
allowance of ¥143,750 million ($1,437,500 thousand) and
¥167,153 million, respectively, as “Allowance for losses
on interest refunds.” In addition, the estimated amount of
interest refunds of ¥108,974 million ($1,089,740 thousand)
and ¥195,546 million which are expected to be preferentially
set off against loans was recorded as “Allowance for doubtful
accounts” for the Company and certain consolidated
subsidiaries at March 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

Allowance for losses on interest refunds is stated in
amounts considered to be appropriate based on the
Company’s and certain consolidated subsidiaries’ past
refund loss experience, the recent situation regarding
interest refunds and other factors.

.Leases — Under Japanese accounting standards for

leases, finance leases that deem to transfer ownership
of the leased property to the lessee are to be capitalized,
while other finance leases are permitted to be accounted
for as operating lease transactions if certain “as if
capitalized” information is disclosed in the notes to the
lessee’s consolidated financial statements. All leases are
accounted for as operating leases.

. Income Taxes — The provision for income taxes is

computed based on the pretax income included in the
consolidated statements of income. The asset and liability
approach is used to recognize deferred tax assets and
liabilities for the expected future tax consequences of
temporary differences between the carrying amounts and
the tax bases of assets and liabilities. Deferred taxes are
measured by applying currently enacted tax laws to the
temporary differences.

. Presentation of Equity — On December 9, 2005, the ASB)

published a new accounting standard for presentation of
equity. Under this accounting standard, certain items which
were previously presented as liabilities or assets, as the case
may be, are now presented as components of equity. Such
items include stock acquisition rights, minority interests,
and any deferred gain or loss on derivatives accounted for
under hedgde accounting. This standard was effective for
fiscal years ending on or after May 1, 2006.

The balances of such items as of March 31, 2006 were
reclassified as separate components of equity as of April 1,
2006 in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

. Foreign Currency Transactions — All short-term and

long-term monetary receivables and payables denominated
in foreign currencies are translated into Japanese yen at




the exchange rates at the balance sheet date. The foreign
exchange gains and losses from translation are recognized
in the consolidated statements of operations to extent that
they are not hedged by forward exchange contracts.

. Revenue recognition :

Interest on Loans — Interest on loans is recorded on an
accrual basis. In accordance with the practice prevailing in
the industry, the Company records accrued interest at efther
the interest rate stipulated in the Interest Rate Restriction
Law or the contracted interest rate, whichever is lower.
Interest on credit card shopping loans, Interest on per-
item shopping loans — Fees from customers and member
stores applying the add-on method are generally recorded
collectively as unearned income when credit contracts
become effective and are recognized in equal instailments
over the lives of contracts. Fees from customers applying the
remaining principal method or revolving method are generally
recognized in equal installments over the lives of contracts.
Interest on loan guarantees — Interest on loan guaraniees
is recorded by the remaining principal method.

. Interest on Borrowings — Interest on financial liabilities

is accounted for as operating expenses while other
interest is included in other expenses.

. Stock Issue Costs — Stock issue costs are charged (o

income as incurred,

. Bond Issue Costs — Amortization is calculated by the

straighe-line method over the term of the related bond issue.
Bond issue costs related to bonds which were issued by
March 31, 2006 are amortized ratably over periods up 0
three years. Bond issue costs are included in other assets.

. Derivatives and Hedging Activities — The Group uses

derivative financial instruments to manage its exposures
to fluctuations in interest rates and foreign exchange.
Interest rate swaps, interest rate caps and currency swaps
contracts are utilized by the Group to reduce interest
rate and foreign currency exchange risks. The Group
does not enter into derivatives for trading or speculative
purposes. The accounting standard for derivative financial
instruments requires that: a) all derivatives be recognized
as either assets or liabilities and measured at fair value, and
gains or losses on derivative transactions be recognized
in the consolidated statements of operations, and b) for
derivatives used for hedging purposes, if derivatives qualify
for hedge accounting because of high correlation and
effectiveness between the hedging instruments and the
hedged items, gains or losses on derivatives be deferred

until maturity of the hedged transactions.

Currency swaps contracts are utilized to hedge foreign
currency exposure in principal and interest payments of
U.S. dollar straight bonds. U.S. dollar straight bonds are
translated at the contracted rates.

The interest rate swaps and caps which qualify for
hedge accounting and meet specific matching criteria are
not remeasured at market vatue but the differential paid
or received under the swap or cap contracts is recognized
and included in interest expenses or income.

. Per Share Information -— Basic net income (loss) per

share is computed by dividing net income (loss) available
to common shareholders by the weighted-average number
of common shares outstanding for the period, retroactively
adjusted for stock splits.

Diluted net income per share of common stock reflects
the potential dilution that could occur if securities were
converted into common stock and assumes full conversion
of the outstanding convertible bonds at the time of issuance
and full exercise of outstanding stock options.

Cash dividends per share presented in the accompanying
consolidated statements of operations are dividends
applicable to the respective years including dividends
to be paid after the end of the year and have not been
retroactively adjusted for stock splits.

. New Accounting Pronouncements:

Lease Accounting — On March 30, 2007, the ASB] issued
ASBJ Statement No.13, “Accounting Standard for Lease
Transactions”, which revised the existing accounting
standard for [ease transactions issued on June 17, 1993,
The revised accounting standard for lease transactions
is effective for fiscal years beginning on or after April
1, 2008 with early adoption permitted for fiscal years
beginning on or after April 1, 2007
Lessee
Under the existing accounting standard, finance leases
that deem to transfer ownership of the leased property
to the lessee are to be capitalized, however, other finance
leases are permitted to be accounted for as operating lease
transactions if certain “as if capitalized” information is
disclosed in the note to the lessee’s financial statements.
The revised accounting standard requires thar all
finance lease transactions shall be capitalized recognizing
lease assets and lease obligations in the balance sheets.
The Group expects to adopt this revised accounting
standard as of April 1, 2008.
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TRANSLATION INTO
UNITED STATES DOLLARS

03

The consolidated financial statements are stated in Japanese
yen, the currency of the country in which the Company is
incorporated and operates. The translation of Japanese yen
amounts into U.S. dollar amounts is included solely for the

04 LOANS

convenience of readers outside Japan and have been made
at the rate of ¥100 to S1, the approximate rate of exchange
at March 31, 2008. Such transiations should not be construed
as representations that the Japanese yen amounts could be
converted into U.S. dollars at that or any other rate.

Loans at March 31, 2008 and 2007 consisted of the following (before allowance for doubtful accounts):

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2008 2007 2008
Unsecured ¥1,278,001 ¥1,537,905 $12,780,010
Secured 246,520 291,716 2,465,200
Small business loans 141,161 155,642 1,411,610
Totat ¥1,665,682 ¥1,985,263 $16,656,820
QOff-balance sheet securitized loans {66,976) (72,574) (669,760)
Net ¥1,598,706 ¥1,912,689 515,987,060

Registered moneylenders are required to disclose the following information under the Non-Bank Bond Issuing Law.

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2008 2007 2008

Loans in legal bankruptcy ¥ 46,895 ¥ 43,008 $ 468,950
Nonaccrual loans 189,721 180,819 1,897,210
Accruing loans contractually past due three months or more

as to principal or interest payments 29,351 36,665 293,510
Restructured loans 77,801 67,554 778,010
Total ¥ 343,768 ¥ 328,046 $ 3,437,680

Loans in legal bankruptcy are loans in which accruals of
interest are discontinued {excluding the portion recognized
as bad debrs), based on management’s judgment as to the
collectibility of principal or interest resulting from the past due
payment of interest or principal and other factors. Allowances
for claims in bankruptcy are stated at such amount less net
realizable value of collateral.

Nonaccrual loans are loans in which accruals of interest are
discontinued, other than loans in legal bankruptcy as well as
loans receiving regular payments in case of graniing deferral of
interest payment to the debtors in financial difficulties to assist
thern in their recovery.
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Accruing loans contractually past due three months or
more as to principal or interest payments are ioans for which
payments of principal or interest have not been received for
a period of three months or more beginning with the next
business day following the last due date for such paymenis.
Loans classified as loans in legal bankruptcy and nonaccrual
loans are excluded from accruing loans contractually past due
three months or more.

Restructured loans are loans on which creditors grant
concessions (e.¢.. reduction of the stated interest rate, deferral
of interest payment, extension of maturity date, waiver of the
face amount, or other concessive measures) to the debtors




in financial difficulties to assist them in their recovery and
eventually enable them to pay crediiors, Loans classified as
loans in legal bankruptcy, nonaccrual loans and accruing loans
contractually past due three months or more are excluded.

The securitized loans, which are not recognized on the balance
sheets, amounted to ¥66,976 million ($669,760 thousand) and
¥72 574 million at March 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

At March 3¢, 2008 and 2007, the Group had balances
related to revolving loan contracts aggregating ¥1,544,978

05 INSTALLMENT ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

million (515,449,780 thousand) and ¥1,853,125 million,
respectively, whereby the Group is obligated to advance funds
up to a predetermined amount upon request. At March 31,
2008 and 2007, the balances of unadvanced commitments
were ¥5,761,394 million (557,613,940 thousand) and
¥5,745,183 million, respectively. The loan contract contains
provisions that allow the Group to reduce the contract amount
of the commitment or refuse to advance funds to loan
customers under certain conditions.

Installment accounts receivable and unearnad income, included in other current liabilities, at March 31, 2008 and 2007

consisted of the following:

Millions of Yen

Thousands of U.S. Dollars

2008 2007 2008
Unearned Unearned Unearned
Receivables Income Receivables income Receivables Income
Credit card shopping loans ¥127,678 ¥ 763 ¥117222 ¥1,088 $1,276,780 § 7,630
Per-item shopping loans’ 62,808 3,301 112,518 7.181 628,080 33,010
Total ¥190,486 ¥4,064 ¥229,740 ¥8,269 51,904,860 $40,640
Off-balance sheet securitized
installment accounts receivable (41,996) (54.817) (419,960)

Net ¥148,490 ¥4,064 ¥174,923 ¥8,269 $1,484,900 540,640

In addition, the Group has unearned income of ¥1 million ($10 thousand) and ¥3 million at March 31, 2008 and 2007,
respectively, which was included in other current liabilities, refated to loans other than those shown in the above table.

0 6 LOAN GUARANTEES AND OBLIGATIONS
UNDER LOAN GUARANTEES

The Group, as guarantor, recorded loan guarantees as
a contra account of obligations under loan guaraniees.

Unearned income relating to loan guarantees was ¥138
million ($1,380 thousand) and ¥181 million at March 31,
2008 and 2007, respectively, which was included in other
current liabilities.
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0 OPERATIONAL INVESTMENT SECURITIES HELD BY VENTURE CAPITAL SUBSIDIARY
AND INVESTMENT SECURITIES

Operational invesiment and investment securities at March 31, 2008 and 2007 consisted of the following;
Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2008 2007 2008
Current:
Equity securities ¥ 1,175 ¥ 1,837 § 11,750
Non-current:
Equity securities ¥11,319 ¥ 19,591 $113,190
Other 1,112 1,392 11,120
Total ¥12,4351 ¥ 20,983 $124,310

The carrying amournits and fair values of operational investment and investment securities at March 31, 2008 and 2007 were
as follows:

Millions of Yen

2008
Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
Securities classified as:
Available-for-sale-Equity securities ¥ 7,489 ¥ 3,447 E 163 ¥ 10,773

Millions of Yen

2007
Unrealized Unrealized Eair
Cost Gains Losses Value
Securities classified as:
Available-for-sale-Equity securities ¥ 7,559 ¥11,020 ¥ 59 ¥ 18,520

Thousands of U.S. Dollars

2008
Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
Securities classified as:
Available-for-sale-Equity securities $74,890 $34,470 $1,630 $107,730

Available-for-sale securities whose fair values are not readily determinabile as of March 31, 2008 and 2007 were as follows:
Carrying amount

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2008 2007 2008
Available-for-sale:
Equity securities ¥1,721 ¥2.908 §17,210
Investments in limited liability investment partnerships 612 892 6,120
Other 500 500 5,000
Total ¥2,833 ¥4,300 $28,330
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Proceeds from sales of available-for-sale securities for the
years ended March 31, 2008 and 2007 were ¥1,019 million
(510,190 thousand) and ¥5,070 million, respectively. Gross
realized gains on these sales, computed on the moving

¥3,510 million for the years ended March 31, 2008 and 2007,
respectively, and gross realized losses were ¥46 milfion (5460
thousand) and ¥92 million for the years ended March 31,
2008 and 2007, respectively.

average cost basis, were ¥343 million (83,430 thousand) and

08 LONG-LIVED ASSETS

No impairment loss was recognized for the year ended March 31, 2008.

Year ended March 31, 2007
The Group reviewed their long-lived assets for impairment and, as a result, recognized an impairment loss for the following
long-lived assets for the year ended March 31, 2007.

March 31, 2007
Impairment loss
Description " Classification Millions of Yen

Office building and residential Land, Buildings and structures, Furniture and fixtures

apartment, for rent and other ¥1,307
Idle real estate Land, Buildings and structures and other 180
Qutlets which the Company Buildings and structures, Furniture and fixtures,
decided to close Leased property and other 5318
The following table summarizes the Group’s asset grouping:
Business Classification Asset grouping
Financial services and venture capital Each business entity except for idle real estate and real estate held

for sale is the minimum unit. OQutlets which the Group decided to
close are grouped in another unit.

Real estate business Each real estate for rent is the minimum unit.

The Group recognized an impairment loss for certain real estate business and idle real estate since the carrying value
significantly exceeded the estimated net selling price.

The following tabie summarizes the components of the Group’s loss on impairment of iong-lived assets:

Millions af Yen

March 31, 2007 The recoverable amount of each asset grouping was measured
Buildings and structures ¥3.795 as follows:
Furniture and fixtures 1,223 Real estate for rent and idle real estate — Net selling price
Land 1319 calculazed based on evaluation of salable price for each asset.
Leased assets 135 Outlets which the Group decided to close — Their value in
Other 3%3 use, calculated as the amount equal to the depreciation expenses
Total ¥6,805 to be charged through the point of the closure of cutlets.
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09 SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS AND LONG-TERM DEBT

Short-term borrowings at March 31, 2008 and 2007 consisted of the following:
Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.5. Dollars
2008 2007 2008

Commercial paper, 1.00% to 1.15% at March 31, 2008 ¥ 5,000 $ 50,000
Loans from banks, 1.62% t0 2.13% (1.18% to 2.18% at March 31, 2007) 7,840 ¥16,010 78,400
Leans from other financial institutions, 1.88% 10 1.98%

(1.63% [0 1.88% at March 31, 2007) 12,000 15,000 120,000
Other (principally from factoring companies and securitized loan),

151% t02.30% (2.40% at March 31, 2007) 139,090 60,360 1,390,900
Total ¥163,930 ¥91 370 $1,639,300

Long-term debt at March 31, 2008 and 2007 consisted of the following:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2008 2007 2008

Loans from banks, 0.95% 10 3.16%, due serially to 2012

(0.95% to 2.72%, due serially to 2011 at March 31, 2007) ¥ 490,141 ¥ 654,443 S 4,901,410
Loans from other financial institutions, 1.35% to 2.92%, due serially

to 2012 (1.27% t0 2.85%, due serially to 2012 at March 31, 2007) 118,349 173,335 1,183,490
Syndicarted loans, 0.79 %, due serially to 2010 2,701 11,243 27,010
Unsecured 1.66% to 2.51 % yen straight bonds, due 2007 43,000
Unsecured 0.45% to 2.48% yen straight bonds, due 2008 35,000 61,000 350,000
Unsecured 1.01% to 3.28% yen straight bonds, due 2009 68,000 68,000 680,000
Unsecured 0.80% to 3.00% yen straight bonds, due 2010 70,000 70,000 700,000
Unsecured 1.50% to 1.58% yen straight bonds, due 201 | 20,000 20,000 200,000
Unsecured 1.20% to 1.99% ven straight bonds, due 2012 30,000 30,000 300,000
Unsecured 1.74% yen straight bonds, due 2013 10,000 10,000 100,000
Unsecured 1.99% yen straight bonds, due 2015 10,000 10,000 100,000
Unsecured 4.45% to 5.00% U.S. dollar straight bonds, due 2010 108,500 108,500 1,085,000
Unsecured 6.00% U.S. dollar straight bonds, due 2011 57,600 57,600 576,000
Subordinated zero-coupon yen convertible bonds, due 2010 70,000 700,000
Unsecured 3.00% medium-term notes, due 2008 3,000
Unsecured 3.50% medium-term notes, due 2015 15,000 15,000 150,000
Other 9(g)rincipall frorn leasing comganies and securitized loan),

1.10% 10 2.30%, due serially o 2012 (0.79% t0 2.30%,

due sertally to 2012 at March 31, 2007) 84,868 103,771 848,680
Total ¥1,190,159 ¥1,438,892 511,901,590
Less current portion {(358,819) (404,241 (3,588,190)
Long-term debt, less current portion ¥ 831,340 ¥1,034,651 $ 8,313,400

The conversion price of the subordinated zero-coupon yen convertible bonds was ¥1,966 per share at March 31, 2008, The
yen convertible bonds can be exercised from March 10, 2008 to February 27, 2010. The conversion price of the yen convertible
bonds are subject to adjustments to reflect stock splits and certain other events.
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Annual maturities of long-term debt at March 3i, 2008 were as follows:

Thousands of

Year Ending March 31 Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars

2009 ¥ 358,819 $ 3,588,190
2010 391,040 3,910,400
2011 243,699 2,436,990
2012 143,106 1,431,060
2013 18,495 184,950
2014 and thereafter 35,000 350,000
Total ¥1,190,159 $11,901,5%0

At March 31, 2008, the following assets were pledged as collateral for short-term borrowings and long-term debt (including

current portion of long-term debt):

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars

Loans ¥458,263 $4,582,630
Installment accounts receivable 51,388 513,880
Other current assets 94 940
Property and equipment, net of accumulated Depreciation 1,254 12,540
Total ¥510,999 $5,109,990
Related liabilities:

Short-term borrowings ¥139,090 $1,390,900

Long-term debt (including current portion of long-term debr) 229,589 2,295,890
Total ¥368,679 $3,686,790

The above table includes loans related to securitized loans of
¥295 624 million (52,956,240 thousand), and related liabilities
{long-term debt including current portion} of ¥160, 13 million
{$1,601,010 thousand).

If requested by lending financial institutions, the Group
has committed 1o pledge loans and installment accounis

receivables of ¥183,111 million (1,831,110 thousand) as
collateral in addition to those shown in the above table. At
March 31, 2008, related liabilities for which tending financial
institutions can request the Group to pledge additional
collateral consisted of the following:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars

Long-term debt (including current portion of long-term debt)

¥175,991 $1,759,910

At March 3t, 2008, other current assets amounting o ¥1,290
million ($12,900 thousand) were pledged as collateral for the
interest rate swap contracts.

A portion of the Company’s loans from banks and
securitized borrowings is subject 1o accelerated repayment
if the Company fails to meet certain financial covenants,
including the amount of equity, the equity ratio and

covenants based on specified operarional indices such as
the ratio of loss on interest refunds to equity. For the year
ended March 31, 2008, the Company has newly violated the
covenants of a short-term securitized borrowing which was
scheduled to be repaid in May, 2008 and June 2008. This
securitized borrowing is to be repaid in May, 2008 and june,
2008 in accordance with its originat repayment schedule.
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1 0 RETIREMENT AND PENSION PLANS

The components of net periodic beneht costs for the years ended March 31, 2008 and 2007 were as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars

2008 2007 2008
Payments for prepaid retirement benefits plan ¥ 460 ¥ 661 $ 4,600
Premiums for defined contribution pension plan 709 711 7,090
Net periodic benefit costs ¥1,169 ¥1,372 $11,690

1 1 EQUITY

Since May 1, 2006, Japanese companies have been subject
to the Corporate Law of Japan (the “Corporate Law"), which
reformed and replaced the Commercial Code of Japan.
The significant provisions in the Corporate Law that affect
financial and accounting matters are summarized below:

(a) Dividends

Under the Corporate Law, companies can pay dividends at
any time during the fiscal year in addition to the year-end
dividend upon resolution at the shareholders meeting. For
companies that meet certain criteria such as; (1) having the
Board of Directors, (2) having independent auditors, (3) having
the Board of Corporate Auditors, and (4) the term of service of
the directors is prescribed as one year rather than two years
of normal term by its articles of incorporation, the Board of
Directors of such company may declare dividends (except
for dividends in kind) at any time during the fiscal year if the
company has prescribed so in its articles of incorporation. The
Company meets all the above criteria.

The Corporate Law permits companies to distribute
dividends-in-kind (non-cash assets) to shareholders subject to
a certain limitation and additional requirements.

Semiannual interim dividends may also be paid once a
year upon resolution by the Board of Directors if the articles
of incorperation of the company so stipulate. The Corporate
Law provides certain limitations on the amounts available for
dividends or the purchase of treasury stock. The limitation
is defined as the amount available for distribution to the
shareholders, but the amount of net assets after dividends
must be maintained at no less than ¥3 million.

(b) Increases / decreases and transfer of common stock,
reserve and surplus
The Corporate Law requires that an amount equal 1o 10% of
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dividends must be appropriated as a legal reserve {a component
of retained earnings) or as additional paid-in capital (a
component of capital surplus) depending on the equity account
charged upon the payment of such dividends until the total of
the aggregate amount of legal reserve and additional paid-in
capital equals 25% of the common stock. Under the Corporate
Law, the total amount of additional paid-in capital and legal
reserve may be reversed without limitation. The Corporate Law
also provides that common stock, legal reserve, additional paid-
in capital, other capital surplus and retained earnings can be
transferred among the accounts under certain conditions upon
resolution of the shareholders.

(¢) Treasury stock and treasury stock acquisition rights
The Corporate Law also provides for companies to purchase
treasury stock and dispose of such treasury stock by resolution
of the Board of Directors. The amount of treasury stock
purchased cannot exceed the amount available for distribution
to the shareholders which is determined by specific formula.

Under the Corporate Law, stock acquisition rights, which
were previously presented as a liability, are now presented as
a separaie component of equity.

The Corporate Law alse provides that companies can
purchase both treasury stock acquisition rights and treasury
stock. Such treasury stock acquisition rights are presented as
a separate component of equity or deducted directly from
stock acquisition rights.

On February 28, 2008, the Company issued 25,440
thousand shares of common stock through a third-party
capital allotment. The issue price of common stock was
¥1,966 per share and proceeds from issuance of the shares
were ¥50,015 million ($500,150 thousand). Recorded
amounts as commaon stock and additional paid-in capital
were ¥25,008 million ($250,080 thousand) and ¥25,008
million ($250,080 thousand), respectively.



1 2 STOCK OPTION

The stock options outstanding as of March 31, 2008 are as follows:

Number
Stock of Options Exercise
Option Persons Granted granted Date of Grant Price Exercise Period
26 Company'’s and subsidiaries’ direciors
2004 \ 347,400 ¥ 7,774  From July 1, 2006
Stock Option 426 Company’s and shares ~ [un€25.2004 <207 74 14 junJe 30, 2009
subsidiaries’ key employees
31 Company’s and subsidiaries’ directors
2005 \ 374,400 ¥ 8,420 From July 1, 2007
Stack Option 424 Company’s and shares  1UN€ 242005 ¢g4 20y To junJe 30,2010
subsidiaries' key employees
The stock option activity is as follows:
2001 2004 2005
Stock Option Stock Option Stock Option
{Shares)
For the year ended March 31, 2007
Non-vested
March 31, 2006 — Qutstanding 330,600 357,600
Granted
Canceled (1,200) (6.000)
Vested (329,400)
March 31, 2007 — Outstanding 351,600
Vested
March 31, 2006 — Qutstanding 47,000
Vested 329,400
Exercised
Canceled 47,000 (3.600)
March 31, 2007 — Outstanding 325,800
For the year ended March 31, 2008
Non-vested
March 31, 2007 — Outstanding 351,600
Granted
Canceled {71,400
Vested (280,200)
March 31, 2008 — Outstanding
Vested
March 31, 2007 — Outstanding 325,800
Vested 280,200
Exercised
Canceled (73,800) (3.600)
March 31, 2008 — Outstanding 252,000 276,600
Exercise price ¥ 7774 ¥ 8420
S (77.74) S (84.20)
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1 3 LOSS FROM AND PROVISION FOR BUSINESS RESTRUCTURING

The following table summarizes the compenents of the Group’s loss from business restructuring for the year ended March 31,

2008 and 2007 were as follows.

Thousands of

Miltions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2008 2007 2008

Loss from business restructuring:

Special severance payments ¥4,058

Cost related to closure of outlets 2,111

Other ¥97 1,043 5970
Total ¥97 ¥7,212 $970

Miilions of Yen

No provision for business restructuring was recognized for o007
the year ended March 31, 2008. Provision for business restructuring:

The following table summarizes the components of the Cost related to closure of cutlets ¥ 5819
Group's provision for business restructuring for the year Re-employment support cost and other 5,498
ended March 31, 2007, Total ¥11,317

1 4 INCOME TAXES

The Company and its domestic subsidiaries are subject to Japanese national and local income taxes which, in the aggregate,
resuited in normal effective statutory tax rates of approximately 40.6% for both of the years ended March 3, 2008 and 2007.
The iax effects of significant temporary differences and tax loss carryforwards which resulted in deferred tax assets and

liabilities at March 31, 2008 and 2007 were as follows:

Thousands of
Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2008 2007 2008
Deferred Tax Assets:
Allowance for doubtful accounts ¥ 69,984 ¥ 94944 S 699,840
Allowance for losses on interest refunds 58,420 67,950 584,200
Charge-offs for doubtful accounts 19,872 15,442 198,720
Accrued interest on loans 5,727 5,208 57,270
Tax loss carryforwards 34,079 4,415 340,790
Deferred loss on derivatives under hedge accounting 2,959 3,928 29,590
_ Other 10,925 18,123 109,250
Total 201,966 210,010 2,019,660
Less vatuation allowance (181,652) (191,778) (1,816,520)
Total deferred tax assets ¥ 20314 ¥ 18232 S 203,140
Deferred Tax Liabilities;
Unrealized gain on available-for-sale securities ¥ (1,174) ¥ (4454) S (11,740)
Other (199)
Total deferred tax liabilities ¥ (1,174 ¥ (4,653 S (11,740)
Net deferred tax assets ¥ 19,140 ¥ 13,579 $ 191,400
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Net deferred rax assets included in the consolidated balance sheet at March 31, 2008 are as follows:

Thousands of

Miilions of Yen U.S. Dollars
Current assets — Deferred tax assets ¥16,997 $169,970
Investment and other assets — Deferred tax assets 2,151 21,510
Long-term liabilities — Deferred tax liabilities (8) (80)
A valuation allowance is established to reduce certain 2008
deferred tax assets with respect to deductible temporary Normal effective statutory tax rate 40.6%
differences and net operating loss carryforwards where it is Inhabitants tax per capita basis 0.7
more likely than not that they will not be realized. Valuation allowance (32.8)
A reconciliation between the normal effective statutory  Amortization of goodwill 1.1

tax rate and the actual effective tax rate reflected in the  QOther-net 1.0
accompanying consolidated statement of operations for the  Actual effective rax rate 10.6%

year ended March 31, 2008 is as follows:

A reconciliation between the normal effective statutory tax rate and the actual effective tax rate reflecied in the
accompanying consolidated statement of operations for the year ended March 31, 2007 has not been disclosed because of the
Group's net loss position.

At March 31, 2008, the Group have tax loss carryforwards  year Ending March 31 Mitlions of Yen Thousands of
agdregating approximately ¥67,278 million ($672,780 2010 ¥ 325 S 13,250
thousand) which are available for offset against taxable 3¢ 1,872 18,720
income of such subsidiaries in future years. These tax loss  20(2 609 6,090
carryforwards, if not utilized, will expire as follows: 2013 463 4,630

2014 7,955 79,550
2015 56,054 560,540
Total ¥67,278 $672,780

15 ionsss

The Group leases vehicles, computer equipment, furniture and fixtures, office space and other assets.
Total rental expenses including lease payments under finance leases for the years ended March 31, 2008 and 2007 were as
follows:

Millions of Yen Thousands of U.S. Dollars
Lease Paymenis Lease Payments
Total Rental Under Finance Total Rental Under Finance
Expenses Leases Expenses Leases
Year Ended March 31;
2008 ¥11,858 ¥ 684 $118,580 $6,840
2007 19,415 2.326
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For the year ended March 31, 2007, the Group recorded an impairment loss of ¥135 million on certain leased property held
under finance leases that do not transfer ownership. An allowance for impairment loss on leased property is included in other
current liabilities.

Pro forma information of leased property including acquisition cost, accumulated depreciation, accumulated impairment
loss, obligations under finance leases, depreciation expense, interest expense, and other information of Ainance leases that do
not transfer ownership of the leased property to the lessee on an “as if capitalized” basis for the years ended March 31, 2008
and 2007 was as follows:

As of March 31, 2008
Millions of Yen

Machinery and Furniture and Buildings and
. Equipmient Fixtures Structures Total
Acquisition cost ¥40 ¥2,470 ¥ 8 ¥2,518
Accumulated depreciation 29 1,706 8 1,743
Net leased property ¥11 ¥ 764 NIL ¥ 775

As of March 31, 2007
Millions of Yen

Machinery and Furniture and Buildings and
Equipmient Fixtures Structures Total o
Acquisition cost ¥64 ¥7.304 ¥9 ¥7.377
Accurnulated depreciation 47 6,085 7 6,139
Accumulated impairment loss 135 135
Net leased property ¥17 ¥1084 ¥2 ¥1,103

As of March 31, 2008
Thousands of U.S. Dollars

Machinery and Furniture and Buildings and
L Equipment Fixtures Structures Total
Acquisition cost 5400 $24,700 $ 80 $25,180
Accumulated depreciation 290 17,060 80 17,430
Net leased property $110 $ 7,640 NIL $ 7,750

Obligations under finance leases:

Thousands of
Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2008 2007 2008
Due within one year ¥364 ¥ 771 $3,640
Due after one year 431 495 4,310
Total ¥795 ¥1,266 $7,950

Depreciation expense and interest expense under finance leases, which are not reflected in the accompanying consolidated
staternents of operations, computed by the straight-line method and the interest method, respectively, were as follows:

Millions of Yen

Thousands of

U.S. Dollars

2008 2007 2008
Depreciation expense ¥672 ¥2,195 $6,720
Interest expense 17 52 170
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The minimum rental commitments under noncancellable operating leases at March 31, 2008 and 2007 were as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2008 2007 2008
Due within one year ¥28 ¥77 $280
Due after one year 30 9 300
Total ¥58 ¥86 $580

1 6 DERIVATIVES

The Group enters into interest rate swap and cap, and
currency swap contracts as a means of managing its
principal and interest rate exposures and foreign currency
exposures on certain liabilities.

Such derivative transactions are entered into o hedge
interest exposures and foreign currency exposures inherent
within its business. Accerdingly, market and foreign

exchange risks in these derivatives are theoretically offset
by opposite movements in the value of hedged liabilities.
The Group does not hold cor issue derivatives for trading or
speculative purposes.

Because the counterparties to these derivarives are
limited to major financial institutions, the Group does not
anticipate any losses arising from credit risk.

Derivative transactions entered into by the Group have
been made in accordance with internal policies, which
regulate the authorization process and credit limit amount.

Market value information about derivative instruments at March 31, 2008 was as follows:;

Millions of Yen

Notional amourt

Due after Fair Unrealized
Total one year value loss
Interest rate caps agreements
Buying ¥150,000 ¥90,000 ¥11 ¥413
Thousands of U.S. Dollars
Notional amount
Due after Fair Unrealized
Total one year value loss
Interest rate caps agreements
Buying $1,500,000 $900,000 5110 54,130
Market value information about derivative instruments at March 31, 2007 was as follows:
Millions of Yen
Notional amount T
Due after Fair Unrealized
Total one year value loss
Interest rate caps agreements
Buying ¥60,000 ¥60,000 ¥68
Thousands of U.S. Dollars
Notional amount T
Due after Fair Unrealized
Total one year value loss
Interest rate caps agreements
Buying $508,475 $508,475 $576
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1 7 NET INCOME (LOSS) PER SHARE

Reconciliation of the differences between basic and diluted net income (loss) per share (“EPS") for the years ended March 31,

2008 and 2007 is as follows:

Yenin Thousands of
millions shares Yen Dollars
Netincome  Weighted average
{loss) shares EPS
For the year ended March 31, 2008:
Basic EPS
Net income available to common shareholders ¥ 27,434 143,806 ¥ 190.77 51.91
Effect of Dilutive Securities
Subordinated zero-coupon yen convertible bonds 3,016
Diluted EPS
Net income for computation ¥ 27,434 146,822 ¥ 186.86 $1.87
For the year ended March 31, 2007:
Basic EPS
Net loss attributable to common shareholders ¥(411,251) 141,622 ¥(2,903.85)

Diluted net loss per share for the year ended March 31, 2007 was not disclosed because of the Group's net loss position and

also because no dilutive securities were outstanding,

1 8 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

a. Tax assessment
On May 30, 2008, the Company received a notice of tax
assessment from the Osaka Regionat Tax Bureau stating that
the reported income in the Company’s income tax return
for the year ended March 31, 2007 was reduced because the
maximum deductible amount of provision of allowance for
doubtful accounts for tax purposes was increased by the

merger of a subsidiary on May 26, 2007. In accordance with

this tax assessment, the Company received ¥5,172 mitlion

{$51,720 thousand) of tax refunds, including interest thereon.
b. Appropriation of Retained Earnings

The following appropriation of retained earnings at March

3i, 2008 was approved by the Board of Directors on May

19, 2008:

Thousands of
Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars

Year-end cash dividends, ¥20 (50.20) per share

¥3,340 $33,400

1 9 SEGMENT INFORMATION

Most of the Group's business is related to a single segment, lending. The Group does not operate outside Japan. Accordingly,
information about industry and geographic segments was not presented.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

T2 Toea To lunalow.

Deloitte. %, Shimbashi & Co.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
AIFUL CORPORATION:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of AIFUL CORPORATION and
consolidated subsidiaries as of March 31, 2008 and 2007, and the related consolidated statements
of operations, changes in equity, and cash flows for the years then ended, all expressed in Japanese
yen. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s
management. Our responsibillty is to express an opinlon on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in Japan.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining,
on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that
our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the consolidated financial position of AIFUL CORPORATION and consolidated
subsidiaries as of March 31, 2008 and 2007, and the consolidated results of their operations and
their cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in Japan.

As discussed in Note 18.qa. to the consolidated financial statements, the Company received a notice
of tax assessment from Osaka Regional Tax Bureau on May 30, 2008 stating that the declared
income for the year ended March 31, 2007 was reduced, and has received the full ammount of tax
refund based on this notice.

Our audits also comprehended the translation of Japanese yen amounts into U.S. dollar amounts

and, in our opinion, such translation has been made in conformity with the basis stated in Note 3.
Such U.S. dollar amounts are presented solely for the convenience of readers outside Japan.

Shimbesd & Co-.

DELOITTE TOUCHE TOHMATSU SHIMBASHI & CO.
Kyoto, Japan Osaka, Japan
June 24, 2008 June 24, 2008
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NON-CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

Aiful Corporation
March 31, 2008 and 2007

Millions of Yen

Thousands of
U.S. Dellars (Note 3)

2008 2007 2008
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents ¥ 200462 ¥ 105146 $ 2,004,620
Time deposits 3,078 78 30,780
Loans, loan guarantees and receivables
Loans (Notes 4 and 7) 1,058,880 1,298,612 10,588,800
Loan guarantees 56,224 58,914 562,240
Other receivables 4,652 3,776 46,520
Allowance for doubtful accounts (Note 2.j) (201,898) (262,186) (2,018,980)
Prepaid expenses 1,604 2,578 16,040
Deferred tax assets (Note 11) 11,362 9,333 113,620
Other current assets (Note 7) 17,738 22,244 177,380
Total current assets 1,152,102 1,238,495 11,521,020
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT:
Land 6,762 6,762 67,620
Buildings and structures (Note 6) 19,447 24,766 194,470
Machinery and equipment 161 161 1,610
Furniture and fixtures (Note 6) 19,225 22,067 192,250
Construction in progress (Note 6) 2,917 760 29,170
Total 48,512 54,516 485,120
Accumulated depreciation (21,548) (26,697) (215,480)
Net property and equipment 26,964 27,819 269,640
INVESTMENTS AND OTHER ASSETS:
Investment securities (Note 5) 11,047 18,879 110,470
investments in and advances to subsidiaries (Note 12) 349,449 388,096 3,494,490
Claims in bankruptcy (Note 4) 39,998 33,518 399,980
Software, net 13,454 11,993 134,540
Long-term loans (less current poriion) 8 80
Lease deposits 5,945 8,469 59,450
Long-term prepayments 1,037 1,545 10,370
Deferred tax assets (Note 11) 1,792 17,920
Other assets (Note 6) 1,658 1,778 16,580
Altowance for doubtful accounts (67,496) (69,765) (674,960)
Total investments and other assets 356,892 394,513 3,568,920
TOTAL ¥ 1,535,958 ¥ 1,660,827 $15,359,580

See notes to non-consolidaied financial statements.

90




Millions of Yen

Thousands of
U.S. Dollars (Note 3)

2008 2007 2008
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Short-term borrowings (Note 7) ¥ 90,000 ¥ 16,000 $ 900,000
Current portion of long-term debt (Note 7) 240,207 300,601 2,402,070
Trade notes payable 53 31 530
Trade accounts payable 5,313 10,698 53,130
Obligation under loan guarantees 56,224 58,914 562,240
Income taxes payable 236 38 2,360
Accrued expenses 5,720 5924 57,200
Allowance for losses from business restructuring (Note 10) 148 4,381 1,480
Allowance for clean-up costs of coniaminated land 630
Other current liabilities 836 1,313 8,360
Tatal current liabilities 398,737 398,530 3,987,370
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES:
Long-term debt (less current portion) (Note 7) 708,084 874,360 7,080,840
Deferred tax liabilities (Note 11) 426
Liability for retirement benefits (Note 2.i) 969 1,255 9,690
Allowance for losses on interest refunds (Note 2.m) 99,467 122,956 994,670
Interest rate swaps 6,417 8,193 64,170
Other long-term liabilities 268 102 2,680
Total long-term liabilities 815,205 1,007,292 8,152,050
EQUITY (Notes 8 and 15):
Commen stock,
authorized, 568,140,000, issued, 167,475,000 shares in
2008 and 142,035,000 shares in 2007 108,325 83,317 1,083,250
Capirtal surplus —
Additional paid-in capital 115,233 90,225 1,152,330
Retained earnings:
Legal reserve 1,566 1,566 15,660
Unappropriated 102,230 82,241 1,022,300
Net unrealized gain on available-for-sale-securities 2,104 6,376 21,040
Deferred loss on derivatives under hedge accounting (4,332) (5,752) (43,320)
Treasury stock, at cost — 455,717 shares in 2008
and 412,835 shares in 2007 (3,110) {(2,968) (31,100)
Toral equity 322,016 255,005 3,220,160
TOTAL ¥ 1,535,958 ¥ 1,660,827 $15,359,580
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NON-CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Aiful Corporation
Years Ended March 31, 2008 and 2007

Millions of Yen

Thousands of
U.S. Dollars {(Note 3)

2008 2007 2008
INCOME:
Interest on loans ¥ 224,707 ¥ 292,669 $2,247,070
Interest on loan guarantees 4,738 5,052 47,380
Interest on deposits, securities and other (Note 12) 5,117 4,863 51,170
Recovery of loans previously charged off 2,553 1,841 25,530
~ Other income 2,514 5,273 25,140
~ Total income 239,629 309,698 2,396,290
EXPENSES:
Interest on borrowings 23,233 26,030 232,330
Charge-offs and provision for doubtful accounts 96,057 363,482 960,570
Salaries and other employees’ benefits 22,602 27,819 226,020
Advertising expenses 4,142 5733 41,420
Rental expenses (Note 13) 7,419 11,613 74,190
Commissions and fees 8,522 11,450 85,220
Depreciation and amortization 6,547 8.641 65,470
Loss on write-down of investments in subsidiaries 21,701
Provision for losses on interest refunds (Note 2.m) 26,936 122,956 269,360
Loss on interest refunds 11,195
Loss on impairment of long-lived assets (Note 6) 3,128
Loss from and provision for business restructuring (Note 10) 173 8,798 1,730
Provision for clean-up costs of contaminated land 630
Other expenses 15,324 27,685 153,240
Total expenses 210,955 650,861 2,109,550
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAXES 28,674 (341,163) 286,740
INCOME TAXES (Note 11);
Currert 3,634 7.564 36,340
Deferred (2,029) 10,672 (20,290)
____Total income taxes 1,605 18,236 16,050
NET INCOME (LOSS) ¥ 27,069 ¥ (359,399) $ 270,690
Yen U.S. Dollars
é_ﬂﬁ)UI}l'ES PER COMMON SHARE (Notes 2.w and 14):
Basic net income (loss) ¥ 188.24 ¥(2,537.73) $ 1.88
Diluted net income 184.37 1.84
Cash dividends applicable to the year 40.00 60.00 .40

See notes to non-consolidated financiat statements.
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NON-CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Aiful Corporation
Years Ended March 31, 2008 and 2007

Thousands Millions of Yen
Capital Retained Net
Surplus Earnings Unreatized  Deferred
Number of Gainon  gain (loss) on
Shares of Additional Available- Derivatives
Common  Common  Paid-in Legal for-sale  under Hedge Treasury Total
Stock Issued Stack Capital  Reserve Unappropriaied Securities Accounting  Stock Equity
BALANCE AT APRIL 1, 2006 142,035 ¥ 83,317 ¥ 90225 ¥1,566 ¥450,138 ¥10.636 ¥(2,965) ¥632917
Net loss (359,399) {359.399)
Cash dividends paid, ¥60 per share (8.498) (8.498)
Net increase in treasury stock
(711 shares) (3 3
Net change in the year (4.260) ¥(5.752) (10,012
BALANCE AT MARCH 31, 2007 142,035 83,317 90,225 1.566 82,241 6376 (5,752) (2.968) 255005
Issuance of commeon stock
through a third-party capital 25,440 25,008 25,008 50,016
allotmient (Note 8)
Net income 27,069 27,069
Cash dividends paid, ¥50 per share {7,080} (7,080)
Net increase in treasury stock
(42.882 shates) Y (142) (142)
Net change in the year (4.272) 1,420 (2,852)
BALANCE AT MARCH 31, 2008 167,475  ¥108,325 ¥115,233 ¥1,566 ¥102,230 ¥ 2,104  ¥(4,332) ¥(3,110) ¥322,016

Thousands of U.S. Dollars (Note 3)

Capital Retained Net
Surplus Earnings Unrealized  Deferred
Gain o gain (loss) on
Additional Available- Derivatives
Common  Paid-in Legal ) for-sale  under Hedge Treasury Total
Stock Capital ~ Resérve Unappropriated Securities Accounting  Stock Equity
BALANCE AT MARCH 31, 2007 $ 833i70 S 902250 SI5660 $ B22410 $63.760  5(57.520)  S5(29.680) 52,550,050
Issuance of comrmon stock thrgugh a 500,160
third-party capital allotment (Note B} 250,080 250,080 '
Net income 270,690 270,690
Cash dividends paid. $0.50 per share {70,800) (70.800)
Net increase in treasury stock
(42.882 shares) 4200 (4200
Net change in the year 42,720 14,200 (28,520)
BALANCE AT MARCH 31, 2008 1,083,250 $1,152330 515660 51,022,300 $21,040  $(43,320) $(31,100) $3,220,160

See notes to non-consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO NON-CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Aiful Corporation
Years Ended March 31, 2008 and 2007

0 BASIS OF PRESENTING NON-CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The accompanying non-consolidated financial statements
of Aiful Corporation {the “Company” ) have been prepared
in accordance with the provisions set forth in the Japanese
Financial Instruments and Exchange Law (formerly the
Japanese Securities and Exchange Law) and its related
accounting regulations, and in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in Japan (Japanese GAAP),
which are different in certain respects as to application and
disclosure requirements of International Financial Reporting
Standards and accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America.

0 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a. Non-Consolidation — The non-consolidated financial
statemenis do not include the accounts of subsidiaries.
Investments in subsidiaries and associated companies
are stated at cost, except for investments in subsidiaries
which are limited liability investment partnerships and
other similar partnerships (see Note 2.d).

b. Business-Combination — In October 2003, the Business
Accounting Council {the “BAC") issued a Staterment of
Opinion, “Accounting for Business Combinations”, and on
Decemnber 27, 2005, the Accounting Standards Board of
Japan (the “ASBJ") issued ASBJ Statement No.7, “Accounting
Standard for Business Divestitures” and ASB] Guidance
No.10, “Guidance for Accounting Standard for Business
Combinations and Business Divestitures”. These new
accounting pronouncements were effective for fiscal years
beginning on or after April 1, 2006. The accounting standard
for business combinations allows companies to apply the
pooling of interests methed of accounting only when certain
specific criteria are met such that the business combination
is essentially regarded as a uniting-of-interests.

For business combinations that do not meet the
uniting-of-interests criteria, the business combination is
considered to be an acquisition and the purchase method
of accounting is required. This standard also prescribes
the accounting for combinations of entities under
common conirol and for joint ventures.

On March 26, 2007, the Company merged id CREDIT
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As consolidated statements of cash flows and certain
disclosures are presented in the consolidated financial
statements of the Company, non-consolidated statements of
cash flows and certain disclosures are not presented herein
in accordance with japanese GAAP.

In preparing these non-consolidated financial statements,
certain reclassifications and rearrangements have been
made to the Company’s non-consolidated financial
statements issued domestically in order to present them in a
form which is more familiar to readers outside Japan.

In addition, certain reclassifications have been made
in the 2007 financial statements to conform to the
classifications used in 2008,

CORPCORATION and NET ONE CLUB CORPORATION,
which were wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company.
The accounting for combinations of entities under
common control prescribed by the accounting standard
for business combinations was applied to it.

c. Cash Equivalents — Cash equivalents are short-term
investments that are readily convertible into cash and that
are exposed to insignificant risk of changes in value.

Cash equivalents include time deposits and certificate
of deposits which mature or become due within three
months of the date of acquisition and securities purchased
under resale agreements. Prior to April 1, 2007 securities
purchased under resale agreements were not included in
components of cash equivalents,

Effective April 1, 2007, however the company changed
its policy 1o include securities purchased under resale
agreements in cash equivalents which are in the context of
the actual situation for invesements of short-term funds.

d. Investment Securities — Investment securities are
classified and accounted for, depending on management's
intent, as follows: i) investment securities in subsidiaries and
associated companies, are reported at cost, and ii} available-
for-sale securities are reported at fair value, with unreatized
gains and losses, net of applicable taxes, reported in a
separate component of equity. The cost of securities sold is
determined based on the moving-average method.

Non-marketable available-for-sale securities are stated at
cost determined by the moving-average method. For other
than temporary declines in fair value, investment securities
are reduced to net realizable value by a charge to income.




Investments in limited liability investment partnerships
and other similar partnerships are initially recorded at
cost, and the carrying amount is adjusted to recognize
the Company’s interests in earnings or losses in such
partnerships based on the recent available financial
statements of the partnerships.

. Investments in Subsidiaries — Investments in subsidiaries

are stated at cost, except that appropriate write-downs are
recorded for investments in companies which have incurred
substantial losses deemed to be of a permanent nature.

. Property and Equipment — Property and equipment are

stated at cost. Depreciation is computed by the declining-
balance method. The range of useful lives is principally
from 3 to 50 years for buildings and structures, from 13
to 15 years for machinery and equipment, and from 2 to
20 years for furniture and fixtures.

. Long - lived assets — The Company reviews its long-

lived assets for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstance indicate the carrying amount of an asset
or asset group may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or
asset group exceeds the sum of the undiscounted future
cash flows expected to result from the continued use and
eventual disposition of the asset or asset group.

The impairment loss is measured as the amount
by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its
recoverable amount, which is the higher of the discounted
cash flows from the continued use and eventual disposition
of the asset or the net selling price at disposition.

. Software — Expenditures for the purchase of software,

which meet certain future-tests, are capitalized as
software and amortized by the straight-line method over
the estimated useful lives of five years.

Liability for Retirement Benefits — The Company
has a defined contribution pension plan and a prepaid
retirement benefits plan which were established on
October 1, 2004. Contributions to the defined contribution
plan and paymenis to the prepaid retirement benefits
plan are charged to income when made.

Liability for retirement benefits to directors and
corporate auditors is provided at the amount which would
be required if they retired at each balance sheet date. The
liability for retirement benefits in the non-consolidated
balance sheet is for directors and corporate auditors.

j. Allowance for Doubtful Accounts — The allowance

for doubtful accourus is stated in ameounts considered to
be appropriate based on the Company’s past credit 10s3
experience and an evaluation of potential losses in the
recetvables outstanding.

. Allowance for clean-up costs of contaminated land

— The allowance for clean-up costs of contaminated
land (2007) is provided for losses on cleaning up soil
contamination discovered in some portion of the
Company's land for sale and is based on the estimated
amount of future costs to be paid.

Allowance for losses from business restructuring —
The allowance for losses from business restructuring is
provided at an estimated amount of future costs related
to liguidation of outlets and other restructuring activities,

.Allowance for losses on interest refunds — The limit of

interest rates is regulated by two laws — “Contributions Law”
and “Interest Rate Restriction Law™. Under the former law,
interest rates on loans should not exceed 29.2% and violation
of the law is considered to be a criminal penalty. The later
law stipulates that interest payments for interest rates that
exceed the legal limit (20% for principal amourits under ¥100
thousand, 18% for principals between ¥100 thousand and
¥1 million and 15% for principals over ¥! million) are void.
However, under the "Moneylending Business Restriction
Law", such interest payments are nonetheless considered
to be valid if moneylenders issue notices as prescribed by
the law to debtors and debtors pay voluntary. Recent strict
interpretation by the courts of these requirements has led to
decisions against meneylenders and resulted in more debrors
claiming for the return of excess interest payments,

On March 15, 2006, the Japanese Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “JICPA”) issued a report requiring
moneylenders to make an accounting provision for
losses on interest refunds for interest rates that exceeded
the limit set by the Interest Rate Restriction Law. The
Company has loaned money at rates berween the limit
set by the two laws, and has in the past charged refund
costs to income as incurred. However, the growing
number of claims against the Company has increased the
materiality of the financial effects of the situation. S0, the
Company decided to record a provision of ¥17,020 million
(“Allowance for losses on interest refunds™) for interest
refunds for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2006.

On October 13, 2006, the industry practice committee
of the JICPA issued its Report No.37 “Audit Guidelines for
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926

Consumer Finance Companies’ Recording of Provision
for Losses on Interest Refunds,” (“Report No. 377 which
became effective for fiscal periods ending on or after
September 1, 2006, The Company changed the method
of estimating allowance for losses on interest refunds in
accordance with the new audit guidelines,

The difference between the amount of allowance for
losses on interest refunds estimated and recorded as of
the beginning of the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007 in
accordance with the report issued on March 15, 2006 and
the amount estimated as of the beginning of the fiscal
year ended March 31, 2007 in accordance with Report
No. 37, was recorded as "Charge-offs and provision for
doubtful accounts™ in the amount of ¥99,179 million and
“Provision for losses on interest refunds” in the amount
of ¥57,070 million in the non-consolidated statements of
operations for the year ended March 3t, 2007, At March
31, 2008 and 2007, the Company recorded an allowance of
¥99 467 miilion (5994.670 thousand) and ¥i22.956 million,
respectively, as “Allowance for losses on interest refunds”.
In addition, the estimated amount of interest refunds of
¥93,504 million {5$935,040 thousand) and ¥167,530 million
which are expected to be preferentially set off against loans
is recorded as “Allowance for doubtful accounts” for the
Company March 31, 2008 and 2007, respectivety.

Allowance for losses on interest refunds is stated in
amounts considered to be appropriate based on the
Company’s past refund loss experience, the recent
situation regarding interest refunds and other factors,

. Leases -— Under Japanese accounting standards for leases,

finance leases that deem to transfer cwnership of the
leased property to the lessee are to be capitalized, while
other finance leases are permitted to be accounted for as
operating lease transactions if certain “as if capitalized”
information is disclosed in the notes to the lessee’s non-
consolidated financial statements. All leases are accounted
for as operating leases.

. Income Taxes — The provision for income taxes is

computed based on the pretax income included in the
non-consotidated statements of income. The asset and
liability approach is used to recognize deferred tax assets
and liabilities for the expected future tax consequences of
temporary differences between the carrying amounts and
the tax bases of assets and liabilities. Deferred taxes are
measured by applying currently enacted tax laws o the
termporary differences.

p. Presentation of Equity — On December 9, 2005, the ASB]

published a new accounting standard for presentation
of equity. Under this accounting standard, certain items
which were previously presented as liabilities or assets,
as the case may be, are now presented as components of
equity. Such items include stock acquisition rights and any
deferred gain or loss on derivatives accounted for under
hedge accouniing. This standard was effective for fiscal
years ending on or after May 1, 2006,

The balances of such items as of March 31, 2006 were
reclassified as separate components of equity as of April 1,
2006 in the non-consolidated staterments of changes in equity.

. Foreign Currency Transactions — All short-term and long-

term monetary receivables and payables denominated
in foreign currencies are translated into japanese yen at
the exchange rates ar the balance sheet date. The foreign
exchange gains and losses from translation are recognized in
the non-consolidated statements of operations to the extent
that they are not hedged by forward exchange contracts.

. Interest on Loans — Interest on loans is recorded on an

accruat basis. In accordance with the practice prevailing in
the industry, the Company records accrued interest at either
the interest rate stipulated in the [nterest Rate Restriction
Law or the contracted interest rate, whichever is lower.

. Interest on Borrowings — Interest on financial liabilities is

accounted for as operating expenses while other interest is
included in other expenses.

. Stock Issue Costs — Stock issue costs are charged to

income as incurred,

. Bond Issue Costs — Amortization is calculated by the

straight-line method over the term of the related bond issue.
Bond issue costs related to bonds which were issued by
March 31, 2006 are amortized ratably over periods up to
three years. Bond issue costs are included in other assets.

. Derivatives and Hedging Activities — The Company uses

derivative financial instruments to manage its exposures
to fluctuations in interest rates and foreign exchange.
Interest rate swaps, interest rate caps and currency swaps
contracts are utilized by the Company to reduce interest
rate and foreign currency exchange risks.

The Company does not enter into derivatives for trading or
speculative purposes. The accounting standard for derivative
financial instruments requires that: a) all derivatives be
recognized as either assets or liabilities and measured at
fair value, and gains or losses on derivative transactions be
recognized in the non-consolidated staterments of operations,




and b) for derivatives used for hedging purposes, if derivatives
qualify for hedge accounting because of high correlation
and effectiveness between the hedging instruments and the
hedged items, gains or losses on derivatives be deferred until
maturity of the hedged transactions.

Currency swaps contracts are utilized to hedge foreign
currency exposures in principal and interest payment of
U.S. dollar straight bonds. U.S. dollar straight bonds are
translaied at the contracted rates.

The interest rate swaps and caps which qualify for
hedge accounting and meet specific matching criteria are
not remeasured at market value but the differential paid
or received under the swap or cap contracts is recognized
and included in interest expenses or income.

w. Per Share Information — Basic net income (loss) per
share is computed by dividing net income (loss) available
1o common shareholders by the weighted-average number
of common shares outstanding for the period, retroactively
adjusted for stock spiits.

Diluted net income per share of commmon stock reflects
the potential dilutiony that could occur if securities were
converted into common stock and assumes full conversion
of the outstanding convertible bonds at the time of issuance
and full exercise of outstanding stock options.

Cash dividends per share presented in the accompanying

0 TRANSLATION INTO
UNITED STATES DOLLARS

The non-consolidated financial statemenis are siated in
Japanese yen, the currency of the country in which the
Company is incorporated and operates. The translation of

04 LOANS

non-consolidated statements of operations are dividends
applicable to the respective years including dividends to be
paid after the end of the year, and have not been retroactively
adjusted for stock splits.
x. New Accounting Pronouncements

Lease Accounting — On March 30, 2007, the ASB] issued
ASBJ Statement No.13, “Accounting Standard for Lease
Transactions”, which revised the existing accounting
standard for lease transacrions issued on June 17, 1993,
The revised accounting standard for lease transactions is
effective for fiscal years beginning on or after April 1, 2008
with early adoption permitted for fiscal years beginning on
or after April 1, 2007.
Lessee
Under the existing accounting standard, finance leases
that deem to transfer ownership of the leased property
to the lessee are to be capitalized, however, other finance
leases are permitted to be accounted for as operating lease
transactions if certain “as if capitalized” information is
disclosed in the note to the lessee’s financial statements.
The revised accounting standard requires that all finance
lease transactions shall be capitalized recognizing lease
assets and lease obligations in the balance sheets.

The company expecis to adopt this revised accounting
standard as of April 1, 2008,

Japanese yen amounts into U.S. dollar amounts is included
solely for the convenience of readers outside Japan and have
been made at the rate of ¥100 to $1, the approximate rate of
exchange at March 31, 2008. Such translations should not be
construed as representarions that the Japanese yen amounts
could be converted into U.S. dollars at that or any other rate.

Leans at March 31, 2008 and 2007 consisted of the foliowing (before allowance for doubtful accounts):

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2008 2007 2008
Unsecured ¥ 817,825 ¥ 995077 $ 8,178,250
Secured 221,577 274,788 2,215,770
Small business loans 19,478 28,747 194,780
Toral ¥1,058,880 ¥1,208,612 $10,588,800
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Regisiered moneylenders are required to disclose the following information under the Non-Bank Bond Issuing Law.

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars

2008 2007 2008
Loans in legal bankruptcy ¥ 43,300 ¥ 36,936 S 433,000
Nonaccrual loans 144,404 142,932 1,444,040
Accruing loans contractually past due three months
or more as to principal or interest payments 14,109 20,362 141,090
Restructured loans _ 38,872 37,903 388,720
Total ¥240,685 ¥238,133 $2,406,850

Leans in legal bankruptcy are Joans in which accruals of
interest are discontinued (excluding the portion recognized
as bad debts), based on management’s judgment as to the
collectibility of principal or interest resulting from the past due
payment of interest or principal and other factors. Allowances
for claims in bankruptcy are stated at such armount less net
realizable value of collateral.

Nonaccrual loans are loans in which accruals of interest are
discontinued, other than loans in legal bankruptcy as well as
foans receiving regular payments in case of granting deferral
of interest payment to the debtors in financial difficulties to
assist them in their recovery.

Accruing loans contractually past due three months or
more as to principal or interest payments are loans for which
payments of principal or interest have not been received for
a period of three months or more beginning with the next
business day following the last due date for such payments.
Loans classified as loans in legal bankruptcy and nonaccrual
loans are excluded from accruing loans contractually past due
three months or more.

0 5 INVESTMENT SECURITIES

Restructured loans are loans on which creditors grant
concessions (e.g., reduction of the stated interest rate,
deferral of interest payment. extension of maturity date,
waiver of the face amount, or other concessive measures)
to the debtors in financial difficulties to assist them in their
recovery and eventually enable them to pay creditors. Loans
classified as loans in legal bankruptcy, nonaccrual loans and
accruing toans contractually past due three months or more
are excluded.

At March 31, 2008 and 2007, the Company had balances
related to revolving loan contracts aggregating ¥1,007,918
million ($10,079,180 thousand) and ¥1,232,448 million,
respectively, whereby the Company is obligated to advance
funds up to a predetermined amount upon request. At
March 31, 2008 and 2007, the balances of unadvanced
commitments were ¥218,157 million (52,181,570 thousand)
and ¥330,213 million, respectively. The loan contract contains
provisions that allow the Company to reduce the contract
amount of the commitment or refuse to advance funds to
loan customers under certain conditions.

Disclosure of cost and fair value of investment securities at
March 31, 2008 and 2007 is not presented herein, as such
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06 LONG LIVED ASSETS

No impairment loss was recognized for the year ended March 31, 2008

The Company reviewed their long-lived assets for impairment, and as a result, recognized an impairment [oss for the following
long-lived assets related to its business-restructuring program for the year ended March 31, 2007.

March 31, 2007

impairment loss

Description Classification Millions of Yen
Outlets which the Buildings and structures,
Company decided to close Furniture and fixtures and other ¥3,128

The following table summarizes the Company’s asset grouping:

Business Classification Asset grouping

Financial services are one unit. OQutlets which the Company

Financial services decided to close are grouped in another separate unit.

The following table summarizes the components of the Company's loss on impairment of long-lived assets:

Millions of Yen

2007
Buildings and structures ¥2,106
Furniture and fixture 885
Other 137
Total ¥3,128

The recoverable amount was measured at their value in use, calculated as the amount equal to the depreciation expense o be
charged through the point of the closure of outlets.

0 7 SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS AND LONG-TERM DEBT

Shert-term borrowings at March 31, 2008 and 2007 consisted of the following:
Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars

2008 2007 2008
Loans from banks, 1.62% t0 1.75% {1.18% to 1.37% at March 31, 2007) ¥ 7,000 ¥13,000 S 70,000
Loans from other financial institutions, 1.88% 3,000 3,000 30,000
Securitized loan, 1.51% to 1.68% 80,000 800,000
Total ¥90,000 ¥16,000 $900,000
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Long-term debt at March 31, 2008 and 2007 consisted of the following:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2008 2007 2008

Loans from banks, 0.95% to 3.03 %, due serially to 2012

{0.95% to 2.65%, due serially to 2012 at March 31, 2007) ¥299,194 ¥ 446011 $ 2,991,940
02012 (1 27% t02 855, due sy 10 2012 2 Moréh 31 2007, B0 133,083 810,400
Syndicated Loans, 0.79%, due serially to 2010 2,701 11,243 27,010
Unsecured 1.66% to 2.51 % yen straight bonds, due 2007 43,000
Unsecured 0.45% to 2.48% yen straight bonds, due 2008 35,000 61,000 350,000
Unsecured 1.01 % to 3.28% yen straight bonds, due 2009 58,000 58,000 580,000
Unsecured 0.80% to 3.00% yen straight bonds, due 2010 70,000 70,000 700,000
Unsecured 1.50% to 1.58% yen straight bonds, due 2011 20,000 20,000 200,000
Unsecured 1.20% to 1.99% yen straight bonds, due 2012 30,000 30,000 300,000
Unsecured 1.74 % yen straight bonds, due 2013 10,000 10,000 100,000
Unsecured 1.99 % yen straight bonds, due 2015 10,000 10,000 100,000
Unsecured 4.45% t0 5.00% U.S. dollar straight bonds, due 2010 108,500 108,500 1,085,000
Unsecured 6.00% U.S. dollar siraight bonds, due 2011 57,600 57,600 576,000
Subordinated zero-coupon yen convertible bonds, due 2010 70,000 700,000
Unsecured 3.00% medium-term notes, due 2008 3,000
Unsecured 3.50 % medium-term noies, due 2015 15,000 15,000 150,000
Cther {principally from leasing companies and securitized loan),

1.40% 10 2.30%, due serially to 2012 (0.79% 10 2.30%, due

serially to 2012 at March 31, 2007) 81,256 98,564 812,560

Total 948,291 1,174,961 9,482,910

Less current portion (240,207 (300,601} (2,402,070)
Long-term debt, less current portion ¥ 708,084 ¥ 874360  § 7,080,840

The conversion price of the subordinated zero-coupon yen convertible bonds was ¥1,966 per share at March 31, 2008.
The yen convertible bonds can be exercised from March 10, 2008 to February 27, 2010. The conversion price of the yen
cenvertibte bonds are subject to adjustmenis to reflect stock splits and certain other events.

Annual maturities of long-term debt at March 31, 2008 were as follows:

Thousands of

Year Ending March 31 Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars

2009 ¥240,207 $2,402,070
2010 319,821 3,198,210
2011 205,057 2,050,570
2012 131,861 1,318,610
2013 16,345 163,450
2014 and thereafter 35,000 350,000
Total ¥948,291 $9,482,910
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At March 31, 2008, the following assets were pledged as collateral for short-term borrowings and loeng-term debt (including

current portion of long-term debt):

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars

Loans ¥328,870 $3,288,700
Other current assets 94 940
Total ¥328,964 $3,289,640
Related liabilities —
Short-term borrowings ¥ 80,000 $ 800,000
Long-term debt (including current portion of long-term debt) 112,265 1,122,650
Total ¥192,265 51,922,650

The above table includes loans related to securitized loans of
¥295,624 million (52,956,240 thousand), and related liabiliies
{short-term borrowings and long-term debt including current
portion) of ¥160,101 million (51,601,010 thousand).

Property and equipment of Marutoh KK, the Company's
subsidiary, were pledged as collateral for the above liabilities.

If requested by lending financial institutions, the Company
has committed to pledge loans of ¥109,923 miltion (51,099,230
thousand) as collateral in addition to those shown in the above
table. At March 31, 2008, related liabilities for which lending
financial institutions can request the Company 1o pledge
additional collateral consisted of the following:

Thousands of

Miltions of Yen U.S. Dollars

Long-term debt (including current portion of long-term debr)

¥99,796 $997,960

At March 31, 2008, other current assets amounting to ¥1,290
million ($12.900 thousand), were pledged as collateral for the
interest rate swap contracts.

A portion of the Company’s loans from banks and
securitized borrowings is subject to accelerated repayment
if the Company fails to meet certain financial covenants
including the amount of equity, the equity ratio and

0 8 EQUITY

Since May 1, 2006, Japanese companies have been subject
to the Corporate Law of Japan (the “Corporate Law"), which
reformed and replaced the Commercial Code of Japan.
The significant provisions in the Corporate Law that affect
financial and accounting matters are summarized helow:

(a) Dividends

Under the Corporate Law, companies can pay dividends
at any time during the fiscal year in addition to the year-
end dividend upon resolution at the shareholders meeting.

covenants based on specified operational indices such as
the ratio of loss on interest refunds to equity. For the year
ended March 31, 2008, the Company has newly violated the
covenants of a shori-term securitized borrowing which was
scheduled to be repaid in May, 2008 and june 2008. This
securitized borrowing is ¢ be repaid in May, 2008 and June,
2008 in accordance with its original repayment schedule.

For companies that meet certain criteria such as; (1) having
the Board of Directors, (2) having independent auditors, (3)
having the Board of Corporate Auditors, and (4) the term of
service of the directors is prescribed as one year rather than
two years of normal term by its articles of incorporation,
the Board of Directors may declare dividends (except for
dividends in kind} at any time during the fiscal year if the
company has prescribed so in its articles of incorporation.
The Company meets all the above criteria.

The Corporate Law permits companies to distribute
dividends-in-kind (non-cash assets) to shareholders subject to
a certain limitation and additional requirements,
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Semiannual interim dividends may also be paid once a
year upon resolution by the Board of Directors if the articles
of incorporation of the company so stipulate. The Corporate
Law provides certain limitations on the amounts available for
dividends or the purchase of treasury stock. The limitation
is defined as the amount available for distribution to the
shareholders, but the amount of net assets after dividends
must be maintained at no less than ¥3 million.

(b} Increases / decreases and transfer of common stock,
reserve and surplus

The Corporate Law requires that an amount equal to 10% of
dividends must be appropriated as a legal reserve {a component
of retained earnings) or as additional paid-in capital (a
component of capital surplus) depending on the equity accouni
charged upon the payment of such dividends unitil the total of
the aggregate amount of legal reserve and additional paid-in
capital equals 25% of the common stock. Under the Corporate
Law, the total amount of additicnal paid-in capital and legal
reserve may be reversed without limitation. The Corporate Law
also provides that common stock, legal reserve, additional paid-
in capital, other capital surplus and retained earnings can be
transferred among the accounts under certain conditions upon
resolution of the shareholders.

0 9 STOCK OPTION

(c) Treasury stock and treasury stock acquisition rights
The Corporate Law also provides for companies to purchase
treasury stock and dispose of such treasury stock by
resolution of the Board of Directors. The amount of treasury
stock purchased cannot exceed the amount available for
distribution to the shareholders which is determined by
specific formula.

Under the Corporate Law, stock acquisition rights, which
were previously presented as a liability, are now presented as
a separate component of equity.

The Corporate Law also provides that companies can
purchase both treasury stock acquisition rights and treasury
stock. Such treasury stock acquisition rights are presented as
a separate component of equity or deducted directly from
stock acquisition rights.

On February 13, 2008, the Company issued 25,440
thousand shares of common stock through a third-party
capital allotment. The issue price of common stock was
¥1,966 per share and proceeds from issuance of the shares
were ¥50,015 million ($500,150). Recorded amounts as
common stock and additional paid-in capital were ¥25,008
million ($250,080 thousand) and ¥25,008 million ($250,080
thousand), respectively.

Disciosure of stock option is not presented herein, as such information may be omitted if disclosed in consolidated financial

statements under Japanese GAAP,

1 0 LCSS FROM AND PROVISION FOR BUSINESS RESTRUCTURING

The following table summarizes the components of the Company's loss from business restructuring for the year ended March

31, 2008 and 2007, were following.

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U S. Dollars
2008 2007 2008
Loss from business restructuring:
Special severance payments ¥ 2,753
Cost related to closure of outlets ¥ 52 1,267 5520
Other 121 397 1,210
Total ¥ 173 ¥ 4417 S 1,730
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No provision for business restructuring was recognized for the year ended March 31, 2008.
The following table summarizes the components of the Company’s provision for business restructuring for the year ended
March 31, 2007.

Millions of Yen

2007
Provision for business restruciuring:
Cost related to closure of outlets ¥ 4,115
Re-employment support cost and other 266
Total ¥ 4,581

1 1 INCOME TAXES

The Company is subject to Japanese national and local income taxes which, in the aggregate, resulted in normal effective
statutory rax rates of approximately 40.6% for both of the years ended March 31, 2008 and 2007.
The tax effects of significant temporary differences which resulted in deferred tax assets and liabilities at March 31, 2008 and

2007 are as follows:
Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2008 2007 2008

Deferred Tax Assets:

Allowance for doubtful accounts ¥ 66,888 ¥ 90,111 S 668,880

Allowance for losses on interest refunds 40,364 49,896 403,640

Tax loss carryforwards 22,685 226,850

Charge-offs for doubcful loans 10,868 6,065 108,680

Investments in subsidiaries 8,806 8,806 88,060

Accrued interest on loans 3,950 3,737 39,500

Deferred loss on derivatives under hedge accounting 3,929

Other 6,882 7,058 68,820

Total 160,443 169,602 1,604,430

Less valuation allowance (146,123) (156,141) (1,461,230)

Total deferred tax assets ¥ 14,320 ¥ 13461 S 143200
Deferred Tax Liabilities:

Unrealized gain on available-for-sale securities ¥ (1,166) ¥ (4,355 S (11,660)

Other (199)

Total deferred tax liabilities ¥ (1,166) ¥  (4,554) $ (11,660)
Net deferred tax assets ¥ 13,154 ¥ 8907 $ 131,540

Net deferred rax assets included in the non-consolidated balance sheet at March 31, 2008 are as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
Current asserts - Deferred tax assets ¥11,362 $113,620
Investment and other assets - Deferred tax assets 1,792 17,920
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A reconciliation between the normal effective statutory tax rate and the actual effective tax rate reflected in the accompanying
non-consolidated statements of operation for the year ended March 31, 2008 is as follows;

2008
Normal effective statutory tax rate 40.6%
Inhabitants tax per capital basis 0.3
Valuation allowance (34.9)
Other-net (0.49)
Actual effective tax rate 5.6%

A reconciliation between the normal effective statutory tax rate and the actual effective tax rate reflecied in the
accompanying non-consolidated statements of operation for the year ended March 31, 2007 has not been disclosed because
of the Company’s net loss position.

1 2 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The balances due from subsidiaries at March 31, 2008 and 2007 and transactions of the Company with subsidiaries for the

years ended March 31, 2008 and 2007 were as follows:
Thousands of

Millions of Yen U S. Dollars
2008 2007 2008
Advances to subsidiaries ¥228,291 ¥277,503 52,282,910
Altlowance for doubtfut accounts provided for advances to subsidiaries 39,100 46,200 391,000
Inierest income 4,369 4,482 43,690

1 3 LEASES

The Company leases vehicles, computer equipment, furniture and fixtures, office space and other assets.
Total rental expenses including lease payments under finance leases for the years ended March 31. 2008 and 2007 were as follows:

Millions of Yen Thousands of U.S. Dollars
Lease Paymenis Lease Paymenis
Total Rental Under Finance Total Rentat Under Finance
Expenses Leases Expenses Leases
Year Ended March 31:
2008 ¥ 7419 ¥ 56 574,190 $560
2007 11,613 250
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Pro forma information of leased property including acquisition cost. accumulated depreciation, obligations under finance leases,
depreciation expense, and interest expense of finance leases that do not transfer ownership of the leased property to the lessee

on an “as if capitalized” basis for the years ended March 31, 2008 and 2007 was as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2008 2007 2008
Furnitureand  Furniture and Furniture and
Fixtures Fixtures Fixtures
Acquisition cost ¥170 ¥277 $1,700
Accumulated depreciation 153 219 1,530
Net leased property ¥ 17 ¥ 58 $ 170

Obligations under finance leases:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen 1.8, Dollars
2008 2007 2008
Due within one year 7 ¥44 5170
Due after one year 2 18 20
Total ¥19 ¥62 5190

Depreciation expense and interest expense, which are not reflected in the accompanying non-consolidated statements of

operations, computed under a straight-line method and the interest method, respectively, were as follows:

Thousands of

Miliions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2008 2007 2008
Depreciation expense ¥54 ¥240 $540
Interest expense 1 3 10

The minimum rental commitments under non - cancelable operating leases at March 31, 2008 were as follows.

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2008 2007 2008
Due within one year ¥4 ¥20 $40
Due after one year 5 5 50
Toral ¥9 ¥25 $90
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1 4 NET INCOME (LOSS) PER SHARE

Reconciliation of the differences between basic and diluted net income (loss} per share ("EPS”) for the years ended March 31,

2008 and 2007 is as follows:

Yenin Thousands of
millions shares Yen Dollars
Net income  Weighted average
(loss) shares EPS
For the year ended March 31, 2008:
Basic EPS
Net income available to common shareholders ¥27,069 143,806 ¥188.24 $1.88
Effect of Dilutive Securities
Subordinated zero-coupon yen convertible bonds 3,016
Diluted EPS
Net income for computation ¥27,069 146,822 ¥184.37 $1.84
For the year ended March 31, 2007:
Basic EPS
Ner loss attributable to common shareholders ¥(359,399) 141,622 ¥(2,537.73)

Diluted net loss per share for the year ended March 31, 2007 was not disclosed because of the Company's net loss position and

also because no dilutive securities were outstanding,

1 5 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

a. Tax assessment

On May 30, 2008, the Company received a notice of tax
assessment from the Osaka Regional Tax Bureau stating
that the reported income in the Company’s income tax
return for the year ended March 31, 2007 was reduced
because the maximum deductible amount of provision
of allowance for doubtful accounts for tax purposes was
increased by the merger of a subsidiary on May 26, 2007.

[n accordance with this tax assessment, the Company
received ¥5,172 million ($51,720 thousand) of tax refunds,
including interest thereon.

. Appropriation of Retained Earnings

The following appropriation of retained earnings at March
31, 2008 was approved by the Board of Directors on May
19, 2008:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars

Year-end cash dividends, ¥ 20($0.20) per share

¥3,340 $33,400
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Deloitte. %) Shimbashi & Co.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
AIFUL CORPORATION:

We have audited the accompanying non-consolidated balance sheets of AIFUL CORPORATION as
of March 31, 2008 and 2007, and the related non-consolidated statements of operations and
changes in equity for the years then ended, all expressed in Japanese yen, These
non-consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Qur
responsibility is to express an opinion on these non-consolidated financial statements based on
our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in Japan.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining,
on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that
our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the nen-consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of AIFUL CORPORATION as of March 31, 2008 and 2007,
and the results of its operations for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in Japan.

As discussed in Note 15.4. to the non-consolidated financial statements, the Company received a
notice of tax assessment from Osaka Regional Tax Bureau on May 30, 2008 stating that the
declared income for the year ended March 31, 2007 was reduced, and has received the full amount
of tax refund based on this notice.

Our audits also comprehended the translation of fapanese yen amounts into U.S, dollar amounts

and, in our opinien, such translation has been made in conformity with the basis stated in Note 3.
Such U.S. dollar amounts are presented solely for the convenience of readers outside Japan.

Ceote Tondl Toliwislan” Chibasde & Cs-.

DELOITTE TOUCHE TOHMATSU SHIMBASHI & CO.
Kyoto, Japan Osaka, Japan
june 24, 2008 June 24, 2008
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GROUP N ETWORK (As of March 31, 2008)

. . . . Consolidated
Companies / URL (Japanese only) Business Classification Equity (%)

| Wh g, B Unsecured loans /
AIFUL CORPORATION |7 seeured foans
) ) = - - Home equity loans /
http:/iwww aiful.co jp/ - Small business loans (High risk) / o
http:/fwww.ir-aiful.com/ Loan guarantees
Credit card shopping /
LIFE Co., Ltd. Shopping loans /
Unsecured loans / 95.9

http:ffiwww lifecard.co jp/
flash.html Loan guarantees /

Home equity loans

BUSINEXT CORPORATION Smal! business loans (Middle risk} / 60.0
http:/fwww businext.co.jp/ Home equity loans '
City’s Corporation Small business loans (High risk) / (00.0
hup:/fwww citys.co.jp/ Home equity loans '

. ) . . Consolidated
URL (Japanese only) Business Classification Equity (%)

Unsecured loans (High risk) /

TRYTC CORPORATION http:/flwww.365157.jp/ . 100.0
Home equity loans

Wide Corporation http:/flwww.wide-net.co jp/ Unsecured.loans (High risk) / 100.0
Home equity loans

TCM. Co. Ltd. htrp:fle-tcm.jpf Unsecured loans (High risk) 100.0

Passkey Co., Ltd. hup:ﬂwww.passkey.co. jp! Unsecured' loans (Migh risk) / 1000
index.him! Home equity loans

AsTry Loan Services Corporation  http:/fwww.astry-s.co.jp/ Debt coilection (Servicer) 86.0

New Frontier Partners Co., Ltd. htep:/fiwww.nf-partners.co.jp/ Venture capital 100.0

Marutoh KK http://'www.marutoh.com/ Real estate business 100.0
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Investor Information s of march 51, 2008)

Corporate Profile

Corporate Name

Address of Head Office

Date of Establishment
Common Stock

Number of Employees

Stock Listing

Tokyo Stock Exchange
Osaka Securities Exchange

Securities Code

AIFUL CORPORATION

381-1, Takasago-cho, Gojo-Agaru,

Karasuma-Dori, Shimogyo-ku,
Kyoto 600-8420, Japan

April 1967
¥108,324 million

Non-consolidated: 2,585
Consolidated: 5,138

The First Section
The First Section

8515

Shareholders Information

Number of Shares of Common Stock

Authorized 568,140,000 shares

Issued and Qutstanding 167,475.000 shares

Number of Shareholders 13,798

Independent Auditors Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Shimbashi & Co.

Transfer Agent and Registrar  The Sumitomo Trust & Banking Co., Lid.

For Further Information and Additional Copies
of This Annual Report, Please Contact

Investor Relations Section
Tokyo Office  8th Floor, Toho-Hibiya Bldg. (Hibiya Chanter), 1-2-2
Yurakucho, Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo 100-0006, Japan

Phone: +81-3-4503-6100  Facsimile: +81-3-4503-6109

E-mail: ir@aiful.co jp

Transition of a Stock Price and Volume of Trading (January 2005-March 2008)

Yen}

12,000

10,000

8,000 - i o R

6.000 ?+E+ S —
L
4.000 ?é--l-aT'E]."'rn
0 (Thousands of shares)
100.000
80,000
60,000
- 40,000
20,000
0

05

1 23 4567891011121

Investor Relations Website

o7

234567 8910N1M121 23 4567891011121 23

To improve its disclosure activities, AIFUL maintains an IR section within its website that
contains not only operating results and other statistics, but also the corporaie philoso-
phy, management strategy, data on the consumer finance market and business alliances,
and other types of information that go beyond financial statements.

http://lwww.ir-aiful.com/
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(Brief Description in English)

Corporate Governance Report dated April 1. 2008

Under the Listing Rules of the Tokyo Stock Exchange, Inc. (the “TSE”) and the similar
rules of the Osaka Securities Exchange (the “OSE”), AIFUL CORPORATION (the
“Company”) is required to file a Corporate Governance Report with the TSE and the
OSE. The Corporate Governance Report filed by the Company shall be made public by
the TSE and the OSE under the applicable rules and regulations of each stock exchange.

The information contained in the above-referenced Corporate Governance Report
includes, inter alia, information concerning the corporate governance of the Company,
such as its major shareholders, management, policies applicable to its stakeholders and
the frameworks of its corporate governance and internal control system.




Year-End Financial Statements

For the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008

AIFUL Corporation
Stock Code: 8513
Representative:
Inquiries:

Stock Listings: 1st Section of Tokyo and Osaka Stock Exchanges
URL hitp:/Aww.aiful.co.jp

Yoshitaka Fukuda, President and Chief Executive Ofticer
Katsuyuki Komiya, General Manager, Public Relations Department

TEL (03) 4503 - 6050

Scheduled date of convention of ordinary general meeting of shareholders: June 24, 2008
Scheduled date of commencement of dividend payments: June 25, 2008
Scheduled date of submission of financial report: June 23, 2008

I. Consolidated Business Results for the Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2008
{April 1, 2007 — March 31, 2008)

1. Consolidated Operating Results

Note: Amounts in financial statements and the supplementary data are rounded down,

NMEMBERSHIP

May 15, 2008

In millions of ven, except where noted; percentage figures show vear-on-vear growth.)

Operating Revenue Operating Income (loss) | Ordinary Income (loss) Net Income (loss)
ﬁi‘;i{]yfl‘“;gggd 405784 (18.7)% 31,725 - 32,065 - 27,434 -
ﬁ;’ﬁl-‘ﬁ’r;&lgfd 499,031 0.2% | (163,801 - (163,092) - (411,250) -

Diluted Net Net Income to Ordinary Income | Operating Income
N?rlgﬁzze&:;; ) Income per Shareholders’ to Total Assets to Operating

P Share (Yen) Equity Ratio (%) Ratio (%) Revenue Ratio (%)
ﬁi‘;i{ff{”;&‘ggd 190.77 186.86 96 15 78
E;Z‘i‘;—‘;f‘rzeong_fd (2,903.85) - (88.1) (6.5) (32.8)

Reference: Equity method investment gain or loss for:

2. Consolidated Financial Position

Fiscal year ended March 31. 2008: - million yen

Fiscal vear ended March 31, 2007: - million ven

(In millions of yen, except where noted)

Shareholders™ Equity

Net Assets per Share

Total Assets Net Assets Ratio (%) (Yen)
Fiscal year ended
March 31, 2008 2,041,128 324,520 156 1,909.46
Fiscal vear ended
March 31, 2007 2,214,559 257,144 11.4 1,777 44

Reterence:

Shareholders’ equity for:

Fiscal year ended March 31, 2008: 318,915 million yen

Fiscal year ended March 31, 2007: 251,724 million yen

3. Consolidated Cash Flows

(In millions of ven)

Cash Flow from Cash Flow from Cash Flow from Cash and Cash
. o . .- . . e Equivalents at the End
Operating Activities Investing Activities Financing Activities of the Year
i&i‘iii*‘;"f’ rzeélglse ‘ 247,524 16,420 (133,734) 257,310
Moreh 312007 250,558 13,498 271,390) 127,089




II. Dividend Information

Dividend per share ( Yen) Total Annuat Dividend Payout Drividend on
. Dividends Ratio Equity Ratio
(Record date) Interim Year-end Annual (Million Yen) | (Consohdated, %} | (Consolidated, %)
Fiscal year ended _
March 31, 2007 30.00 30.00 60.00 8,497 1.8
Fiscal year ended
March 31, 2008 20.00 20.00 40.00 6,171 21.0 22
Fiscal vear ending
March 31, 2009 20.00 20.00 40.00 211
(Forecast)

I1L. Full Year Consolidated Forecast (April 1, 2008 - March 31, 2009)

(In millions of ven, except where noted; Percentage figures show year-on-year growth for the
full vear and growth compared to the same period the previous year for the tirst half)

Net Income per

Net Income Share (Yen)

Operating Revenue | Operating Income | Ordmary Income

First half 164,567 (24.00% | 16237 (22.9% | 16,200 (24.7% | 16,518 (23.1)% 98.90
Full year 312,039 Q3.1 32,892 3.7% 33,000 2.9% 31,730 15.7% 189.98
IV. Other

(1) Transfers of leading subsidiaries during the fiscal vear (transfers of specified subsidiaries accompanied by changes in
the scope of consolidation): None

{2) Changes in accounting principles, procedures and methods of presentation relating to the preparation of consolidated
financial statements (Recorded under Changes to Significant Matters Forming the Basis for the Preparation of
Consolidated Financial Statements)
(a) Changes accompanying amendments to accounting standards: Yes
(b) Changes other than those in (a): None

Note: Please refer to Changes to Sigmficant Matters Forming the Basis for the Preparation of Consolidated Financial
Statements on page 12 for details.

(3) Number of shares issued and outstanding (Ordinary shares)
(a) Number of shares issued and outstanding at end of tiscal year {including treasury stock)

Year ended March 31, 2008; 167,475,000 shares
Year ended March 31, 2007: 142,035,000 shares

(b) Number of shares of treasury stock issued and outstanding at end of fiscal year

Year ended March 31, 2008: 455,717 shares
Year ended March 31, 2007: 412 835 shares

Note: Please refer to Per Share Intormation on page 14 for the number of shares used in the computation ol
consohidated net income per share.




(Reference) Highlights of Non-Consolidated Business Results

1. Non-Consolidated Business Results for the Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2008
{April 1. 2007 — March 31, 2008)

1. Non-Consolidated Operating Results

In millions of ven, excep! where noted; percentage figures show year-on-year growth.)

Operating Revenue

Operating income (loss)

Ordinary Income (loss)

Net Income (loss)

Fiscal year ended
March 31, 2008

Fiscal year ended
March 31, 2007

233,039 (22.5)%

300755 (124)%

16,957 -

(106,937 -

22,191 -

{101,225)

27,069 -

(359,399) -

Net Income (loss) per

Diluted Net Income per

March 31, 2007

Share {Yen) Share (Yen)
Fiscal year ended
March 31, 2008 188.24 184.37
Fiscal year ended
March 31, 2007 (2,537.73) -
2. Non-Consolidated Financial Position
{In millions of ven, excepl where noted)
Shareholders’ Equity Net Assets per Share
Total Assets Net Assets Ratio (%) (Yen)
Fiscal year ended
March 31, 2008 1,535,957 322,015 21.0 1,928.02
Fiscal year ended 1,660,826 255,005 15.4 1,800.60

11. Full Year Non-Consolidated Forecast (April 1, 2008 - March 31, 2009)
(In millions of yen, except where noted; Percentage figures show year-on-year growth for the
full yvear and growth compared to the same period the previous year for the first halt’)

Operating Revenue | Operating Income | Ordinary Income Net Income Ngthggzcz?:np;er
First half 93812 (25.)% | 11,336 08% | 13,948 6.0% 16,263 (11.)% 97.37
Full vear 176,676  (24.2)% | 20,898  23.2% | 26,000 17.2% | 30,931 14.3% 185.19

* Disclaimer concerning the proper use of business results torecasts

The cousolidated and non-consolidated forecasts above are based on information available as of the day of the announcement of this
matenal. Actual results may vary materially due to various unknown tuture factors.




Supplementary Data

These supplementary data are a condensed version of the Japanese supplementary data.
For details, please refer to the Japanese financial statements or the English version of Ansual Report 2008 that will be published later.

Consolidated Business Results

I. Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Consolidated Balance Sheets

{In mtllions of ven. %)

End of previous fiscal year

End of fiscal vear under review

Total assets

2,214,559 | 100.0

{As ot March 31, 2007) (As of March 31, 2008)
Category Ii;ge Amount %o Amount %
(Assets)
I Current assels
1. Cash and cash equivalents 127,166 228.422
2. Loans s 1.912,689 1,598,705
. *2,6
3. Installment receivables 8 : 174.923 148,490
4. Operational investment secunties 1,836 1,174
5 Cusomer linblites for 1929 129712
6. Other operating receivables 12.652 13,534
7. Marketable securities —_ 2,000
8. Purchased claims 12.753 12,847
9. Deterred tax assets 13,770 16,997
10. Short-term loans *4 30,099 30.087
11. Other *2 47459 44,613
Allowance for bad debts *10 (379.848) (297,383)
Total current assets 2,095,434 94.6 1.929.201 94,5
II. Fixed assets
1. Tangible fixed assets
(1) Buildings and structurcs *2 44, F18 38,921
Total accumnulated deprectation (28317 15,800 (22.746) 16,175
{2) Machinery and vehicles *2 267 265
Total accumulated depreciation (130) 137 (144) 120
(3) Equipment and fixtures 24,878 21.112
Total accumulated depreciation (13,891) 10,987 (12,278) 8.833
(4} Land *2 14,463 14,363
(5} Construction in process account 1.016 2,920
Total tangible fixed assets 42,405 1.9 42413 2.1
2. Intangible fixed assets
(1) Software 21,337 22,792
(2) Good will 3,144 2288
(3) Other 386 318
Total intangible fixed assets 24,868 1.2 25400 1.3
3. Investment and other fixed assets
(1) Investment securities *5 24,129 16,823
(2) Claims in bankruptcy *9 38,988 46,349
(3) Lease deposits and guarantees 11,492 7,639
(4) Deterred tax assets 334 2,151
(5) Other 3,999 3,784
Allowance for bad debts (27.725) {33.031)
Total investment and other fixed assets 51,219 23 43.718 2.1
Total fixed assets 118.493 54 111,532 5.5
III. Deferred assets
Bond issuing expenses 631 393
Total deferred assets 631 0.0 393 0.0

2,041,128 | 100.0




(In millicns of yen. 20)

End of previous fiscal year

(As of March 31. 2007)

End of fiscal year under review
{As of March 31, 2008)

Category T\g? Amount %o Amount %%
(Liabilittes)
I. Current hiabilities
I. Notes & accounts pavable - trade 24,621 24,892
2. Acceptances and guarantecs 141,929 126,712
3. Short-term debts *2 91,370 158,930
4. Current portion of bonds 72,000 55,000
5. Current portion of long-term debts *2 332241 303818
6. Commercial paper - 5,000
7. Income taxes payable 7.991 2,204
8. Reserve for accrued bonuses 3,783 3,658
9. Re:servc l'or_loss_;cs on freatment of 630 _
soil contamination .
10. Business reorganization reserve 11316 193
11. Gains on deferred installments *7 8.453 4,203
12. Lease assets impairment account 134 —
13. Other 48916 44,217
Total current liabilities 743,389 [ 336 731,830 | 359
1. Long-term liabilities
1. Bonds 424100 369.100
2. Bonds with warrants — 70,000
3. Longterm debts *2 610.551 392,240
4. Deferred tax liabilities 525 7
5. Reserve {or losses on interest 167,153 143,750
repayments
6 lowmes iy
7. Interest swaps 8.193 6417
8. Other 2.163 2.198
Total long-term liabilities 1,214,025 54 8 984,777 | 482
Total liabilities 1,957.414 88.4 1,716,607 | 84.1
(Net Assets)
I.  Shareholders’ equity
1. Common stock 83317 37 108,324 53
2. Capital surplus *1 104.125 47 129.133 63
3. Retained camings 66.465 30 86.819 43
4. Treasury stock (2.968) | (0.1 3,110y | (0.2)
Total shareholders™ equity 250940 [ 113 321167 | 157
LI Evaluation and toreign currency
translation adjustments
| Difteees s clvion ot
2. Gain (loss) on deferred hedge G752y | 03 (4.332) | (0.2)
curreney tanstation adsimens 00 @250 | @D
111. Minority interests 5419 0.3 5.604 03
Total net assets 257.144 11.6 324520 | 159
Total net assets and liabilities 2,214,559 [ 100.0 2,041,128 | 100.0




2. Consolidated Statements of Income
(In millions of ven. %6

Previous fiscal year Fiscal year under review
(Apr. 1, 2006 to Mar. 31, 2007) (Apr. 1. 2007 10 Mar. 31, 2008)
Category T;I\Io;e Amount %o Amount %
1. Operating revenue

1. Interest on loans to customers 448,662 1 899 356435 | 879
2. Credit card revenue 12,754 26 14,948 3.7
3. Per-item credit revenue 12,998 26 6,912 1.7
4. Credit guarantee revenue 9.186 1.8 8,547 2.1
5. Financial revenue - other 229 0.0 561 0.1
6. Operating revenue - other

4] iz:::;:sfmm operational investment 527 515

(2) Collection of purchased claims 3.725 6,633

(3) Bad debt write-otf recovery 4,022 4,394

(4) Other 6,924 15,200 31 6.834 18,378 45

Total operating revenue 499,031 | 100. 405,784 | 100.0

II. Operating expenses

1. Financial expenses

(1) Interest expenses 24,980 22,688

(2) Interest on bonds 7,916 7957

(3) Other 3.718 36,615 7.3 2,646 33,292 8.2
2. Cost of sales

) ;ic;sl:nptii'::les of operational investment 163 207

(2) Cost of purchased claims 2,666 2,829 0.6 5,061 5,269 13
3. Operating expenses - other

(1) Advertising expenses 15,073 7429

(2) Commissions 25,584 22,901

(3) Loan losses 59,745 191

(4) Transfer to allowance for bad debts 280,618 155,652

(5) Interest repayments 15,239 —_

(6) lr;;];:;;r:?sreserve for losses on interest 97.835 49,818

(7) Salaries for employees 43,651 32,811

(8) Transfer to reserve for accrued bonuses 3,782 3.658

)] f;p[:g;zzibr retirement benetits for 1371 1168

(10 E:l:;tirf_;f;]rl:;:gce for retirement 123 120

(11) Goodwill write-offs 1.734 855

(12) Other 78.626 623,387 | 1249 60,887 335,497 827

Total operating expenses 662.832 | 1328 374,058 | 922

Operating income (loss) (163,801) | (32.8) 31,725 78




(In millions of ven, %

Previous fiscal year Fiscal year under review
(Apr. 1. 2006 to Mar. 31. 2007) (Apr. 1, 2007 1o Mar, 31, 2008)
Catcgér_v 1;0(;.0 Amount %o Amount %
III. Non-operating incotme
1. Dividends received 217 368
2. Dividends on insurance 292 161
3. Other 554 1.064 0.2 384 914 0.2
IV. Non-operating expenses
1. Loss on investment in anonymous association| *1 213 90
2. Amortization of stock issuance expenses — 286
3. Other 141 334 0.1 197 574 0.1
Ordinary income (loss) (163,092) | (32.7) 32,065 79
V. Extraordinary income
I. Gain on sale of fixed assets *2 — 872
2. Gain on sale of investment secuntics 3.286 -
3. Other 458 3,744 0.8 86 939 02
VI. Extraordinary losses
1. Loss on disposal of fixed assets *3 —_ 735
2. Impairment losses *4 6.804 -
3. Goodwill write-oft’s *5 4,393 —
4. Transter to allowange for bad debts 107,012 —-—
5 'r]:;i:;:;::;resen ¢ for losses con interest 69312 _
6. Trf.msfc:r to reserve for losses on treatment of 630 -
soil contamination
7. Business reorganization losses 7.211 -
8. Transfer to business reorganization reserve 11,316 —
9. Dissolution fees for cancellation of contract 2210 521
10. Loss on closure of unstaffed branches — 251
11. Other 4,023 212,914 427 618 2.126 0.5
Net income (loss) before taxes (372,262) | (74.6) 30.898 7.6
Corporate tax, local and enterprise taxes 15.795 3073
Prior-year corporate tax. local and enterprises _ 3451
taxes ’
Adjustment on corporate tax, etc. 24,733 40.529 8.1 (3.251) 3,274 08
Gain (loss) on minonity interests {1,540) (0.3) 189 0.0
Net income (loss) (411.250) | (82.4) 27434 6.8




3.

Previous hscal year (Apr. 1, 2006 to Mar. 31, 2007)

Consolidated Statements of Change in Shareholders’ Equity

(In millions of yen)

Shareholders’ equity
Common stock| Capital surplus [Retained camings|Treasury stock[Total shareholders™ equity

Balance at March 31, 2006 83,317 104,125 486,214 (2,564) 670,692
Change during {iscal vear

Distribution of retained eamings* (4,248) (4,248)

Distribution of retained earnings (4,248) (4,248)

Net loss (411.250) (411,250)

Acquisition of treasury stock - 3 &)

Disposal of treasury stock (O 0 0

Net change in items other than

shareholders’ equity during fiscal year
Total change dunng fiscal year - - (419,748) ) (419.751)
Balance at March 31, 2007 83.317 104,125 66,465 (2,968) 250,940

{In millions of ven)

Evaluation and foreign currency translation adjustments
Differences in Total evaluati d o
evaluation of Gain (loss) on otal evaluation and ninority interests| Total net assets
foreign currency
other marketable | deferred hedge . Lo
o translation adjustments
securities
Balance at March 31, 2006 11,001 - 11,001 6,964 688,658
Change during fiscal vear
Distribution of retained eamings™® - (4,248)
Distribution of retained eamings (4,248)
Net loss - (411,250
Acquisition of treasury stock - 3)
Disposal of treasury stock - 0
Net change in items other than
shareholders’ equity dunng fiscal (4,465) (5,752) (10,217 (1,549) (11,762)
year
Total change during fiscal year (4,465) (5,752) (10,217) (1,544) (431,514)
Balance at March 31, 2007 6,536 (5,752) 784 5,419 257,144

Note: Distribution of retained eamings approved by the ordinary general meeting of sharcholders in June 2006,




Fiscal year under review (Apr. |, 2007 to Mar. 31, 2008)

(In millions of ven)

Shareholders’ equity
Common stock| Capital surplus [Retained eamings|Treasury stock|Total shareholders” equity
Balance at March 31. 2007 83,317 104,125 66,465 (2,968) 250,940
Change during fiscal vear
f;iﬁ:;;f of new stock for capital 25,007 25.007 50.015
Distribution of retained eamings (4,248) (4,248)
Distribution of retained earnings (2.831) (2.831)
Net income 27434 27434
Acquisition of treasury stock (142) (142)
Disposal of treasury stock (0) 0 0
Net change in items other than
shareholders” equity during fiscal vear
Total change during fiscal year 25,007 25,007 20,354 (142) 70,226
Balance at March 31, 2008 108.324 129,133 86.819 (3,110) 321.167

(In millions of ven)

Evaluation and foreign currency translation adjustments
Differences in Total evaluati b
evaluation of Gain (loss) on ':;‘a evalualion and - Ininority interests; Total net assels
other marketable | deterred hedge orelgn eurrency
. translation adjustments
securnlies
Balance at March 31. 2007 6.536 (5.752) 784 5419 257,144
Change duning fiscal year
!ssuancc of new stock for capital _ 50,015
meredse
Distribution of retained earnings _— (4.248)
Distrtbution of retained camings —_ (2.831)
Net income — 27434
Acquisttion of treasury stock — (142)
Disposal of treasury stock —_ 0
Net change in items other than
shareholders’ equity during (4.455) 1.420 (3,035) 184 (2.851)
fiscal year
Total change durning fiscal year (4.455) 1,420 (3.03%) 184 67,375
Balance at March 31, 2008 2.030 (4.332) (2,251) 5.604 324,520




4. Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(In millions of ven)

Previous fiscal vear

(Apr. 1, 2006 to Mar. 31, 2007)

Fiscal year under review

(Apr. 1,2007 to Mar. 31, 2008)

Category I;Of Amount Amount
[.  Cash tlow from operating activities

Net income (loss) before taxes (372,262) 30,898
Depreciation expenses 13,122 11,072
Impairment losses 6,804 —
Goodwill write-ofls 6.128 853
Increase (decrease) in allowance tor bad debts 235,857 (77.158)
i:;;t;?;lzn(t:ecrease) in reserve for losses on interest 146,078 (23,402)
Non-operating interest on loans and cash dividends (242) (389)
Loss (gain) on sale of fixed assets — {795)
Loss on disposal of fixed assets 1.964 735
Loss (gain) on sale of investment secunties (3,241) -
Decrease (increase) in loans to customers 211.327 313983
Decrease (increase) in installment receivables 34,661 26,431
g;;:lr;:;s:; (increase) in operational investment (12) 506
Decrease (increase) in other operating receivables (2,132 (882)
Decrease (increase) in purchased claims (1.821) (93)
Decrease (increase) in claims in bankruptey (5.957) {7.361)
Decrease (increase) in other current assets 5,114 3,032
Increase (decrease) in other current liabilities 5,620 (19.961)
Other 2,148 1,886

Subtotal 283,160 259,448
Non-operating interest on loans and cash dividends 242 389
Payments for corporate and other taxes (32,843) (12,313%)
Cash flow from operating activilies 250.558 247,524

II.  Cash flow from investing activities

Funds used for purchase of tangible fixed assets (3,043) (5.474)
Gain on sale of tangible fixed assets 457 —_
Funds used for purchase of intangible fixed assets (8,224) (8.715)
Funds used for purchase of invesiment securities (1.676) (1.968)
Funds provided by sales of investment securities 5,087 934
Decrease (increase) in short-term receivables 20,028 29987
Other 870 1.658
Cash flow from investing activitics 13.498 16,420




(In millions of ven)

Previous fiscal year

(Apr. 1. 2006 to Mar. 31, 2007)

Fiscal year under review

(Apr. 1, 2007 to Mar. 31, 2008)

Category . Ii;::b Amount Amount

111.  Cash flow trom financing activities
Proceeds trom short-term debts 746,500 586.260
Repavment of shon-term debts (768.330) (518,700}
Increase (decrease) in commercial paper (25.000) 5.000
Proceeds trom long-term debts 374710 104,328
Repayments of long-term debts (575.964) (351.062)
Proceeds from issuance of bonds 67.194 69,898
Redemption of bonds (82.000) (72.000)
Proceeds trom issuance of common stock — 49.763
Pavment for acquisition of treasury stock (3 (142)
Proceeds from disposal of treasury stock 0 0
Cash dividends paid (8.497) (7.080)
Cash tlow from financing activitics (271.390) (133,734)

IV.  Eftect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash 45 10
equivalents

V. Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents {7.287) 130,221

VI E:;ia:;rnzl;c;ls}:\ea;ec:;ash equivalents at the 134.376 127.089

VIII. Balance of cash and cash equivalents at the end of *| 127.089 257.310

the vear
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5. Significant Accounting Policies Relating to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Item Previous fiscal year Fiscal year under review
(Apr. 1. 2006 to Mar. 31. 2007) {Apr. 1.2007 to Mar. 31, 2008)
1.  Accounting principles
used for standard
accounting treatment
(1) Depreciation methods for i) Tangible fixed assets i) Tangible fixed assets

important depreciable
assets

Diminishing balance depreciation method
Major useful lives are as follows:
Buildings and structures

2-62 vears

Machinery and vehicles

2-17 vears

Equipment and fixtures

2-20 vears

Diminishing balance depreciation method
Straight line depreciation method for
buildings (excluding attached facilities) that
consolidated subsidiaries acquired on or
after Apnl 1, 1998
Major usetul lives are as follows:
Buitdings and structures
2-62 years
Machinery and vehicles
2-17 years
Equipment and fixtures
2-20 vears
(Changes to accounting policies)
In conjunction with the revision of Japan’s
Corporation Tax Law. AIFUL and its
consolidated subsidiaries have changed the
method of depreciation for tangible fixed assets
(excludes buildings at AIFUL) acquired on or
after April 1, 2007 to the method based on the
Corporation Tax Law after its revision. starting in
the fiscal yvear under review,

As a result, operating income,
ordinary income. and net income belore income
taxes have each declined by 68 million ven,
(Supplementary Data)

In conjunction with the revision of the
Corporation Tax Law, AIFUL and its
consolidated subsidianies have accounted tor
assets (excludes buildings at AIFUL) acquired on
or before March 31, 2007 through the uniform
depreciation over 5 years of the difference
between an amount equivalent to 5% of the
acquisition price and the memorandum price
from the fiscal vear tollowing the fiscal vear
when 5% of the acquisition price is reached.
through the adoption of a depreciation method
based on the Corporation Tax Law before its
revision,

As a result. operating income.
ordinary income. and net income betore income
taxes have each declined by 30 million ven.

12




Item

Previous fiscal year
(Apr. 1. 2006 to Mar. 31, 2007)

Fiscal vear under review
(Apr. 1. 2007 to Mar. 31. 2008)

(2} Scope of funds in the
consolidated statements of
cash flows

Funds include cash on hand, deposits on demand,
and short-term, highly liquid investments with
maturities of three months or less at the date of
acquisition that are readily convertible to cash
and cash eguivalents and are subject to only
mnsignificant risk of changes in value.

{Change to the scope of funds)

In the past. receivables repurchase agreement
transactions, as financial assets (short-term
loans). were not included in the scope of tunds in
the consolidated statement of cash flows. To
show actual conditions with regard 1o the
application of short term excess funds more
accurately, from this fiscal vear forward they will
be mcluded under cash equivalents.

As a result of these changes, cash tlow
from mvesting activities, increase in cash and
cash equivalents. and balance of cash and cash
equivalents at the end of the year increased by
¥29 975 mitlion.

Note: With the exceplion of the above-described depreciation methods for important depreciable assets and the change 1o the scope of
funds in the consolidated statement of cash flows, there have been no significant changes since those histed in the most recent
financial report (submitted June 28, 2007). Accordingly, no mention is made of them.

6. Changes to Significant Matters Forming the Basis for the Preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements

Previous fiscal yvear
(Apr. 1, 2006 1o Mar. 31. 2007)

Fiscal year under review
(Apr. 1. 2007 10 Mar. 31, 2008)

Balance Sheets)

review.

amendment.

review,

(Accounting Standards for Presentation of Net Assets in the

The Company adopted Accounting Standards for Presentation of
Net Assets in the Balance Sheet (ASBJ Statement No. 5, December
9, 2005) and Implementation Guidance on Accounting Standards
for Presentation of Net Assets in the Balance Sheet (ASBJ
Guidance No. 8. December 9, 2005) starting in the fiscal vear unden

The amount of sharcholders” equity under former
accounting standards was 257,477 million ven.

With the amendment of the regulations for consolidated
financial statements, the Company has presented net assets in the
consolidated balance sheets for the fiscal vear under review on the
basis of the regulations for consolidated tinancial statements after

(Accounting Standards for Business Combinations, etc.)

The Company adopted Accounting Standard for Business
Combinations (Business Accounting Council, October 31. 2003)
and Accounting Standard tor Business Separations (ASBJ
Statement No. 7. December 27, 2005) as well as Tmplementation
Guidance on Accounting Standard for Business Combinations and
Accounting Standard for Business Separations (ASBJ Guidance
No. 10. December 27, 2005) starting in the fiscal year under




Per Share Information

Previous fiscal year
(Apr. 1, 2006 to Mar. 31, 2007)

Fiscal vear under review
(Apr. 1, 2007 to Mar. 31. 2008)

1.777.44 ven
2,903.85 ven

Net assets per share
Net {oss per share

Diluted net income per share omitted because the Company
recorded a net loss per share and because there were no latent
shares with a dilutive effect.

Net assets per share 1,909.46 ven
Net income per share 190.77 ven
Diluted net income per share 186.86 ven

Note 1: Basis for caleulation of net assets per share is as follows.

Previous fiscal vear
(Apr. I, 2006 to Mar. 31, 2007)

Fiscal vear under review
(Apr. 1, 2007 to Mar. 31. 2008}

Total net assets

257,144 million ven

324,520 million yen

Amount deducted from total net assets

5419 million yen

5.604 million yen

(Of which minority interests)

(5.419 million ven)

(5.604 million yen)

Net assets related to common stock at

251,724 million ven

318,915 million wen

end of fiscal vear

Number of shares of common stock at
the end of the fiscal year used in the
calculation of net assets per share

141,622,165 shares

167,019,283 shares

Note 2: Basis for calculation of net income (loss) per share and diluted net income per share 1s as follows,

Item

Previous fiscal year
(Apr. 1. 2006 to Mar. 31, 2007)

Fiscal vear under review
{Apr. 1, 2007 to Mar. 31. 2008)

Net income (loss) per share

Net income (loss)

(411,250 miltion yen)

27.434 million ven

Amount not attributable to common stock sharcholders

Net income (loss) related to cammon stock

(411.250 million yen}

27.434 million ven

Average number of shares ot common stock during the period 141,622 497 shares 143,806,320 shares
Diluted net income per share

Adjusted net income — —
Increase in number of common stock — 3,015,748 shares
(of which warrants) (—) (3,015,748 shares)

Qutline of stock not included in diluted net income per share
due to lack of dilutive effect

New share subscription-type
stock options (No. of shares:
325.800) decided upon at the
27th ordinary general meeting
of shareholders {June 25, 2004)

New share subscription-type
stock options (No. of shares:
351,600} dectded upon at the
28th ordinary general meeting
of shareholders (June 24, 2005)

New share subscriplion-type
stock options (No. of shares:
252,000) decided upon at the
27th ordinary general meeting
of shareholders (June 25. 2004)
New share subscription-type
stock options (No. of shares:
276,600} decided wpon at the
28th ordinary general meeting
of shareholders (June 24, 2005)

Omissions from Disclosure

Notes pertaining to lease transactions, transactions with related parties. marketable securities, denivative transactions, retirement benefits.
stack options, etc., and business combinations have been omitted because there is not considered 1o be a strong necessity for disclosure in

these brief {inancial statements.
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I1. Consolidated Results of Operations

|.  Operating Revenue

(In millions of ven. %6

Period Previous fiscal year Fiscal year under review

(Apr. 1. 2006 to Mar. 3. 2007) (Apr. 1, 2007 1o Mar. 31, 2008)
ltem Amount %% Amount %
Interest on loans to customers 448.662 899 356,435 R7.9
Unsecured loans 374,839 75.1 300,886 74.2
Secured loans 43.575 8.7 31,958 7.9
Small business loans 30,247 6.1 23,590 5.8
Credit card revenue 12,754 26 14,948 3.7
Per-item credit revenue 12.998 26 6912 1.7
Credit guarantee revenue 9186 1.8 8,547 2.1
Other financial revenue 229 0.0 561 0.1
Other operating revenue 15.200 3.1 18,378 45
Collection of purchased claims 3.725 0.8 6,633 1.6
Revenue from operational investment securities 527 0.1 515 0.1
Other 10.947 2.2 11.229 2.8
Total 499,031 130.0 405.784 100.0

Note: “Other” included in cther operating revenue includes bad debt write-off recovery and card membership fees.

2. Other Operating Indicators

Period

End of previous fiscal year

End of fiscal vear under review

Item (As of Mar. 31, 2007) (As of Mar. 31, 2008)
Total amount of loans outstanding (millions of yen) 1,985.263 1,665,682
Unsecured loans 1,537,904 1,278,001
Secured loans 291,716 246,519
Small business foans 155.642 141,161
Number of customer accounts 3.547,633 3,067,440
Unsecured loans 3.366.873 2911.227
Secured loans 87.384 73,039
Small business loans 93.376 83,174
Number of branches 2,307 1,205
Statted branches 364 223
Unstaffed branches 1,943 982
Number of automatic loan-contracting machines 1.872 1.096
Number of loan application processing machines 304 38
Number of ATMs 167.238 151,392
Company-owned 1.998 1,174
Partner-owned 165.240 150.218
Number of employees 6,477 5.138
Bad debt write-off (millions of yen) 205.980 227727
Allowance for bad debts (millions of yen) 407.573 330414
Net income (loss) per share (ven) (2.903.85) 190.77
Net assets per share (ven) 1,777.44 1.909.46

Notes: I. Total amount of loans outstanding and the number of customer accounts do not include loans and cuslomer accounts related
to claims in bankruptey. Furthermore, off-balance sheet operating loans from the securitization of receivables (72,573 million
ven at the end of the previous fiscal vear and 66,976 million yen at the end of the fiscal year under review) have been

mcluded.

2. Bad debt wnite-off does not include losses on claims in bankruptey, which came to 5.505 million yen in the previous fiscal
year, and 5,359 million ven in the fiscal year under review.

3. The allowance for bad debts includes the expected amount of interest repavments estimated to have priority application to
loans outstanding (195.545 million yen at the end of the previous fiscal year and 108,973 million ven at the end of the fiscal

year under review).




Non-Consolidated Business Results

I. Non-Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Non-Consolidated Balance Sheets

(In millions of ven. %5)

End of previous fiscal year
{As of March 31, 2007)

End of fiscal year under review
(As of March 31, 2008)

Category I‘s}l;:e Amount % Amount %
(Assets)
1. Current assets
1. Cash and cash equivalents 75,255 171.563
2. Loans e 1,298,611 1,058.879
3. Customers’ liabilities for 58.914 56,224
acceptances and guarantees
4. Marketable secunties —_ 2.000
5. Pre-paid expenses 2.577 1,603
6. Deferred tax assets 9,333 11,362
7. Accrued income 11.063 8,316
8. Shor-term loans *3 30,099 30,087
9. Other *] 14,824 13,961
Allowance tor bad debts *5 (262.185) (201,897)
Total current asscts 1,238,494 746 1,152,101 75.0
II. Fixed assets
1. Tangible fixed assets
(1) Buildings 21,044 17,037
Total accumulated depreciation (11,792) 9,251 (8,607) 8,430
(2) Structures 3.721 2,409
Total accumulated depreciation (2.928) 792 (1,785) 623
(3) Machinery 161 161
Total accumulated depreciation (74) 86 (86) 74
(4) Equipment and fixtures 22,066 19.224
Total accumulated depreciation (11.901) 10,165 (11.067) 8,156
(5) Land 6,762 6.762
(6) Construction in process account 759 2.917
Total tangible fixed assets 27.818 1.7 26,963 1.8
2. Intangible fixed assets
(1) Software 11.992 13.454
{2) Other 224 179
Total intangible fixed assets 12.217 0.7 13,633 0.9
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(In millions of ven, %)

End of previous fiscal year End of tiscal year under review
(As of March 31, 2007) (As of March 31, 2008}
Category . ]:f(:.c Amount %% Amount %%
3. Investment and other fixed assets
(1) Investment sccuritics 18,879 11,046
{2) Stock in athliated companies 110,144 120,731
3 Otht?r markctable.securitics of 448 425
affiliated companies
(4) Claims in bankruptcy *4 33517 39,998
(5 Long-lem loans to afiiliated 277,502 228291
companies
(6) Long-term prepaid expenses 1,544 1,037
(7) Lease deposits and gudrantees 8468 5.945
(8) Deferred 1ax assets — 1,792
(9) Other 922 1,092
Allowance for bad debts *6 (69,765) (67,496)
:‘;);:llsin vestmen! and other fixed 381.664 | 23.0 342,864 223
Total fixed assets 421,700 | 254 383462 250
II1. Deferred assets
Bond issuing expenses 631 393
Total deferred assets 631 0.0 393 0.0
Total assets 1,660,826 | 100.0 1,535,957 | 100.0




{In millions of ven, %)

End of previous fiscal year
(As of March 31, 2007)

End of fiscal year under review

{As of March 31, 2008)

Category NN‘::: Amount % Amount %
(Liabilities)
1. Current libilities
1. Acceptances and guaraniees 58914 56,224
2. Shont-term debis 16,000 90,000
3. Current portion of bonds 72,000 45.000
4 Current portion of long-term debts *1 228,600 195,207
5. Trade accounts payable 11,523 5.538
6. Accrued expenses payable 3.881 3.798
7. Income taxes payable 37 236
8. Reserve for accrued bonuses 2.042 1,921
9. Reserve for losses on treatment of
soil contamination 630 -
10. Business reorganization reserve 4,381 147
11. Other 517 662
Total current liabilities 398,529 24.0 398736 | 259
II. Long-term liabilities
1. Bonds 414,100 369,100
2. Bonds with warrants — 70,000
3. Long term debts *] 460,259 268,984
4. Deferred tax liabilitics 425 -
5. i;e;:ni:;?sr losses on interest 122,956 99 467
6 ety frmen
Interest swaps 8,193 6,417
Other 101 267
Total long-term liabilities 1,007,292 | 606 815,205 | 531
Total liabilities 1,405,821 84.6 1.213,942 79.0
(Net Assets)
I.  Sharcholders’ equity
1. Common stock 83,317 50 108,324 7.0
2. Capital surplus
(1) Capital reserves 90,225 115,232
Total capital surplus 90,225 54 115,232 7.5
3. Retained eamings
(1) Eamed surplus reserves 1,566 1.566
{2) Other retained eamings
General reserve 437,296 437,296
Retained camings carried (355.054) (335.065)
Total retained eamings 83,807 LN | 103.796 6.8
4. Treasury stock (2,968 | (0.1) (3,110) | (0.2)
Total shareholders” equity 254,38) 154 3242431 21.1
II. Evaluation and foreign currency
translation adjustments
- Difaces o cvlionof b 20| o
2. Gain (loss) on deferred hedge (5.752) | (04) 4332 02
Toul it i aam | o
Total net assets 255,005 154 322,015 210
Total net assets and liabilities 1,660,826 { 100.0 1,535,957 | 1000
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2. Non-Consolidated Statements of Income

(In millions of ven. %)

Previous fiscal year

(Apr. 1, 2006 to Mar. 31, 2007)

Fiscal year under review
(Apr. 1, 2007 to Mar. 31, 2008)

Category I;{ID: Amount %% Amount %
I. Operating revenue

1. Interest on loans to customers 292,668 97.3 224,706 96.4
2. Financial revenue - other 179 0.1 400 0.2
3. Operating revenue - other

(1) Credit guarantee revenue 5,052 4,738

(2) Bad debt write-off recovery 1,840 2,552

(3) Other 1,014 7907 | 2.6 641 7932 34

Total operating revenue 300,755 | 100.0 233,039 [ 100.0

II. Operating expenses

1. Financtal expenses

(1) Interest expenses 18,257 15420

(2) Interest on bonds 7,772 7,813

(3) Other 2,328 28,858 9.6 2,121 25,355 10.9
2. Operaling expenses - other

(1) Advertising expenses 5,733 4,142

(2) Commissions 11,449 8,522

(3) Loan losses 48,469 190

{4) Transfer to allowance for bad debts 169,616 102,881

(5) Interest repayments 11,195 —

®) lr:;;:;;)sreservc for losses on interest 65,886 26,935

(7) Director’s salaries and remuneration 354 326

(8) Salaries for employees 19,037 14.750

(%) Bonus for employees 2458 1.971

(10) Transfer to reserve for accrued bonuses 2,042 1,921

(an Trans_fers{ to alllowance for retirement P 33

benelits for directors

{12) Welfare expenses 3,905 3,549

(13) Er.‘r{l[::g;‘:::br retirement benefits for 742 650

(14) Rent fees 3910 2,359

(15) Land rent 7.701 5,058

(16) Repairs 4,139 3.540

(17) Depreciation expenses 8,641 6,547

(18) Other 13.461 378,834 | 126.0 7.295 190,726 81.8

Total operating expenses 407,693 | 1356 216,081 [ 927

Operating income (loss) (106,937) | (35.6) 16,957 7.3
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(In millions of ven, %)

Previous fiscal year Fiscal year under review
(Apr. 1, 2006 to Mar. 31, 2007) (Apr. 1, 2007 to Mar. 31, 2008)
Category I;I\Io(:.c Amount %a Amount %%
III. Non-operaling income
1. Interest on loans *] 4,495 4,380
2. Miscellaneous 1,506 6,002 2.0 1,354 5,734 24
I'V. Non-operating expenses
1. Loss on investment in anonymous ashsociation *2 209 90
2. Transfer to allowance for bad debts - 59
3. Amortization of stock issuance expenses - 251
4. Miscellaneous 80 289 0.1 98 500 0.2
Ordinary income (loss) (101,225) | (33.7) 22,191 9.5
V. Extraordinary income
1. Gain on sale of fixed assets *3 — 831
2. Gain on sale of investment securities 2,940 -
3. Allowance tor bad debts from previous year — 7,100
3. Other 1 2,941 1.0 24 7.955 34
V1. Extraordinary losses
1. Loss on disposal of fixed assets *4 — 602
Impairment losses *5 3,128 —
i_;:spc;:i::luauon of stock in affiliated 21,700 _
4. Loss on_liquidalion of shares in absorbed 2,549 _
companies
5. Transfer to allowance for bad debts 145,397 —
6. lrs:j:;t;rcsene for losses on interest $7.070 _
7. Tr.ansfer to reserve for losses on treatment of 630 .
soil contamination
Business reorganization losses 4416 172
9. Transfer to business reorganization reserve 4.381 —
10, Dissolution fees for cancellation of contract 1.546 ‘ 521
1. Other 2.059 242 879 80.7 176 1472 0.6
Net income (loss) before taxes (341.163) | (113.4) 28.674 123
Corporate tax. local and enterprise taxes 7.563 191
Prior-year corporate tax. local and enterprise _ 3.442
taxes o
Adjustment on corporate tax, etc. 10,672 18,235 6.1 (2,029) 1,604 0.7
Net income {loss) (359.399) [ (119.5) 27.069 11.6
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3. Non-Consolidated Statements of Change in Shareholders™ Equity

Previous fiscal year (Apr. 1, 2006 to Mar. 31, 2007)

(In millions of yen

Shareholders’ equity

Common stock

Capital surplus

Capital reserves | Total capital surplus
Balance at March 31, 2006 83,317 90,225 90,225
Change during fiscal year
Total change during fiscal year - - -
Balance at March 31, 2007 83,317 90,225 90,225

(In millions of ven)

Shareholders” equity

Retained eamings

- - Total
Eamed surplus Other retained e-ammgs - Total retained Treastll\.ry shareholders’

reserves General reserve Relalp ed camungs eamings stoc equity

carried forward
Balance at March 31, 2006 1,566 395,496 54,641 451,704 (2,964 622,281
Change during fiscal year

Distribution of retained earnings* (4,248) (4,248) (4,248)
Distribution of retained eamings {4,248) {3,248) (4,248)
Addition to general reserve®* 41,800 (41,800} - -
Net loss (359,399) (359,399) {359,399)
Acquisition of treasury stock - {3) (3)
Disposal of treasury stock )] (0) ] 0
Total change during fisca year - 41,800 (409,696) (367,896) 3) (367,899)
Balance at March 31, 2007 1,566 437,29 (355.054) 83,807 (2,968} 254,381

(In millions of ven)

Evaluation and foreign currency translation adjustments

Ditferences in evaluation of| Gain (loss)on | Total evaluation and foreign | Total net assets
other marketable securities | deferred hedge [currency translation adjustments
Balance at March 31, 2006 10,636 - 10,636 632,917
Change during fiscal vear
Distnbution of retained earings™* - (4,248)
Distribution of refained eamings - (4,248)
Addition to general reserve* - -
Net loss - (359,399)
Acquisition of treasury stock - 3)
Disposal of treasury stock - 0
N e s o
Total change during fiscal year (4,260) (5,752) (10,012) (377.912)
Balance at March 31, 2007 6,376 (5,752) 623 255,005

Note*: Distnibution of retained eamings approved by the ordinary general mecting of shareholders in June 2006,
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Fiscal vear under review (Apr. 1, 2007 1o Mar. 31, 2008)
{In millions of yen)
Sharcholders’ equity

Capital surplus

Common stock - -
Capital reserves |Tota) capital surplus

Balance at March 31, 2007 83,317 90,225 90,225
Change during fiscal year

[ssuance of new stock for capital

. 25,007 25,007 25,007
increase
Total change during fiscal vear 25,007 25,007 25,007
Balance at March 31, 2008 108,324 115,232 115,232

(In millicns of yen)

Shareholders’ equity

Retained eamings

- ; Total

Other retained eamings . Treasury .

Eamed surplus - - Total retained stock shareholders
reserves General reserve Retained eamings eamings equity

catried forward
Balance at March 31. 2007 1,566 437,296 (355,054) £3,807 (2,968) 254,381

Change during fiscal vear -

Issuance of new stock tor capital

increase - 30,015
Distribution of retained eamings (4,248) (4,248) (4,248)
Distribution of retained camings (2,831) (2,831) (2.831)
Net income 27,069 27,069 27,069
Acquisition of treasury stock — (142) (142)
Disposal of treasury stock @ {0) ¢ 0
Total change during fiscal year - - 19,989 19,989 (142) 69,862
Balance at March 31, 2008 1,566 437,296 (335,065) 103,796 {3,110} 324,243

(In millions of ven

Evaluation and foreign currency translation adjustments

Differences in evaluation of] Gain (lossyen | Total evaluation and foreign | Total net assets

other marketable securities | deterred hedge |currency translation adjustments
Balance at March 31, 2007 6,376 {5,752) 623 235,005
Change duning fiscal vear —
:].:sclrlz.ansc: of new stock lor capital — 50,015
Distribution of retained eamings — (4,248)
Distribution of retained eamings —_ (2,831)
Net income - 27,069
Acquisition of treasury stock — (142)
Disposal of treasury stock — 0
g\::}?g?dg:r;n;:;ﬁ:’ 3?]:;3’[?;03' year (4,271) 1,420 (2,851) (2,851)
Total change during fiscal vear (4.271) 1,420 (2.851) 67.010
Balance at March 31, 2008 2,104 (4,332) 2,27 322,015
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4.  Significant Accounting Policies Relating to the Non-Consolidated Financial Statements

[tem

Previous fiscal year

(Apr. 1. 2006 1o Mar. 31, 2007)

Fiscal year under review
(Apr. 1, 2007 to Mar. 31, 2008)

1. Depreciation methods for
fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets
Diminishing balance depreciation method

Major useful lives are as follows:
Buildings and structures

3-50 years
Machinery and vehicles

£3-15 years
Equipment and fixtures

3-20 years

Tangible {ixed assets
Diminishing balance depreciation method

Major useful lives are as follows;
Buildings and structures

3-30 years
Machinery and vehicles

13-15 years
Equipment and fixtures

2-20 vears

(Changes to accounting policies)
In conjunction with the reviston of Japan’'s
Corporation Tax Law, AIFUL has changed the
method of depreciation for tangible fixed assets
except buildings (excludes attached facilities)
acquired on or atter Apnil 1, 2007 to the method
based on the Corporation Tax Law after its
revision from the fiscal year under review.

As a result, operating income, ordinary
income, and net income before income taxes have
each declined by 20 million ven.

(Supplementary Data}
In conjunction with the revision of the
Corporation Tax Law, AIFUL has accounted for
assets except building (excludes attached
facilities) acquired on or before March 31, 2007
through the unitorm depreciation over 5 years of
the difference between an amount equivalent to

%% of the acquisition price and the memorandum
price from the fiscal year following the fiscal
year when 5% of the acquisition price is reached,
through the adoption of a depreciation method
based on the Corporation Tax Law before its
revision.

As a result, operating income, ordinary

income, and net income before income taxes havel
each declined by 27 million yen.

Note: With the exception of the above-described depreciation methods for fixed assets, there have been no signiticant changes since
those listed in the most recent financial report (submitted June 28, 2007). Accordingly, no mention is made of them.
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5.

Changes to Significant Matters Forming the Basis for the Preparation of Non-Consolidated Financial Statements

Previous fiscal year

(Apr. |, 2006 to Mar. 31, 2007)

Fiscal year under review

(Apr. 1, 2007 to Mar. 31, 2008)

(Accounting Standards for Presentation of Net Assets in the
Balance Sheets)

The Company adopted Accounting Standards for Presentation of
Net Assets in the Balance Sheet (ASBJ Statement No. 5, December
9, 2005) and Implementation Guidance on Accounting Standards
for Presentation of Net Assets in the Balance Sheet (ASBJ
Guidance No. 8, December 9, 2005) starting in the fiscal year under,
review.

The amount of shareholders’ equity under former
accounting standards was 260,757 million yen.

With the amendment of the regulations for financial
statements, the Company has presented net assets in the balance
sheets for the fiscal vear under review on the basis of the
regulations for financial statements after amendment,

{Accounting Standards for Business Combinations, etc.)

The Company adopted Accounting Standard for Business
Combinations (Business Accounting Council, October 31, 2003)
and Accounting Standard for Business Separations (ASBJ
Statement No. 7, December 27, 2005) as well as Implementation
Guidance on Accounting Standard for Business Combinations and
Accounting Standard for Business Separations (ASBJ Guidance
No. 10, December 27, 2005) starting in the fiscal year under
review.
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Per Share Information

Previous fiscal year
(Apr. 1, 2006 to Mar. 31, 2007)

Fiscal year under review
(Apr. 1. 2007 to Mar. 31, 2008)

Net assets per share 1,800.60 ven

Net loss per share 2,537.73 ven

Diluted net income per share omitted because the Company
recorded a net loss per share and because there were no latent
shares with a dilutive etfect.

Net assets per share
Net income per share
Diluted net income per share

1,928.02 yen
188.24 ven
184,37 yen

Note: Basis for calculation of net income (loss) per share and

diluted net income per share is as [ollows.

ftem

Previous fiscal year
(Apr. |, 2006 to Mar. 31, 2007)

Fiscal year under review
{Apr. 1, 2007 to Mar. 31, 2008)

Net income (loss) per share

Net income (loss)

(359,399 million yen)

27.069 million yen

Amount not attributable to commeon stock shareholders

Net income (loss) related to common stock

(359.399 miilion yen)

27,069 million ven

Average number of shares of common stock during the period

141,622 497 shares

143,806.320 shares

Diluted net income per share

Adjusted net income

Increase in number of common stock

3,015,748 shares

(of which warrants)

o)

(3,015.748 shares)

Qutline of stock not included in diluted net income per share
due to tack of dilutive effect

New share subscription-type
stock options (No. of shares:
325,800) decided upon at the
27th ordinary general meeting
of shareholders (June 25, 2004)

New share subscription-type
stock options (No. of shares:
351,600) decided upon at the
28th ordinary general meeting

of shareholders (June 24, 2005)

New share subscription-tvpe
stock options (No. of shares:
252,000) decided upon at the
27th ordinary general meeting
of shareholders (June 25, 2604)

New share subscription-type
stock options (No. of shares:
276,600) decided upon at the
28th ordinary general meeting
of sharcholders (June 24, 2005)




I1. Non-Consolidated Results of Operations

1. Operating Revenue

(in millions of ven, %

Period Previous fiscal year Fiscal year under review

(Apr. 1, 2006 to Mar. 31, 2007) (Apr. 1. 2007 1o Mar. 31. 2008)
[tem Amount E) Amount %
Interest on loans to customers 292 668 97.3 224,706 96.4
Unsecured loans 243614 81.0 190,230 81.6
Secured loans 41,423 13.8 29,808 12.8
Small business loans 7,630 2.5 4,667 2.0
Other financial revenue 179 0.1 400 0.2
Other operating revenue 7.907 26 7.932 3.4
Credit guarantee revenue 5,052 1.7 4,738 2.0
Other 2,855 0.9 3.193 1.4
Total 300.758 100.0 233.039 100.0

Note: “Other” included in other operating revenuc includes bad debt write-off recovery.

2. Other Operating Indicators

Period

End of previous fiscal year

End of fiscal year under review

[tem (As of Mar. 31, 2007) (As of Mar. 31, 2008)
Total amount of loans outstanding (millions of yen) 1,298,611 1.058,879
Unsecured loans 995.077 817824
Secured loans 274,787 221.577
Small business loans 28.747 19.477
Number of customer accounts 1,894,105 1.593.420
Unsecured loans 1,788,545 1,508,507
Secured loans 84.047 69,502
Small business loans 21,513 15411
Number of branches 1.805 1,010
Staffed branches 101 101
Unstafted branches 1,704 9209
Number of “Ojidosan” automatic loan-contracting machines 1.501 977
Number of loan application processing machines 304 38
Number of ATMs 89,058 91,432
Company-owned 1,668 1.026
Partner-owned 87,390 90.406
Number of emplovees 3,046 2,585
Bad debt write-off (millions of ven) 134,128 154.487
Allowance for bad debts (millions of yen) 331951 269.394
Net income (loss) per share (yen) (2,537.73) 188.24
Net assets per share (ven) (1.800.60) 1.928.02

Notes: . Total amount of loans outstanding and the number of customer accounts do not include loans and customer accounts related

to claims in bankruptcy.

2. Bad debt write-off does not include losses on claims in bankruptcy, which came to 4.663 million yen in the previous fiscal
vear. and 4.126 million ven in the fiscal vear under review,

3. The allowance for bad debts includes the expected amount of interest repayments estimated to have prionty application to
operating loans (167,530 million ven at the end of the previous fiscal year and 93.504 million ven at the end of the fiscal year

under review),
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(Brief Description in English)

The 31st Business Report
“SHAREHOLDERS’ COMMUNICATION”

June 2008

This Business Report concerning the period from April 1, 2007 through March 31,
2008 (the “Business Report”) was sent to the shareholders of AIFUL Corporation (the

“Company”) in June 2008.

The Business Report is not required to be prepared or made public under any rules or

regulations in Japan; the Company, however, voluntarily prepares the Business Report, sends

it to its shareholders and distributes it to its creditors, customers or analysts from time to

time.

The information in the Business Report which is material to an investment decision is
substantially contained in the Year-End Financial Statements (Consolidated and
Non-Consolidated) for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008, dated May 15, 2008 of the

Company (Exhibit 2).
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(Brief Description in English)

o b
L June 25, 2008

Annual Securities Report
(Report pursuant to Article 24, Paragraph 1 of
the Financial Instruments and Exchange Law)

The 31st Fiscal Year
from April 1, 2007
to March 31, 2008

This Annual Securities Report conceming the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008
(hereinafter called the “Annual Securities Report™) was, in accordance with the Japanese
laws and regulations, filed on June 25, 2008 with the Director-General of Kanto Local
Finance Bureau of the Ministry of Finance of Japan, and is made available for public
inspection at the Tokyo Branch of AIFUL Corporation (the “Company™) and at each of the
Tokyo Stock Exchange and the Osaka Securities Exchange, on which the shares of common
stock of the Company are listed.

It is required under the Japanese laws and regulations to include in the Annual
Securities Report certain information concerning the Company on both consolidated and
non-consolidated basis, including its financial position and results of operation, together with
the consolidated and non-consolidated annual financial statements of the Company for the
fiscal year ended March 31, 2008.

The information in the Annual Securities Report which is material to an investment
decision is substantially contained in the Annual Report 2008 of the Company (Exhibit 3).



(Brief Description in English)
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IYED
Amendment to the Shelf Registration Stateme!M 0T A Q.

dated June 25, 2008 (the “Amendment”)wr Po 'f‘;;;z;*;; n,,h 9y
CE

The Amendment was filed on June 25, 2008 in order to incorporate by reference the Annual
Securities Report of the Company dated June 25, 2008 with respect to its fiscal year ended
March 31, 2008 in the Shelf Registration Statement filed with the Director-General of
Kanto-Local Finance Bureau on March 1, 2007. (Note)

Note:

Under the Financial Instruments and Exchange Law, an amendment to a shelf registration

statement is required to be filed when a list of documents incorporated by reference in the
relevant shelf registration statement is to be amended.
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cuar NOTICE OF CONVOCATION OF

THE 31ST ORDINARY GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

The information in the Notice of Convocation dated June 2, 2008 in respect of the 31st
Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders which is material to an investment decision is
substantially contained in the Year-End Financial Statements (Consolidated and
Non-Consolidated) for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008 (Exhibit 2), the Annual Report
2008 (Exhibit 3), the Annual Securities Report dated June 25, 2008 (Exhibit 6), press release
dated April 25, 2008, entitled “AIFUL Discontinues Directors’ Retirement Benefit System
and Revises Director Compensation System” (Exhibit 10), press release dated April 25, 2008,
entitled “AIFUL Changes Accounting Auditors” (Exhibit 11) and press release dated May 19,
2008, entitled “AIFUL Announces Changes to Board of Directors™ (Exhibit 12).

The proposed agenda items for the 31st Ordinary General Meeting of Sharecholders
were: (1) appointment of ten directors; (2) appointment of one auditor; (3) appointment of one
substitute auditor; (4) appointment of an accounting auditor; and (5) the matter of the
provision of retirement bonuses for retiring directors and auditors and the discountinuation of
provision of retirement benefits for executives accompanying the abolition of this system.




(Brief Description in English)
June 24, 2008

NOTICE OF RESOLUTION OF
THE 31ST ORDINARY GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

The Notice of Resolution dated June 24, 2008 in respect of the 31st Ordinary General
Meeting of Shareholders notified that all the agenda items proposed at the 3 1st Ordinary
General Meeting of Shareholders were approved and resolved as originally proposed. The
information in the Notice of Resolution which is material to an investment decision is
substantially contained in the Notice of Convocation dated June 2, 2008 in respect of the 3 1st
Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders (Exhibit 8).




AIFUL Corporation
Press Release

April 25,2008

AIFUL Discontinues Directors’ Retirement Benefit System
and Revises Director Compensation System

KYOTO — AIFUL Corporation announced today that its Board of Directors and Auditors, at
a meeting held April 25, 2008, decided to discontinue the directors’ retirement benefit system
and to revise the director compensation system.

1. Discontinuation of directors’ retirement benefit system
ATFUL will discontinue its directors’ retirement benefit system covering board members
and auditors, effective at the conclusion of the 31* General Shareholders’ Meeting to be
held in June 2008.

A decision on making cut-off payments to the current board members and auditors
for the period from date of appointment to the date the system is discontinued has been
added to the agenda for discussion at the 31st General Shareholders’ Meeting.

The payments would be made when the respective directors retire.

2. Reason for system’s discontinuation
AIFUL intends to clarify management responsibility by discontinuing the current directors’
retirement benefit system, which can be characterized as deferred payment based on
seniority, and instead reflecting company eamings and results during each term of office in
compensation.

3. Revisions to director compensation system

With the discontinuation of its directors’ retirement benefit system, AIFUL will revise its
compensation system for directors and auditors. Under the new system, a certain percentage
of directors’ compensation will consist of stock options, paid into the AIFUL directors’
stock ownership plan. Directors will hold the AIFUL shares they purchase during their term
of office, in principle. This is intended to enhance corporate value, as improving the
correlation between compensation and the company’s share price will boost directors’
incentive to increase the share price and improve earnings.

In light of the independence and neutrality required by the nature of auditors’ work,
auditors will not be eligible for the stock option plan; instead, an amount equivalent to the
retirement benefit will be added to the auditors’ compensation.

AIFUL Corporation

Headquarters:  381-1 Takasago-cho, Gojo-Agaru,
Karasuma-Dori, Shimogye-ku, Kyoto

President: Yoshitaka Fukuda

Stock code: 8515

Exchanges: TSE 1st Section; OSE 1st Section

Fiscal year: Ending March 31

Inquiries: Katsuyuki Komiya, General Manager,
Public Relations Department

Telephone: {(03) 4503-6050 (Public Relations)
(03) 4503-6100 {Investor Relations)




AIFUL Corporation
Press Release

April 25, 2008

AIFUL Changes Accounting Auditors

KYOTO — AIFUL Corporation announced today that its Board of Directors, at a meeting

held April 25, 2008, decided that the selection of an accounting auditor would be added to the

agenda for discussion at the 31st General Meeting of Shareholders to be held in June 2008.
The Board of Auditors has given its consent to this proposal.

1. Decision to make change, reasons and background for change
Currently, AIFUL employs Shimbashi & Co. and Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as its
accounting auditors under a joint auditor system pursuant to Japan's Company Law, Article
328, and the Financial Instruments and Exchange Law, Article 193-2-1. Shimbashi has
notified AIFUL that it would like to resign its post as AIFUL’s accounting auditor effective
as of the conclusion of the 31* General Meeting of Shareholder, which is the final day of its
appointment. Accordingly, AIFUL has decided to continue employing Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu as its only auditor and has decided to add this proposal to its agenda.

2. Accounting auditors being changed

Name and address of appointed auditor
Name: Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Address: MS Shibaura Building, 13-23 Shibaura 4-chome, Minato-ku, Tokyo, Japan

Name and address of auditor resigning post
Name: Shimbashi & Co.
Address: 7th floor, Kokyu Yotsuya building, 9 Honshiocho, Shinjuku-ku, Tokyo, Japan

3. Most recent appointment of auditor resigning post
June 27, 2007

4.Issues related to opinions expressed in audit reports prepared by accounting auditor
resigning post, opinions of accounting auditor resigning post on items in audit reports

Nothing of note

ATFUL Corporation |

Headquarters:  381-1 Takasago-cho, Gojo-Agaru,
Karasuma-Dori, Shimogyo-ku, Kyoto

President: Yoshitaka Fukuda |

Stock code: 8515 |

Exchanges: TSE 1st Section; OSE 1st Section :

Fiscal year: Ending March 31

Inquiries: Katsuyuki Komiya, General Manager,
Public Relations Department

Telephone: (03) 4503-6050 (Public Relations)
(03) 4503-6100 (Investor Relations)
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Mayv 19, 2008
AIFUL Announces Changes to Board of Directors

KYOTO — AIFUL Corporation has announced that a meeting of its board of directors held May ‘
19, 2008, resolved to nominate a new director candidate, a new corporate auditor candidate, and
an alternative corporate auditor candidate.

Each candidate will assume office upon the approval of the ordinary general meeting of
sharcholders scheduled on Junc 24, 2008.

1. New Director Candidate ,
Name Current Position

Yasuo Hotta Executive Officer overseeing Accounting Department and
General Affairs Depaniment

AIFUL Corporation

(President and Representative Director, Maruioh K.K.)

Marutoh K K., is a whollv-owned subsidiary of AIFUL Corporation.

2. New Standing Corporate Auditor Candidatc
Name Current Position

Kenichi Kayama General Manager attached to Personnel Division
AIFUL Corporation

3. Alternative Standing Corporate Auditor Candidate

AIFUL elects an alternate corporate auditor against the contingency when the legal requirement
for the number of corporate auditors is not met.

Name Current Position
Kunio Takahashi Standing Corporate Auditor
LIFE Co., Ltd.

LIFE Co., Ltd., is a subsidiary of AIFUL Corporation.
Kunio Takahashi was selected as AIFUL Corporation’s alternative corporate auditor at the 30th
ordinary general meeting of shareholders held on June 27, 2007

4. Resigning Director

Resignation is at the conclusion of the 31st ordinary general mecting of sharcholders scheduled
on June 24, 2008.

Name Current Position
Hiroshi Abe Director




5. Resigning corporate auditors

Resignation is at the conclusion of the 31st ordinary general meeting of sharcholders scheduled

on June 24, 2008,

Name

Current Position

Sadavuki Matsuoka

Standing Corporate Auditor

Yoshinobu Azuma

Corporate Auditor

Sadavuki Matsuoka will assume the office of director at the LIFE Co., Ltd.

Reference; List of Directors, Corporate Auditors, and Executive Officers Scheduled to Take Office

Effective June 24, 2008

Name

Role as Director

Role as Executive Officer

Areas of Responsibility

Yoshitaka Fukuda

President and
Representative Director

Chief Exccutive Officer

Chairman, Risk
Management Committee

Taichi Kawakita

Representative Director

First Senior Executive
Officer

Chairman, Compliance
Committee, concurrently
overseeing Loan
Business Division and
Credit Management
Division

Shintaro Hashima

Director

Senior Executive Officer

Scnior General
Manager,

Information Systems
Division, concurrently
overseeing Legal
Department and
Compliance Monitoring
Department

Tsuneo Sakai

Director

Senior Executive Officer

Overseeing Public
Relations Depanment,
Coordination
Department, Guarantee
Business Department
and Investor Relations
Office

General Manager,
Investor Relations
Office

Nobuyuki Wakuta

Director

Senior Executive Officer

Senior General
Manager,
Management Planning
Division

Yoshinobu Takaishi

Direclor

Senior Executive Officer

Overseeing Finance
Departiment

Masami Munetake

Director

Executive Officer

Senior General
Manager, Personnel
Division, concurrently
overseeing Credit
Assessment Department




Masayvuki Sato Director Exccutive Officer Overseeing Business
Development
Department

Yasuo Hotta Director Exccutive Officer Qverseeing Accounting
Department and General
Affairs Department

Kazuyuki Isono Director —

Masanobu Hidaka Standing Corporate -

Auditor

Norio Onishi

Standing Corporate
Auditor

Kenichi Kavama

Standing Corporate
Auditor

Overseeing Finance

Yasutaka Fukuda — Executive Officer
Depariment
Kazumitsu Qishi — Execcutive Officer Senior General
Manager,

Loan Business Division

Akira Takami

Exccutive Officer

Overseeing Guarantee
Business Department

Tsuguo Nakagawa

Exccutive Officer

Senior General
Manager,

Credit Management
Division

Yasuo Shiozawa

Executive Officer

Overseeing Corporate
Management
Department

General Manager,
Corporate Management
Department

Minoru Kobayashi

Executive Officer

Overseeing
Coordination
Department
General Manager,
Coordination
Department

Isao Okada

Executive Officer

Deputy General
Manager,
Information Systems
Division

Itraru Sate

Executive Officer

Overseeing Internal
Auditing Depariment
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AIFUL Issues Another-Upditeé. on Strengthemng of Compliance Structure

KYOTO — AIFUL Corporation continues to work to strengthen its compliance structure and
revise internal regulations, systems, organizations and employee education programs. The
progress that AIFUL has made since the previous announcement (news release entitled
“AIFUL Issues New Update on Strengthening of Compliance Structure,” dated December 27,
2007} is summarized below.

1. The Executive Caravan Program

The Executive Caravan program, initiated in December 2006, facilitates the direct
communication of business policies and business conditions from the management to onsite
employees. In this program, executives visit workplaces and engage in face-to-face dialogue
with employees to ensure that employee views are reflected in the company’s management.
By the end of March 2008, AIFUL had held 786 executive caravan sessions, involving a total
of 8,348 employees. This program wall be continued in the future.

2. Thorough Employee Guidance and Training

Strengthened telephone service monitoring

AIFUL has been implementing telephone service monitoring, aiming to further improve the
quahty of its phone-based services. Over the 12-month period from April 2007 to March
2008, the company monitoring the following calls:

B 90,527 calls involving 1,493 employees at counseling centers (specmllzmg in debt
collection), credit management department, secured loan management department
and assistance center

B 7,673 calls involving 317 employees at the toll-free customer service department
Heartful Center

B 5,698 calls involving 281 employees at the customer center responsible for ATM
applications

8 16,094 calls involving 886 employees at all loan offices.

New communications recording devices are scheduled for installation at all loan offices to
avoid recording failures. Looking to the future, AIFUL will continue this monitoring with the
objectives of raising the quality of customer service and ensuring total compliance.

Held compliance training sessions at all branches
The company has designated the fifth business day of each month as a compliance day and
conducts training with standardized content for employees.

Apart from this, AIFUL ran a total of 1,190 study sessions, which were held by the managers
of loan offices during the 12-month period from April 2007 to March 2008, covering such
topics as compliance, regulations, and service.




Law and Regulations Manager Certifications (in-house qualification)

In February and March 2008 a total of 951 employees who hold the Law and Regulations
Manager Certification, established in March 2007, attained an updated qualification
principally covering article 2 of Japan’s Money Lending Business Control and Regulation
Law. In addition, a total of 251 mid-career managers attained the certification for the first
time.

Operations Manager Certifications (in-house qualification)

AIFUL has introduced the Operations Manager Certification for employees at all branches
and call centers who have contact with customers through loan and debt collection services,
with the aim of ensuring they acquire the necessary legal knowledge and business expertise
for each service conducted. There have been 37 new certifications since the last report,
bringing the total to 5,931.

Implemented In-house Counseling Education

AIFUL has launched counselor training for staff working in debt collection departments. The
aim is to enable employees to go beyond mere debt collection duties to also give money
management counseling and help resolve customer 1ssues.

AIFUL’s human resources development department and an outside consulting company
jointly formulated a training curriculum, and carried out training at the departments
specializing in debt collection in East and West Japan. A total of 924 employees have
completed training—429 in east Japan and 495 in west Japan. All employees at debt
collection departments in east and west Japan have completed training. To ensure the
thorough permeation of this knowledge, follow-up training will be conducted.

3. Enhancement of Compliance Structures

Periodic Examinations

Since October 2007 AIFUL has been conducting a second round of regular inspections from
the perspective of the Money Lending Business Control and Regulation Law and the
detection of irregularities. As of March 31, 2008, 236 targeted sites had received a second
inspection with no problems found.

Compliance Inspections of Branches and Offices by the Compliance Monitoring
Department

To strengthen the company’s approach to compliance and internal controls, an On-Site
Compliance Section was established within the Compliance Monitoring Department in June
2007. As of March 31, the On-Site Compliance Section had conducted inspections at 34
locations nationwide. These inspections serve to heighten knowledge and awareness of
compliance, produce operational improvements, guidance, and training directly in the
workplace, and provide Comphance Officers with support and follow-up.

Compliance Audit Implemented by External Organization

AIFUL concluded a legal consulting agreement with Nakajima Transactional Law Office
(representative attorney: Shigeru Nakajima) in July 2006. To allow further development of
the company’s compliance structure, it has been decided to continue this relationship to the
end of March 2009,

Risk Management Posture Enhanced
Risk management regulations have been revised to allow quicker response to a broader




spectrum of risks, to change the definition of risks and clarify responses to risks that emerge,
and to clanfy the decision-making and operational procedures of the Risk Management
Committee.

In addition, we have formulated oversight policies, specific action plans for times of
emerging nisks, and contingency plans to be implemented in the event of a breach of

propriety.
4. Revision of Personne! Evaluation System

Requirements added for appointment to assistant branch manager and loan office
leader positions

The company has added acquisition of the Lending Operations Manager qualification as
specified in the Money Lending Business Control and Regulation Law to the requirements
for appointment as assistant branch manager, supervisor, or loan office leader.

As of March 31, 2008, 1,657 employees had qualified as lending operations managers.
5. Other Corporate Activities

CSR Activities

The ATFUL Group’s newly formulated corporate philosophy, “Eam the support of the public
with sincerity and hard work,” carries the same connotations as the company’s efforts to win
the trust of all stakeholders through good-faith corporate social responsibihty efforts. We at
AIFUL believe that the practice of CSR is the road to actualization of our corporate
philosophy, and are engaged in various activities intended to bring this about. Some examples
of these activities are given below.

Tackling environmental issues
B Introduction of cool biz and warm biz
B Sorting and recycling of waste
B Use of environmentally friendly products

Social contributions and responsible community service

Long-term charitable activities

Disaster aid and relief funds

Cleanup of the vicinity of our premises

Installation of AED at all business establishments

Participation 1n illegal outdoor advertising whistleblower programs
Establishment of a paid-leave program for volunteer work

Looking to the future, AIFUL will continue to be united in its efforts to establish a firm
compliance structure, and will also continue to report on the status of progress of these
revisions.



Reference
Principal Measures Taken to Strengthen the Compliance Structure

Corporate philosophy
B Reformulated the corporate philosophy and other elements of the corporate philosophy
B Released the AIFUL Group Handbook to promote understanding and awareness

Strengthening organizations and systems

Substantially increased the number of inspectors

Established the Risk Management Commuttee

Implemented an executive officer system

Established the Auditor’s Office

Established the On-Site Compliance Section within the Compliance Monitoring
Department

Enhancement of Compliance Structures

B Introduced the Compliance Officer Certification (external qualification, qualified
employees: 1,899)

B Introduced the Personal Information Protection Officer Certification (external
qualification, qualified employees: 2,184 )

B In preparation for the implementation of Article 2 of the Money Lending Business
Control and Regulation Law, company-wide study sessions were held, and attendees
tested on the material.

B Inspections by the general managers of loan business departments and the loan business
planning and promotion department

B Checks of regulatory compliance by assistant branch managers

B Appointment of Compliance Officers

B Implementation of Inspection Commendations

Changes to internal regulations
® Tightened rules and regulations governing lending operations
B Tightened regulations governing debt collection operations

Enhancement of systems

B Customers’ work telephone numbers no longer displayed on terminals

B Upgraded system for recording progress of negotiations

B Adopted the mobile-phone-compatible “Global Server ID EV for Mobile” EV SSL
certificate.

Revision of Personnel Evaluation System
@ Target management system based on performance targets eliminated
B Revised requirements for appointments and promotions
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AIFUL Announces Reduction’in Lénding Interest Rate

June 13, 2008

KYOTO — AIFUL Corporation announced today that it will offer lower interest rates for customers
who take out a new unsecured consumer loan (cash advance) with the company on or after June 16,
2008,

1. Details of Lending Interest Rate Reduction

AIFUL will apply the lending interest rates shown below to customers who take out a new unsecured
consumer loan {cash advance) with the company on or after June 16, 2008.

Lending interest rates
Current interest rates (effective annual interest rate): 12.775 ~ 18.0%
New interest rates (effective annual interest rate): 6.8 ~ 18.0%

* Customers who already have a loan agreement with AIFUL must undergo a new credit evaluation in
order 1o have the aforementioned rates applied to loans they take out.

2. Objective of Reduction in Lending Interest Rate

AIFUL has been carrving out group-wide management reforms in order to ensure it can promptly
deliver low-cost products that are more secure and reliable for customers. Accordingly, in August
2007 AIFUL reduced the maximum lending interest rate for customers taking out new loans with the
company and in December of the same vear began marketing loans for specific purposes (effective
annual rates of 9.8 ~ 1 7.0%) to meet customers’ demand for loans for various life events. These efforts
to add greater diversity 1o the product lincup and offer loans at lower rates are intended to raise
customer satisfaction.

ATFUL has now decided to reduce the low end of the range of interest rates for cash advances from
12.775% to 6.8% to give an additional boost to its current marketing of loans at preferential rates and
take another step to better meet the needs of its customers and continue offering convenience.

Reference
Types of unsecured consumer loans currently available from AIFUL (as of June 16, 2008)
Product name Loan amount Lending interest rate
(Effective annual rate)
Cash advances 10.000 ~ 3 million ven 6.8 ~18.0%
Special-purpose loan | 10,000 ~ 1 million ven 98 ~17.0%

* Eligibihity for these rates will depend on the results of consumer credit evaluations.
* Documentatton attesting to the loan’s use is required for special-purposc loans, as their use is limited
1o cercmonial functions, medical expenses and other specific purposes.
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AIFUL Announces Changes to Board of Directors

KYOTOQ — AIFUL Corporation has announced that a meeting of its board of directors’ held
today approved the following changes to executive officers. Details are provided below.

1. Executive Officer Promoted (cffective as of June 24, 2008)

Name New position Former position
Masavuki Sato ) Director Director

Senior Executive Officer
oversecing Business
Development Department

Executive Officer oversecing
Business Development
Department

2. New Executive Officer (effective as of June 24, 2008)

Name

New position

Former position

Masayuki Noda

Executive Officer overseeing
Legal Department

Adviser for AIFUL




Reference: Other directors, auditors, and executive officers (effective as of June 24, 2008)

Name Director and Executive Officer Responsibility
Auditor
President and CEOQ | President and
Yoshitaka Fukuda | Represenmtative Chief Executive | Chairman, Risk Management Committee
Director Officer
. . , Chairman, Comphance Commitiee concurrently
L . Representative Senior Executive ) . C .
Taichi Kawakita ; oversecing Loan Business Division, and Credit
Director Officer L
Management Division
Senior General Manager, Information Systems
. . . Semior Executive | Division concurrently overseeing Legal
Shintaro Hashima | Director e £ . 5
Officer Department and Compliance Monitoring
Department
Kazuyvuki Isono Director - -
. . Senior Executive . .
Masayuk: Sato Director Overseeing Business Development Department
. Officer
Overseeing Public Relations Department,
. . Senior Executive | Coordination Depariment, Guarantce Business
Tsuneo Sakai Director :
Officer Department, and Investor Relations Office
General Manager, Investor Relations Office
. . enior Executive nior ral Manager, Management Plannin,
Nobuyuki Wakuta | Director Senior Executiy Se. 10! General Manager. g &
. Ofticer Division
) . . Senior Executive . .
Yoshinobu Takaishi | Director Overseeing Finance Department
Officer
Semor General Manager, Personnel Division
Masami Munctake | Director Executive Officer | concurrenily overseeing Credit Assessment
Department
. . Oversceing Accounting Department and
Yasuo Hotta Director Executive Officer &7 5 Lep
General Affairs Department
) Standin
Masanobu Hidaka 5 . - -
Corporate Auditor
. —_ Standin
Norio Onishi & . - -
Corporate Auditor
o Standi
Kenichi Kayvama s . - -
. Corporate Auditor

Yasutaka Fukuda

Executive Officer

Overseeing Finance Department

Karumitsu Oishi

Executive Officer

Senior Gencral Manager, Loan Business
Division

Tsuguo Nakagawa

Executive Officer

Senior General Manager, Credit Management
Division

Akira Takami

Executive Officer

Overseeing Guaranice Business Department




Yasuo Shiozawa

Executive Officer

Overseeing Corporate Management Department,
General Manager, Corporatc Management
Department

Minoru Kobayashi

Executive Officer

Overseeing Coordination Department
General Manager, Coordination Department

Deputy General Manager. Information Systems

Isao Okada Execntive Officer | .. .

Division
Itaru Sato Executive Officer | Overseeing Internal Auditing Department
Masayuki Noda Executive Officer | Overseeing Legal Department
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AIFUL Responds to Analyst Report by Lebhman Brothers

KYOTO — AIFUL Corporation today issued a public response to the analyst report issued by
Lehman Brothers Inc., dated June 23, 2008 and authored by Walter Altherr, maintaiming that 1t
contained certain factual errors, such as statements to the effect that “we fear that dept
repayment will get tougher (for AIFUL)” and “Sumitomo Trust, AIFUL’s main bank... has also
told Lehman Brothers that is [sic] has no desire to fully support, much less take over, AIFUL.”

In response to the analyst report, AIFUL issued a strong protest to Lehman Brothers about the
accuracy of the report, asking for the firm to issue an apology and erratum report. Lehman
Brothers responded by issuing an erratum report dated June 26, but the erratum report failed to
address the inaccuracies contained in the original analyst report.

AIFUL has received numerous inguinies since the publication of the analyst report by Lehman
Brothers, and has issued the following response.

1. On AIFUL’s Cash Flow Situation
As of March 31, 2008, AIFUL was scheduled to repay ¥522.7 billion in debt wathin 12 months,

AIFUL has already secured the funds needed, including a balance of ¥257.3 billion in cash and
cash equivalents. There are absolutely no problems with AIFUL’s cash flow situation.

2. On AIFUL’s Relationship with Sumitomo Trust & Banking

AIFUL continues to matntain a good relationship with its main bank, Sumitomo Trust &
Banking Co., Ltd.

AIFUL will continue to protest the inaccurate statements made by Lehman Brothers with that
firm, and is also considering the option of pursuing legal action against Lehman Brothers in
order to restore AIFUL’s reputation and public trust.
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